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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,

Your directors are pleased to present the 14th Annual Report together with the audited Financial
Statements for the financial year ended 31st March 2023.

1. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The highlights of Standalone and Consolidate Financials result are as follows:

(Rs. in millions)
Standalone Consolidated

Particulars 2022-23 2021-22 2022-23 2021-22
Revenue from Operations 22,056.74 18,222.36 54435.99 58,776.45

273.08 201.17 273.87 203.68
Other Income
Total Revenue 22,329.82 18,423.53 54709.86 58,980.13
Total Expense 21,273.95 17,356.47 51782.72 55,539.75
Earnings before interest, 1,055.87 1,067.06 2927.14 3,440.38
tax,depreciation and
amottization (EBIDTA)
Less: Depreciation and 194.83 1400.54 967.14
amortization expenses 226.61
Less: Finance Cost 366.41 308.17 538.32 44117
Share of (profit)/loss of joint
venture, associates (net of -- -- 0.22 0.96
tax)
Profit before Tax (PBT) 462.85 564.06 988.06 2,031.11
Less: Current Tax 118.05 261.30 119.60 265.13
Less: Tax charge/(credit) relating
to earlier years (16.98) (16.21) (16.98) (16.21)




Less: Deferred Tax charge/ 8.48 (86.52) 5.69 (86.47)
(Income)

Profit for the year (PAT) 353.30 405.49 879.75 1,868.66

Other Comprehensive
income/(Expense) (2.14) 0.05 -207.01 (261.46)
(net of tax) )

Total Comprehensive income
(net of tax) 355.44

405.44 1086.77 2,130.12

2. OPERATIONS AND BUSINESS PERFORMANCE:

Standalone Performance:

The Company is in the business of Mobile phones, tablets and communication equipment.

During the year under review the Company has earned revenue from its operations of Rs. 22,056.74 Million,
which is 21.04% higher as compared to previous year revenue from its operation of Rs. 18,222.36 Million.
However, the profit before tax during the financial year 2022-23 stood at Rs. 462.85 Million as compared to
previous year profit before tax of Rs. 564.06 Million.

Consolidated Performance

During the year under review the Company has earned revenue on consolidated basis from its operations of
Rs.54,435.99 Million, 7% lower as compared to previous year consolidated revenue of Rs. 58,776.45 Million.
Further the profit before tax on consolidated basis during the financial year 2022-23 stood at Rs. 988.06 Million
as compared to previous year profit before tax of Rs. 2,031.11 Million.

3. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

During the year under review, there is no change in the nature of business of the Company.
4. DIVIDEND

The Company will be utilizing the funds for the current operations and as well as for upcoming projects,
hence Board do notrecommend any dividend for the financial year 2022-23.

5. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

During the year under review, no amount from the profit of the Company has been transferred to the
General Reserve of the Company.

6. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorized Share Capital

During the year under review, there has been no change in the Authorized, Issued and Paid up Share capital of
the Company. As at 318t March 2023, the Authorized Share Capital of the Company stood at Rs. 3,961,000,000
(Rs. Three Hundred Ninety Six Crore Ten Lac only) divided into 7,82,000,000 equity shares of %5 each; (ii)
100,000 Preference Shares of 10 each; and (iii) 500,000 Preference Shares of 2100. The paid up capital of the
Company also stood at Rs. 2,73,90,48,280 (Rs. Two Hundred Seventy Three Crore Ninety Lakh Forty Eight
Thousand Two Hundred Eighty Only) divided into (i) 54,11,26,216 equity shares of Rs. 5 each; (ii) 1,00,000



Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each; and (iii) 324,172 Compulsory Convertible Preference
Shares of Rs. 100 each as at 31.03.2023.

7. NON CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES AND DETAILS OF DEBENTURE TRUSTEE

During the year under review, the Company has not issued any Non-Convertible Debentures.

However, 250 Non-Convertible Debentures of Face Value of Rs. 10,00,000/- (Rupees Ten Lakhs) each issued
by the Company for cash at par aggregating to Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Twenty Five Crore only) on private
placement basis on September 27, 2021 s were outstanding as on 315t March 2023. The said debentures were
redeemed by the Company by making full payment on 25" September 2023.

8. SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

As at March 31, 2023, your Company had 9 direct subsidiaries (these 9 direct subsidiaries further had 26
direct/indirect subsidiaries), 1 Joint venture and 1 Associate Company.

A report on the performance and financial position of each of the direct subsidiaries, JVs and Associates
has been provided in Form AOC-1 as per Section 129(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and is
attached herewith as Annexure-“A”.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the audited financial statements including
consolidated financial statements along with relevant documents of the Company and financial
statements of the subsidiaries are available on the website of the Company
https://www.lavamobiles.com/investor-relations/annual-reports.aspx

The policy for determining material subsidiaries of the Company has been provided in the following link
https://www.lavamobiles.com/investor-relations/policy.aspx

9. DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the period under review, the Board of Directors of the Company comprised of eminent persons
with proven competence and integrity. Besides the experience, strong financial acumen, strategic
astuteness, and leadership qualities, they have a significant degree of commitment towards the Company
and devoted adequate time to the meetings and preparation. As at March 31, 2023 the board of directors
comprised of the following:

Mr. Hari Om Rai, Chairman and Managing Director
Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai, Whole Time Director

Mr. Sunil Bhalla, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Vishal Sehgal, Non-Executive Director

Mr. Vinod Rai, Independent Director

Mr. Rahul Kansal, Independent Director

Ms. Chitra Gouri Lal, Independent Director

Mr. Vinod Sharma, Independent Director

NGO AWN =

Changes in Board

During the year under consideration, there has been no change in the Board of directors of the Company.

However, post closure of financial year under consideration, there had been following changes in the
directorship of the Company:



S. Name Designation Appointment/ Date of
No. Cessation Appointment
/Cessation
1. Mr. Rahul Kansal Independent Director Cessation 22.08.2023
2. Mr. Vinod Rai Independent Director Cessation 22.08.2023
3. Mrs. Chitra Gouri Lal Independent Director Cessation 22.08.2023
4. Mr. Jitendra Kumar Independent Director Appointment 01.09.2023
5. Mr. Jitendra Kumar Independent Director Cessation 30.12.2023
6 Mr. Sunil Raina Additional / Whole Time Appointment 06.11.2023
) Director
7 Mr. Sunil Raina Additional / Whole Time Cessation 30.12.2023
' Director
8. Mr. Sunil Raina Whole Time Director Appointment 28.02.2024
Mr. Sanjeev Agarwal Additional / Whole Time Appointment 01.02.2024
Director
10 Mr. Hari Om Rai Chairman Cum Managing Cessation 28.02.2024
) Director
11.] Mr. Vinod Sharma Independent Director Cessation 19.03.2024
12.] Mr. Anupam Shrivastava Independent Director Appointment 26.03.2024
13.] Mr. Ajay Kumar Singh Independent Director Appointment 16.04.2024
14 Ms. Deepika Gupta Additional Non-Executive Appointment 20.05.2024
) Director

Retire by Rotation

During the year under consideration Mr. Hari Om Rai — Chairman & Managing Director having DIN 01191443 and
Mr. Vishal Sehgal — Director having DIN 03127049 retired by rotation at the Annual General Meeting held on
December 30, 2022.

Further in accordance with the provision of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Articles of
Association of the Company, Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai having DIN: 00908417 and Mr. Sunil Bhalla having DIN:
00980040, directors of the Company, will retire by rotation and being eligible offers themselves for their re-
appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Changes in Key Managerial Personnel

During the year under review, Mr. Asitava Bose resigned with effect from July 18, 2022 from the position
of Chief Financial Officer. Consequent upon his resignation, Mr. Nirav Girishbhai Raval was appointed as
Chief Financial Officer (Key Managerial Personnel) of the Company with effect from July 18, 2022.

Thereafter Mr. Nirav Girishbhai Raval resigned from the position of Chief Financial Officer of the
Company with effect from the opening hours of 3@ December 2022 and Mr. Asitava Bose was again
appointed as Chief Financial Officer (Key Managerial Personnel) of the Company with effect from opening
hours of December 3, 2022.

Further, post closure of the Financial Year under review Mr. Naveen Kumar (Membership No. A46279)
resigned from the position of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of the Company with effect
from 31st August 2023. Consequent upon his resignation, Ms. Preeti, an Associate Member of Institute of
Company Secretary of India possessing membership No. A53936 was appointed as Company Secretary
and Compliance Officer (Key Managerial Personnel) of the Company with effect from 1st September,
2023.

10. MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the year under review, 8 (Eight) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. The intervening gap
between two consecutive meetings was not more than the period prescribed under Companies Act, 2013.



The Board meeting dates are as under:-

Date of TotaI_Number of Directors ;_Attendance
S. No. Meeti associated as on the date of Number of directors % of
eeting .
meeting attended attendance
1. 07.04.2022 8 3 37.5%
2. 13.05.2022 8 3 37.5%
3. 18.07.2022 8 3 37.5%
4. 20.09.2022 8 3 37.5%
5. 30.09.2022 8 7 87.5%
6. 03.12.2022 8 3 37.5%
7. 05.12.2022 8 4 50%
8. 15-03-2023 8 4 50%
MEETINGS OF COMMITTEE’S

The Board of Directors of the Company had duly constituted the following Committees:-

A) AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was constituted by a resolution of the Board dated September 22, 2014 and the Audit

Committee as on 313t March 2023 comprised of the following members:

Sr. No. Name of member Designation

1 Mr. Rahul Kansal Chairman

2 Mr. Hari Om Rai Member

3 Mr. Vinod Rai Member

4 Mr. Vinod Sharma Member

5 Mr. Naveen Kumar Secretary

Details of meeting of the members of the Audit Committee are as under: -

s. Date of TotaI.Number of members Attendance

No. Meetin associated as on the date of Number of members % of

g
meeting attended attendance

1. 01.04.2022 4 2 50%
2. 18.07.2022 4 2 50%
3. 30.09.2022 4 4 100%
4, 03.12.2022 4 3 75%

Further, the Audit Committee was last reconstituted on April 16, 2024, in compliance with section 177 of the

Companies Act, 2013.

Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Anupam Shrivastava Chairman

2 Mr. Ajay Kumar Singh Member

3 Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai Member

4 Ms. Preeti Secretary

B) NOMINATION, REMUNERATION AND COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation Committee was constituted by a resolution of the Board
dated June 20, 2011 and The Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation Committee as at 315t March 2023

comprised of the following members:




Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Rahul Kansal Chairman

2 Mr. Vinod Rai Member

3 Mr. Vishal Sehgal Member

4 Mrs. Chitra Gouri Lal Member

Details of meeting of the members of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee are as under:-

s. Date of TotaI_Number of members Attendance
No. Meetin associated as on the date of Number of members % of
g
meeting attended attendance

1. 01.04.2022 4 2 50%
2. 07.04.2022 4 2 50%
3. 20.06.2022 4 2 50%
4. 18.07.2022 4 2 50%
5. 03.10.2022 4 2 50%
6. 03.12.2022 4 2 50%

Further, the Nomination, Remuneration and Compensation Committee was last reconstituted on April 16, 2024 in
compliance with section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee currently comprised of the following

members.
Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Anupam Shrivastava Chairman
2 Mr. Ajay Kumar Singh Member
3 Mr. Sunil Bhalla Member
4 Mr. Vishal Sehgal Member
C) IPO COMMITTEE

The Board has also constituted an IPO Committee pursuant to a resolution dated May 18, 2021. During the
Financial Year 2022-23, no meeting of IPO Committee was held.

Post closure of the financial year under consideration, the IPO Committee was dissolved w.e.f 1st
September 2023.

D)

OPERATIONAL COMMITTEE

For operational convenience, the Board of directors of the Company had constituted Operational Committee
with effect from 17t February 2020. The Committee as on 315t March 2023 consists of:

Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Hari Om Rai Chairman

2 Mr. Shailendra Rai Member

3 Mr. Sunil Bhalla Member

Further, the Operational Committee was last reconstituted on 1%t February 2024 with the following members:

Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Sunil Raina Chairman

2 Mr. Sanjeev Agarwal Member

3 Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai Member

The operational Committee met as and when required during the year under review.




E) STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was constituted by a resolution of the Board dated July 24, 2017 and
the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee as at 315t March 2023 comprised of the following members:

Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Rahul Kansal Chairman

2 Mrs. Chitra Gouri Lal Member

3 Mr. Hari Om Rai Member

Further, the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was last reconstituted on April 16, 2024 with the following
members:

Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Ajay Kumar Singh Chairman

2 Mr. Sunil Raina Member

3 Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai Member

11. ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 92 read with Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration)Rules, 2014,
the Annual Return of the Company for the F.Y. 2022-2023 shall be placed on the website of the Company at
https//www lavamobiles.com/investor-relations.aspx.

12. PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the Financial Year 2022-23, your Company has not accepted any deposit within the meaning of
Section 73 and 74 of the Companies Act, 2013 read together with the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014

13. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

The Company being an unlisted public Company, Section 197 of the Act read with rule 5(2) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not applicable on
the Company.

14. SECRETARIAL STANDARD

During the year 2022-2023, the Company has complied with applicable Secretarial Standards issued by
the Institute of the Company Secretaries of India.

15. PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE BOARD, COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS

The Companies Act, 2013 stipulate the evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees,
Individual Directors and the Chairperson. The Company has formulated a Board Evaluation template for
performance evaluation of the Independent Directors, the Board, its Committees and other individual
Directors which includes criteria for performance evaluation of the Non-Executive Directors and Executive
Directors.

The template provides the criteria for assessing the performance of Directors and comprises of various key
areas such as attendance at Board and Committee Meetings, quality of contribution to Board discussions
and decisions, strategic insights or inputs regarding future growth of the Company and its performance,
ability to challenge views in a constructive manner, knowledge acquired regarding the Company’s
business/ activities, understanding of industry and global trends, etc.




The evaluation involves self-evaluation by the Board Member and subsequent assessment by the Board of
Directors. A member of the Board will not participate in the discussion of his/her evaluation. The formal
Board evaluation as mandated under the Companies Act has been carried out during the year.

16. STATUTORY AUDITORS AND STATUTORY AUDIT REPORT

At the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 28" February 2024, M/s Raj Gupta & Co.,
Chartered Accountants (FRN: 00203N) were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company until the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting to be held for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023 and that
they shall conduct the Statutory Audit for the Financial Year 2022-23.

The Statutory Auditors have given a confirmation to the effect that they are eligible to continue with their
appointment and that they have not been disqualified in any manner from continuing as Statutory
Auditors.

The Auditors Report on the accounts of the company for the year under review is self-explanatoryand requires

no comments. There is no qualification/ reservation/ adverse remark or disclaimer inthe Auditors’ Report. The
Audit Report is annexed with the financial statement of the Company.

17. SECRETARIAL AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Act and the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, M/s Kumar Wadhwa & Company, Company Secretaries were
appointed as Secretarial Auditors for conducting the secretarial audit of the Company for the financial
year 2022-23. The Secretarial Audit Report in form MR-3 is annexed herewith as Annexure-B”. The
Secretarial Audit report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

18. DISCLOSURE ABOUT COST AUDIT

As per the Cost Audit Orders, Cost Audit is applicable to the Company's products/ business inrespect of
Electricals or Electronic Machinery (mobile phones, tablets and communication equipment) for financial
year 2022-23.

In view of the same and in terms of the provisions of Section 138 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s. MM & Associates,
Cost Accountants were appointed as Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of cost records of your company
for the financial year 2022-23.

The Cost Audit Report for the year under review does not contain any qualifications, reservations,
adverse remarks or disclaimers.

Your Board has appointed M/s. MM & Associates, Cost Accountants, as Cost Auditors of the Company for
conducting cost audit for Financial Year 2023-24. A resolution seeking approval of the Members for
ratifying the remuneration of Rs. 50,000/-(Rupees Fifty Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes, travel and
actual out-of-pocket expenses payable to the Cost Auditors for Financial Year 2023-24 is provided in the
Notice to the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

19. PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS

The particulars of loans, guarantees and Investments under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have
been disclosed in note no. 6, 7(a), and 7(b) of the standalone financial statements and note no. 6(a) and 6(b) of the
consolidated financial statement for the financial year ended 31.03.2023.



20. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

During the year, none of the transactions with related parties came under the purview of Section 188(1) of
the Act. Accordingly, the disclosure of related party transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of
the Act in Form AOC-2 is not applicable to the Company for FY 2022-23 and hence, does not form part of
this report.

21. CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

As a socially responsible Company, LAVA is committed to increasing its Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) impact with an aim of playing a bigger role in sustainable development of our society. In pursuit of
this objective, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee had been formed by the Company
which oversees the activities relating to activities supporting the social and environmental causes.

The Company has in place a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy pursuant to the provisions of Section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)
Amendment Rules, 2021.

A brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company and the initiatives

undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the year are set out in Annexure-C of this report in the
format prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy)Rules, 2014.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was constituted by a resolution of the Board dated September
22, 2014 and the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as on 315t March 2023 comprised of the following
members:

Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Hari Om Rai Chairman

2 Mr. Shailendra Rai Member

3 Mr. Rahul Kansal Member

Details of meeting of the members of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee are as under:-

s Date of Total Number of Directors Attendance
: . associated as on the date of Number of directors % of
No. Meeting .
meeting attended attendance
1. 15.03.2023 3 2 66.66%

Further, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was last reconstituted on March 26, 2024. The
Committee currently consists of following members:

Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Sunil Raina Chairman

2 Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai Member

3 Mr. Anupam Shrivastava Member

22. INSURANCE

All the properties of the Company, including stocks, where necessary, and to the extent required, have been
adequately insured.



23. INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with nature and size of the
business activity and with reference to the financial statements. The controls comprise of policies and
procedures for ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to
its policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information.

The internal financial control system is supplemented by internal audits. The Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors reviews the reports of the Internal Auditors at its meeting(s).

24. POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS

The Company’s policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters is available at the
website of the Company and which can be accessed using https://www.lavamobiles.com/investor-
relations/policy.aspx

25. MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company
which have occurred between the end of the financial year 2022-23 to which the financial statements relate
and the date of the report.

26. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act, Directors, to the best of their knowledge and
belief, state that:

a. In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standardshave been
followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures, if any;

b. Appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and have
made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, so as to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023 and of the profit and loss of
the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023;

¢. Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d. The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis;

e. Proper internal financial controls were followed by the Company and such internal financial
controls are adequate and were operating effectively,

f.  Proper systems are devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

27. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY,TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The particulars as prescribed under Section 134 (3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, with respect to conservation of energy, technologyabsorption and foreign
exchange earnings/outgo are set out in Annexure — “D” forming part of the report.



28. PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

The Company has in place a Prevention of Sexual Harassment policy in line with the requirementsof the Sexual
Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal
Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

During the period under review, the status of complaints received and cases filed pursuant to the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 is hereunder:

S. No. | Particulars Remarks
1 Number of complaints of sexual harassment received in the year Nil
2 Number of complaints disposed off during the year Nil
3 Number of cases pending for more than 90 days Nil
4 Number of workshops on awareness programs against sexual harassment Nil
conducted during the year
5 Nature of action NA

29. VIGIL MECHANISM POLICY

The Company has formulated and published a Whistle blower policy to provide whistle mechanism for
employees including directors of the company to report the genuine concernsand ensure strict compliance
with the ethical and legal standards across the Company in compliance with provision of section 177 (9)
of the Companies Act, 2013. The same can be accessed at following web link:
https://www.lavamobiles.com/investor-relations/policy.aspx

During the year, no complaint was received under the above mechanism.

30. STATEMENT INDICATING DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT
POLICY

The Company has in place a Risk Management Policy for identification, assessment, measurement and
reporting of business risks faced by the Company. The Risk Management Committee oversees the Risk
Management framework. Risk Control and Mitigation mechanisms are tested for their effectiveness on
regular intervals.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was constituted by a resolution of the Board dated July 24, 2017 and
was reconstituted from time to time. The Risk Management Committee as on 31st March 2023 comprised of the
following members:

Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Hari Om Rai Chairman

2 Mr. Shailendra Rai Member

3 Mr. Vinod Sharma Member

4 Mr. Sunil Raina Member

5 Mr. Asitava Bose Member

During the Financial Year 2022-23, no meeting of Risk Management Committee was held.

Further, the Risk Management Committee was last reconstituted on April 16, 2024. The Committee currently
comprises of the following members:

Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai Chairman




N

Mr. Ajay Kumar Singh Member
3 Mr. Sunil Raina Member

31. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS / COURTS /
TRIBUNAL IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATION IN FUTURE

There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts / Tribunal which wouldimpact the
going concern status of the Company and its future operations. Hence, disclosurepursuant to Rule 8 (5) (vii)
of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is not required.

32. EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION

Under the various ESOP Plan, a total of 4,97,27,450 numbers of stock options were outstanding atthe end of the
year under consideration. Details of options vested, exercised and cancelled are provided in note 36 to
Financial statement and Annexure -E to this report.

33. DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME OF
ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM THE BANKS
OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF

During the period ended March 31, 2023, your Company has not made any one time settlement in
respect any loan taken from Banks or Financial Institutions.

34. DETAILS OF PROCEEDINGS UNDER THE INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016

During the period ended March 31, 2023, neither any application is made nor any proceeding is pending under
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

35. LOANS FROM DIRECTOR

Pursuant to the provisions of section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 2(1)(c)(viii) of
(Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, during the financial year, the Company had borrowed
money from its Directors as tabulated below and at the time of giving the money they had also furnished a
declaration to the company, that the money has not been given out of funds acquired by borrowing or
accepting loans or deposits from others:

Sr. Name of the Director Date of Borrowing/ Amount (In Rs.)
No. Repayment
1 20-05-2022 34,000,000
2 30-06-2022 35,000,000
3 30-08-2022 15,000,000
4 02-01-2023 10,000,000
Total Borrowings 94,000,000
1 Mr. Hariom Rai 25-05-2022 34,000,000
2 31-05-2022 800,000
3 31-12-2022 10,000,000
4 06-03-2023 15,000,000
5 06-03-2023 35,000,000
Total Repayment* 94,800,000

*Excess payment has been made against outstanding balance as on 01st April 2022. Outstanding balance as
on 31st March 2023 is Rs. 5,200,000.

36. REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS

During the year under review the Company has paid remuneration and sitting fees to the following directors as



follows:

Sr. Name of Designation Gross Sitting Fees

No. Director Remuneration

1 Hari Om Rai Managing Nil Nil
Director

2 Shailendra Rai Whole time 1,11,93,120 Nil
director

3 Vishal Sehgal Director Nil Nil

4 Sunil Bhalla Director Nil Nil

5 Rahul Kansal Independent Nil 4,20,000
Director

6 Chitra Gouri Independent Nil 3,20,000

Lal Director

7 Vinod Rai Independent Nil 6,00,000
Director

8 Vinod Sharma Independent Nil 2,20,000
Director

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

Your Directors acknowledge with gratitude the co—operation and support extended by Banks, Financial
Institutions and various agencies of the Central Govt. and State Govt. Your Directors would also like to
express appreciation to the external advisors and consultants of the company for their constant co-operation
and cordial relations with the company during the period underreview.
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Whole Time Director
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Annexure — “A”

Form AOC-1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate companies/joint
ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each direct subsidiary presented with amounts in Rs. milion)

Sl. . .
No. Particulars Details
- * Lava International Lava Technologies Xolo International
1 N f th bsid —_— —_—
ame ot the subsidiary (HK) Ltd. DMCC. (H.K.) Ltd.
(Console) .
(Based in Hong Kong) (Based in Dubai) (Based in
Hong Kong)
2 The date since when 20/12/2010 20/02/2017 10/02/2015
subsidiary was acquired
Reporting period for the
subsidiary concerned, if
3 . .
different ffom the holdlng . NA NA NA
company’s reporting period
4 Reporting currency and
Exchange rate as on thelast Converted Converted *Us Converted
date of the relevant Financial *HK inRs. *AED inRs. $ inRs.
year in the caseof foreign
subsidiaries
5 Share capital 10.00 57.48 18.37 339.74 0.01 0.83
6 Reserves & surplus 265.01 2774.37 22.02 492.72 7.64 628.62
7 Total assets 386.77 4049.19 57.62 1289.31 21.31 1750.97
8 Total Liabilities 111.76 1170.13 17.23 385.54 13.64 1121.29
9 Investments 6.19 64.80 - -
10 Turnover 1354.58 13879.51 158.69 3471.97 124.24 9978.98
11 Profit before taxation 21.62 221.54 1.74 38.07 1.81 145.37
12 Provision for taxation - - - -
13 Profit after taxation 21.62 221.54 1.74 38.07 1.81 145.37
14
Proposed Dividend - - - - -
15 Extent of shareholding 100% 100% 100%




Sl

Particulars
No.
Lava
1 Name of the subsidia Technologies China Bird Centro America,
y LLC S.A (Console)
(Based in USA) (Based in Panama)*
. o 14/05/2018 16/09/2021
2 The date since when subsidiary
was acquired
Reporting period for the subsidiary NA NA
concerned, if different from the

holding company’s reporting period
3

Reporting currency and Exchange

rate as on the last date of the . Converted
4 relevant Financial year in the case usb INR usb$ in Rs.

of foreign subsidiaries
5 Share capital 0.40 28.79 16.35 1203.67
6 Reserves & surplus 0.11 8.67 8.30 682.10
7 Total assets 0.52 42.68 50.36 4138.62
8 Total Liabilities 0.01 1.22 25.71 2112.87
9 Investments - 15.15 1245.04
10 Turnover - - 68.16 5474 .44
11 Profit before taxation - - 2.98 239.59
12 Provision for taxation - - 0.02 1.41
13 Profit after taxation - - 297 238.17
14 Proposed Dividend - - -
15 % of shareholding 100% 100%

*China Bird Centro America, S.A became subsidiary of lava international w.e.f 16" September’ 2021.



Sl. Particulars Details
No.
Sojo . .
Name of the Lava Sojo_ Manufacturing So; quufacﬂ:m
1 subsidiary Enterprise Distribution Services %
Limited Private Limited Private Limited W
SDPL (SMSPL) (SMSAPPL)
2 The date since when  [25/07/2016 27/05/2016 02/06/2016 27/05/2016
subsidiary was acquired
Reporting period forthe
subsidiary concerned, if NA NA NA NA
3 different from the
holding company’s
reporting period
Reporting currency and
Exchange rate as on
4 the last date ofthe INR INR. INR INR
relevant Financialyear
in the case of foreign
subsidiaries
5 Share capital 52.50 0.10 22.20 39.60
6 Reserves & surplus -1.23 -10.02 -1.46 -2.15
7 Total assets 51.58 17.53 31.28 38.11
8 Total Liabilities 0.32 27.47 10.55 0.66
9 Investments 50.43 11.84 0.20
10 Turnover
11 Profit before taxation -0.12 -5.94 -0.15 -1.49
12 Provision for taxation -0.17 -2.61 0.10
13 Profit after taxation 0.05 -3.32 -0.15 -1.59
14 Proposed Dividend - - - B
15 % of shareholding 99.05% 90% 99.95% 99.97%
Notes:-
1) Reporting period for all the aforesaid entities are 318t March 2023
2) Closing Exchange Rate for balance sheet : HKD 1 = Rs. 10.4689 ; AED 1=Rs.22.376; USD 1 = Rs. 82.1807,
3) Average Exchange rate for Profit & loss a/c : HKD 1= Rs. 10.2463 ; AED 1= Rs. 21.8789; USD 1=Rs. 80.31
4) Historical rate for Share capital ; HKD 1= 5.75 ; AED 1= 18.49 ; USD (Xolo) 1 =64.24 ;USD (LLC) 1=71.99 ; USD (CBC) 1= 73.61

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations

2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year




Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies andJoint

Ventures
Name of associates/Joint Ventures MagicTel Solutions Pvt. Ltd.
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date As at 318t March 2023
2. Date on which the Associate or Joint 1711212012

Venture was associated or acquired

3. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the
company on the year end

- No.T 2500 shares of Rs. 10/- per share
- Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture! Rs. 25,000
- Extend of Holding% ! 25%
5 —
4. Description of how there is significant influence 25% of shareholding is held by the
Company

5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not

consolidated Not Applicable

6. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest Rs. 12.87 million (25% is considered in
audited Balance Sheet consolidation of financial statement)
7. Profit for the year
i Considered in Consolidation Rs. (0.18) million
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation Nil
Notes:

1) Amount of investment in joint venture/associate is based on the carrying value of investments inthe standalone
financial statements of venture/investor.

Yamuna Electronics ManufacturingCluster
Private Limited

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date As at 315! March 2023
2. Date on which the Associate or Joint 02/02/2016

\Venture was associated or acquired
3. Shares of Associates/Joint Venture held by the

Name of associates/Joint Ventures

company on the year end
- No.’ 6,227,939 shares of Rs. 10/- per share
- Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture ! Rs. 62,279,390
- Extend of Holding%1 45.33% (effective holding)
Through the shareholder agreement of
4. Description of how there is significant influence Yamuna Electronics manufacturing

cluster private limited.

5. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not
consolidated

6. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest Rs. 47.97 million (45.33% is considered in
audited Balance Sheet consolidation of financial statement)

7. Loss for the year

i Considered in Consolidation Rs. (0.04) million

ii. Not Considered in Consolidation Nil

Effective holding of the Company has been considered for above information.

Amount of investment in joint venture/associate is based on the carrying value of investments in thestandalone financial
statements of venture/investor.



To,

“Annexure B”

FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2023
[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members of

LAVA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED

Regd. Off: B-14, House 2, Basement,
Shivlok Commercial Complex, Karampura,
New Delhi- 110015

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Lava International Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”).
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and
authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
Company has, during the audit period ended on March 31, 2023, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

» We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records

maintained by Lava International Limited (“The Company”) for the period ended on March 31,
2023 according to the provisions of:

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there under;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made there under to the
extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings; However, according to regulation 10 of Foreign Exchange Management (Overseas
Investment) Regulations, 2022 Company have Overseas Investment which is required to be
reported by the company through annual performance report to the RBI every year by 31st
December.

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the Company: -

a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011; Not Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
Not Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018; The Draft offer document filed with Security Exchange Board of India
(SEBI) on September 29 ,2021 by the Company was returned by the Market Regulators to
the Company on January 13, 2023 with an advice to refile it post applicable
updates/revisions.



d. (d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee benefits and Sweat
Equity) Regulations, 2021; Not Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2021: Not Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

f. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act, 2013 and dealing with client; Not Applicable as
Company is an unlisted Company.

g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021; Not
Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018; Not
Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

i. The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with any stock exchange(s); Not
Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

j.  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing obligations and Disclosures Requirements)
Regulations, 2015; Not Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

V. The Memorandum and Articles of Association.
» We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with any stock exchange(s); Not
Applicable as Company is an unlisted Company.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, and Standards mentioned above.

» We further report that the Company has, in my opinion, complied with the applicable
provisions of Companies Act, 2013 as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs and rules made
there under along with the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, with
regard to:

a) Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries therein;

b) Closure of the Register of Members.

c) Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies and the
Central Government; Service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar
of Companies;

d) Notice of Board Meetings.

e) The Meetings of Directors including passing of resolutions by circulation;

f) The Annual General Meeting for Financial Year 2021-22 was held on 30.12.2022.

g) Minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of the Board;

h) Approvals of the Members, the Board of Directors, and the government authorities, wherever required,;

i) Constitution of the Board of Directors, appointment, retirement and reappointment of Directors;

i) Appointment and remuneration of Auditors;

k) Transfers and transmissions of the Company’s shares and issue and dispatch of duplicate certificates of
shares;



[) Borrowings and registration, modification and satisfaction of charges wherever applicable;

m) investment of the Company’s funds including investments and loans to others;

n) Form of Balance Sheet as prescribed under Part |, form of statement of profit and loss as prescribed
under Part Il and General Instructions for preparation of the same as prescribed in Schedule Il to the
Act;

o) Directors’ Report;

p) Contracts, common seal, registered office and publication of name of the Company; and

q) Generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made under the Act.

» We further report that:

e The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted. There are no changes in the composition
of the Board of Directors during the financial year 2022-2023 as per the provision of the Companies
Act, 2013. Adequate notice is given to all Directors to attend the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed
notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance.

e The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various provisions of the Act; and

e The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility of
appointment, their being independent and compliance with the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics for
Directors and Management Personnel,

o We further report that
There are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations
and guidelines.

» We further report that
e During the audit period there was no specific event/ action has major impact on the affairs of the
Company in pursuance of above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc.

e This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and forms an
integral part of this report.

For Kumar Wadhwa & Company
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Place: New Delhi SANJAY KUMAR
Date: 25/06/2024 (Partner)
C.P. NO. 7027

UDIN: F009211F000614959



Annexure A to Secretarial Audit Report
To,
The Members of
LAVA INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
Regd. Off: B-14, House 2, Basement,
Shivlok Commercial Complex, Karampura,
West Delhi- 110015

Management’s Responsibility

1. It is the responsibility of management of the Company to maintain secretarial records, devise proper
systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and regulations and to ensure that the
systems are adequate and operate effectively.

Auditor’s Responsibility

2. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, standards and procedures followed
by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances.

3. We believe that audit evidence and information obtained from the Company’s management is adequate and
appropriate for us to provide a basis for our opinion.

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the management’s representation about the compliance of laws,
rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

Disclaimer

5. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted affairs of the Company.

6. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.

For Kumar Wadhwa & Company
Company Secretaries

Sd/-

Place: New Delhi SANJAY KUMAR
Date:25/06/2024 (Partner)
C.P. NO. 7027

UDIN: F009211F000614959



Annexure - C
1.  Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

Lava International Limited (“Company”) recognizes that its business activities have wide impact on the societies in
which it operates, and therefore an effective practice is required giving due consideration to the interests of its
stakeholders including shareholders, customers, employees, suppliers, business partners, local communities and
other organizations. The company endeavours to make CSR for sustainable development. The Company through
its CSR Committee shall identify the activities/projects in line with Section 135 read with Schedule VI of the
Companies Act 2013 and the Rules made thereunder Our company is committed for better utilisation of CSR funds
so that it can serve the of public at large.

2. Composition of CSR Committee:
The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was constituted by a resolution of the Board dated September 22,

2014 and the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee as on 318t March 2023 comprised of the following
members:

Number of Number of meetings
S. No.| Name of Director Designation/ Nature of meetingsof CSR | ofCSR Committee
Directorship Committee held | attended during the
during the year year
1 Mr. Rahul Kansal Chairman /iIndependent Director 1 0
2 |Mr. Hariom Rai Member/Managing Director 1 1
3 |Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai |Member/Whole Time Director 1 1

Further, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was last reconstituted on March 26, 2024. The Committee
currently comprised of the following members:

Sr. No. Name of member Designation
1 Mr. Sunil Raina Chairman

2 Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai Member

3 Mr. Anupam Shrivastava Member

3.  Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the boardare disclosed on the website of the company: https://www.lavamobiles.com/csr.pdf

4. Provide the details of Inpact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable: Not
applicable.

5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate SocialResponsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
year, if any: Rs. 237.68 Lakh

6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5).: Rs. 5014.2 Lakhs.

7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): Rs. 100.3 Lakhs
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or activities of the previous financialyears.: Nil

(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil

(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b- 7c): Rs. 100.3 Lakhs



(@) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (in Rs. Lakh)
1;)tal Amount Total Amount transferred Amount transferred to any fund specified
pentfor the .
Financial Year. to Unspent CSR Account undgr Schedule VIl as per second proviso to
(in Rs. Lakh) as per section 135(5)
section
135(6)
Amount Date of Name of Amount Date of
transfer. the transfer.
Fund
100.3 NA NA NA NA NA
(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8
Location of Amount | Mode Mode of
Item from the Loca the spent for | of implementation
Sl Name of the listof activities | project. the implem | -Through
No. Project in schedule VII area project | entation implementing
to the Act. (Yes/ (in - agency.
No). Distr | Lakhs). Direct CSR
State. ict. (Yes/No) Name. registratio
. nnumber.
1 Design and YE DELHI 100.30 NO M/s CSR000244
Fabrication of |Contribution to S Graphic 77
RF energy incubators or Era
harvesting research and Educational
framework for |development Society
battery projects
operated
devices.

Amount spentin Administrative Overheads : Ni/
(d) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Nil

(e) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): Rs. 100.3 Lakh
(f) Excess amount for set off, if any: Rs. 237.68 lakh (will be setoff in succeeding years)

10.

11.

(a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil

(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):Nil

In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created
or acquiredthrough CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable

Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as
per section135(5).: Not Applicable




Annexure - “D”

INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 134 (3) (m) READ WITH THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES 2014 AND
FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTOR’S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023.

FORM A
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY:
a) Energy Conservation measures taken:
The operations of the company are of such nature that energy consumption is on a lower side.
However, your company continues to invest in replacement of low energy efficiency systems and
take adequate measures in order to conserve energy.
b) Alternate sources of energy:
The Company is not required to look for alternate source of energy due to its nature of business.
c) Capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s:
NIL
FORM ‘B’

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT

1. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R&D)

The main objectives of R & D (Software & Hardware) unit established by the company include:

The R&D unit of the Company has been set up with an objective to design & develop
hardware and software of affordable flagship smart phones and feature phones and also
import substitution, cost reduction and to become more competitive in domestic and
global market.

The R& D center has been established to enable development of local eco-system of
mobile manufacturing in India which is in line with Govt. of India vision for developing this
industry and thereby generating huge employment opportunities in the country.

a. Specific Areas in which Research and Development (R&D) is being carried out by the
Company

The company has established state of the art R&D center at Noida Sector 64 in order to
design & develop Feature phone and Smartphones, the R&D Center has accorded by
DSIR. Lava R&D Center has end to end capabilities for Industrial design, Mechanical
design and Hardware and Software design.

Currently from Design Center 100% Feature phones has been designed, schematized,
developed and manufactured to meet the requirements of domestic as well as
globalmarket. We have built up capabilities to deliver 5G phones and successfully
delivered Smart phones from design center which deliver better UX experience and
durability level.

Developed ability to design device drivers in areas of MIPI, 12C, Linux Imaging interface
and tuning and aide end to end development of camera hardware in India.



b. Benefits derived as a result of the above efforts -

[¢]

o O O O

Customer Satisfaction
Cost reduction
Technology edge
Better product

enhancing Make in India by building phone manufacturing eco-system and developing
state of art technology in terms of Hardware and software for same.

c. Future Plan of action

Project Deliveries and to develop and build software solutions which enables the customers to engage with right
content and services and also build solutions for better customer experience and features.

d. Expenditure on R&D*

*

FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Expenditure Amount (in Rs million.) Amount (in Rs million.)
Amount Charged to Statement of Profit & Loss 155.88 128.92
Amount capitalized
(i) Intangible Assets - -
(i) Property, plant & equipment 11.89 10.36
TOTAL 167.77 139.28
Total R & D Expenditure as a 0.71% 0.76%

% of Total Turnover

Above figures are shown on standalone basis.

2. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, ADAPTATION AND INNOVATION

a. Efforts made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation

The company is having in-house technical department which keep on updating the company
with the latest technology available in market related to mobile industry. The company is using
latest technology in its products and keep on updating its products in terms of quality and
technology. The company also arranges sessions on regular basis for its employees and impart
technical knowledge and training to keep them abreast with the latest technologies in the
market.

b. Benefits Derived as a result of the above efforts.

We are able to deliver quality products in the hands of the customers in terms of new features in the
handsets we keep on updating the technology in our products.

¢. Information about Imported Technology

| Technology Imported: N.A.

I Year of Import: N.A.

[ Has Technology been fully absorbed: N.A.

\Y) If not fully absorbed, areas where this has not taken place, N.A.
reasons therefore and future plans of action.




3)

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

Activates relating to exports, Initiative taken to increase Export, Development of new export markets
for products, Export Plans:

The Company had exported its material, considering the increasing demand of mobile handsets all
over the world. The company is planning to export its products in the Asian and African
Countries in the forthcoming financial year.

Total Foreign Exchange used and earned

(Rs. In Million)
FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22
Amount (in Rs Amount (in Rs
million.) million.)
Earnings FOB value of exports 415.72 1162.75
CIF value of imports 12,363.40 11,237.10
Out go
Expenditure in Foreign Currency 140.49 83.70




EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION

Annexure-E

Lava Employee Stock

Lava Employee Stock

Lava Employee Stock

S;' Particulars Option Plan 2020 - | (“ESOP Option Plan 2020 - Il Option Plan 2015 Total
’ 202041”) (“ESOP 2020-I1”) (“ESOP 2015”)
Number of Options granted
! during FY 2022-23 12,01,872 ; . 12,01,872
Number of Options vested during
2 EY 2022-23 19,83,394 } ) )
Number of
3 Options Settled/exereised during 1,52,969 - - 1,52,969
FY 2022-23
4 Number of shares arising as a
result of exercise of options - - -
Number of options forfeited /
5 lapsed during FY 21-22 4,82,907 - - 4,82,907
The Exercise Price ( weighted
6 average for the grant made 24.86 - - -
during the year)
7 Variation of the terms of option } } .
8 Money realized by exercise of -
options - -
Total no. of options in force as at
° 31.03.2023 91,35447 2,04,44,744 2,01,47,358 4,97,27,550
Employee wise details (hame of
employee, designation, number
of options granted during the year } } }
(2022-23), exercise price) of
options granted to
(a) Key Managerial Personnel; } } }
Alok Shrivastava, 87203
options, Exercise Price- } } }
Rs.24.86
Kushal Singh Chauhan,
69762 options, Exercise } } }
Price- Rs.24.86
Shatrudra Mishra, 61042
(b) Any other employee who 0pt|onsk|§x;£cé%e Price- - - -
receives a grant in any one year m ——
10 of option amounting to 5% or Bijay Kumar Dubey, 61042

more of options granted during
that year; and

options, Exercise Price-
Rs.24.86

Anurag Bansal, 139525
options, Exercise Price-
Rs.24.86

Amit Gupta, 69762 options,
Exercise Price- Rs.24.86

Rajinder Kumar, 69762
options, Exercise Price-
Rs.24.86

(c) Identified employees who
were granted option, during any
one year, equal to or exceeding

1% of the issued capital
(excluding outstanding warrants
and conversions) of the company
at the time of grant




RAJ GUPTA & CO. 1839, SECTOR 22-B

W_thghred@m&ts_ Chandigarh-160022
| E-mallg carajguptaco@gmail.com Mob: 9815643637
Web Site www.carajguptaco.com Mob: 7889279571

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the members of Lava International Limited

Report on the Audif of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

\}f’e have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Lava International Limited
( ‘_the Company™), which comprise the standalone balance sheet as at March 3 1, 2023, the standalone
statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the standalone statement of
changes in Equity and the standalone statement of cash flows for the year then ended, including a

summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (herein after referred
to as “the standalone financial staternents™), '

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act; 2013,
as amended, (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles
. generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit

glcludjng other comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flow for the year ended on that
date. : '

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our-audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
-Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Act(SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the-Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the standalone financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“the ICAT") together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made-fhereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the Directors’ Report and the related annexures but does not include the standalone

financial statements and our report thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is 4 material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Other Maﬁer

The standalone:- financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, were audited
by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on September 30, 2022.

Balancqs amounting to Rs. 6,635.50 million of aged trade receivables and other receivables have
been adjusted on account of expected credit loss in the retained earnings in the current financial year
as it pertains to earlier financial years. ' '

Respousibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone
Finaneial Statements '

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to-the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial perfotmance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India: N - _

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions ‘of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and. estimates that are reasondble and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the _
accuracy and completeness of the dccom tinig records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing' the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern bagis of ‘accounting unless management either intends to
tiquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also respohsibie for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process. ' '

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
‘report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.
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_A_s part of an aus‘lit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements
whet_her due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and’
obtain audit f:viden_c_e that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting fron fraud is higher than for one resulting from

€rTor, a3 fra_ud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control,

¢ Obiain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of actounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on'the Company’s ability to continue as & going
‘concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in

~our auditor’s reportto-the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such
“disclosures are inad » to modify ‘our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
rice Obt p1o the - guditors’ report. However, fisture events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue'as a going concern.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements ini the standatone financial statemenits that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the standalone finaticial statements may be influenced; 'We consider quantitative materiality and
qualifative factors in (i) planning the scope-of our audit Work and in evaluating the results of our
work; and - (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial
statemnents. ' e : '

We éommuniéaié with those charged w;thgovemanceregardmg, among other matters, the pia‘nm?d.
sc-opc and timing of the audit and _'sign_iﬁcant audit-ﬁnd_iﬁgs, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit, ' '

We also providé:;those charged véith_goyiefnéﬁ'cé wlth a sta'tément that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards. : .
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

L. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report} Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of Section 143 of the Act and on the
basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanations given to us, we give in Annexure A, a statement
on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our oginion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(¢) The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Income, the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and the Standalone
Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books.of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amendad;

{¢) On the basis of the written representations teceived from the directors as on March 31, 2023
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on Match
31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act;

® Withrcspccttoﬂle adcquacyofthemﬁemal financial controls with reference to the stanidalone

- financial statements of the Company énd the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
‘our separate report-in- .

- Annexure B. OQur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the
‘adequacy and .operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with

reference to the standalone financial statements;

(g In eur-':_i}jjizﬁon, 'the managerial rem_unération for the year ended March 31 » 2023 has been paid
 provided by the Company to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197
read with Schedule V to the Act. 3 _

(h) With respect to -_t}_ie: other miatters to be included in the Audi_térs’ Report in accordance with
the requirements of Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to

() The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its standalone financial statements — Refer Note 31 to the standalone financial statements;

(i) 'f‘h’e Company has made ;Q_tov_is'ion, as required under the applicable law or accounting

standards, for material foreseeable Josses, if any and to the extent ascertainable, on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts; and
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@) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company;

@) (@

®)

©

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 48 to the standalone financial statement, no funds have been
advanced or foaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 49 to the Standalone Financial Statement, no funds have been
received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whetlier, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

'Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the

like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

Based on suchaudltpmcedures that we considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances; nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations-under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement; and

) The Company has not declared qnd.pa‘id dividend during the year.

For Ra_; ‘Gupta ax’i_d Company

Firm Re

Partner .

- Chartered:Acco

LETE)
i

untants

 No. 000203N

Menmbership No. 553645

U.DIN: a5 5?;6 Y S.SK-L% thS B&6

Place: Noida _
Date: March 26, 2024
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Lepal and Regul
oo ropect o oo o g egulatory Requirements’ section of

® @

(b)

(©

@

)

(A) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative dctaxls and
situation of property, plant, and equipment.

B) A;{:ortf{i‘ng_ 10 the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant, and
equipment by which all the items of property, plant and equipment of respective locations
are verified at least once in every three years, In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
property, plant, and equipment. In accordanice with the programme, the Company has not
physically verified property, plant, and equipment during the year and hence, we are
unable to report on the discrepancies, if any, '

Acc?rding 1o the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not hold
any immovable property. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3 () {¢) of the Order is
not applicable.

Accardmg to the mfonnatlon and expl ations given to us, the Company has not revalued
any of its Property, Plant and' Equipmen _-(mcludmg Right of Use assets) or intangible
assefs-or both during the year.

AccOrdlng o #rifopmation and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed by
us, there are'no: proccedmgs initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Aect, 1988 (45 of 1988) and
rules made thereunder.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the inventory, except goods-
in-transit, has been physwally verified at reasonable intervals by the management during
the year. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the
management is. approprlate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each
class of inventory were noticed on such vcnﬁcaﬁon between the physical inventory and

the book records

The Company has been sanctloned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees,

" in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets during the year,

@) @
®)
i) @

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the qumterly returns or statements filed by the Company
with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the books of account of the

Company.

On the basis of examination of records of the Company and information and explanation
given to us, during the year the Company has not provided any security or granted any
loans or advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
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Limited Liability Partnerships, or any other parties except guarantees given to other parties
in respect of certain purchases on credit terms,
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and audit procedures performed

by us, we are of the opinion that the invesiments made are not prejudicial to the interest of
the Company.

(¢} Based on the records examined by us and information and explanation given to us, the
Company has not given any loans secured or unsectred, to any companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties hence the reporting requirement of Clause 3 (1)),
(d), (2), (f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company, l

(iv) The Company has not granted any loans or provide any guarantees or securities to parties
covered under Section 185 of the Act. Further, provisions of Sections 186 of the Companies

Act, 2013 in respect of loans, investments, guarantees and security have been complied with
by the Company.

(v) Th@iCOmPaﬂy has hot accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from
the public. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is riot applicable.

(vi) The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for the products of the Company. We have broadly
reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to the Companies (Cost
Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended, specified by the Central Government under sub-
section (1). of Section 148 of the Act and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the preseribed
cost records have been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed

--examination .of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or
 complete. -

(vii) (a) According to the information. and explanations -given to us and on the basis of our
-examination of records ofithe Company, the:amounts deducted / accrued in the books of
accourit in respect .of ited statutory dues: including Goods and Services tax,

- Provident Fund, yees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Cess, and other material
been regular in depositing during the year by the Company

 statutory dues have generally
with the appropriate authorities. According to the information and explanations given to
us and ‘on the basis of our.examination of records of the Company, there were no
“undisputed statutory dues payable in respect of Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Customs,
‘Duty of Excise and Value: Added Tax. > _

According to the- information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

_examination of records of the Company, there were no arrears of outstanding statutory

~ dues in respect of Goods and Services tax, Provident fund, Employees® State Insurance, _
Incorne-tax, Sales tax, Service tax, Duty of Custonts, Duty of Excise, Value Added Tax,

- Cess and other material statutory dues as on the last day of the financial year for a period
of more than six months from the date they became payable,

(b) Details of statutory 3(1{3'5' referred to in sub-clausé‘-'(&) above which have not been deposited
- as.on March 31, 2023 with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute are as
follows: _
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Name of Nature of | Amount Amount Period to | Forum where
Statute the dues of Dispute | not paid | which the dispute is
(in Rs, {(in Rs. amount pending
1 = I _ ?;ﬂions) miHions) relates
ncome Tax ncome . 1.24 -16
Act, 1961 Tax 201-16 gl;;en]lﬁtzax
; - Tribunal
Income Tax | Income 25.40 20.35 2016-17 | The
Act, 1961 | Tax | Commissioner
of Income Tax
_ _ _ .. | (Appeals)
Income Tax | Income 46.11 45.11 2019-2¢ The
Act, 1961 Tax Commissioner
of Income Tax
_ (Appeals)
Income Tax | Income 8.94 8.94 2020-21 The
Act, 1961 Tax Commissioner
of Income Tax
- (Appeals)
| Bihar VAT | Sales Tax | 57.00 131.89 2009-17 | Hon'ble Bihar
Act - Commercial
Tax, Tribunal,
| Patna
Bihar VAT |SalesTax [145  [1.45 2013-14 | Assistant
Act : | Commissioner,
| Bihar
Commercial
i Chandigarh | Sales Tax | 1.08 10.76 2009-15 Pending before
VATAct | P&C High
1 Court
Chhattisgarh | Sales Tax | 0.43 0.37 2016-17 | Additional
VAT Act Commissioner
_ _ Appeals
Karnataka Sales Tax | 5.58 5.58 2013-14 Pending before
VAT Act _ Tribunal
Karnataka Sales Tax | 0.06 0,04 2012-13 Pending before
VAT Act Dept.
Kerala VAT | SalesTax | 3.53 237 2009-12 The Deputy
Act. : Commissioner
: (Appeal)
Emakulam
Maharashtra | Sales Tax | 23.77 20.84 2012-17 | Pending before
VAT Act Tribunal
Punjab VAT | SalesTax | 12.59 9.44 2009-13 Pending before
Act ' P&C High
Court
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Rajasthan Sales Tax | 15.85 9.18 2009-13 Pending before
VAT Act Supreme Court
Seemandhra | Sales Tax | 17.90 13.43 2014-15 Pending before
VAT Act and 2015- | Hyderabad
16(Jun'14 | High Court
to Dec'15)
Tamii Nadu | Sales Tax | 1.51 1.34 2011-14 Commercial
VAT Act Tax
Department,
_ Tamil Nadu
Telangana | Sales Tax | 283,70 21278  [Feb'l4to | High Court
VAT Act Mar'ls Judicature at
and 2015- | Hyderabad
- 17 _
Customs Social 23.71 2215 |Feb’18- | Pending before
Act Welfare Jul’19 .| CESTAT
Duty

(viii) According to the information provided and explanations given to us, and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any
transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessment
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year and accordingly reporting under
clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable.

(ix)

©

(@)

)

(©)
: procedures: performed by us, the term loans have been applied for the purpose for which

(d)

H

Accordmg to the mformatlon and explanatxons glven to us and audit procedures pcrfonned
by-us, the' Company has not defauibed in repayiment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to‘any lender dunng the year.

Accordmg to the mfbrmatlon and explanatlons g:ven: to.us, the Company has not been
declared 2 wzllﬁ;l defauiter by any bank or ﬁnanc'lal-mstltutlon or any other lender

Accordmg to the - mforrnauon and explanatzons gnven to us and based on the audit
the loans were obtained.

In our Opmio”n and af:co'rding to the information and explanations given to us and on an

- overall examination of the Balance Sheet of the Company, we report that funds raised on

short-terin basis have not been utifized for long- term purposes as at the Balance Sheet
date ' :

of the ﬁnanclal statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any
funds from: any entity.or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries,
assocxates, or joint ventures.

According to the information and explananons given to us and audit procedures performed
by us, we report that the Company has not raised any loans during the year on the pledge
of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures, ot associate companies as defined under
the Companies Act, 2013.
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(¢} (8 According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised
any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt

?nstruments) during the year. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
15 not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (a) .Acoording to the information and explanations given by the management and based upon
the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and fair view of the

financial statements, we report that no fraud by the Company or any fraud on the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form

ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Governinent,

(¢) Asrepresented to us by the management, no whistle blower complaints were received by
the Company during the year. :

(xii) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi
company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, the reporting under
Clause 3(xii) of the Order isnot applicable to the Company.

(xiii} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is

- in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable, for all transactions with

the related parties and the details of related: party transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) (a): Inour op‘midn and accordmgtothe infoimatio‘r_ijéii _ xﬁi@natibns given to us and based on
~.our examination, the Company has an internal audit syster commensurate with the size

‘and nature of its business:-. .

(b)We have considered the _I.ntc.méi Audit 1'ep‘?‘l'fsﬁif the Company issued till date for the
period under audit.

(xv) According to the mformatlon and explanations given to.us, the Company has not entered into
any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with them during the year
and hence, the provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (a) .-A_ccording to the infcnhation and explanations give:i to us, the .Company is not required
. .’ tobe registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

E (b) "In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given tous, the Company
" has not conducted any' Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.

o | (©) In ouf d}ﬁinion and accbrding to the information and cxp'lanations given to us, the Company
is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the reporting under Clauses 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not
applicable. . _ |
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(d) As represented by the management, the Group does not have any Core Investment
Company as part of the Group as per the definition of Group contained in the Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 and hence the reporting under
Clause 3 (xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable. .

(xvii)In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has notincurred cash losses in the current financial year as well as in the immediately preceding
financial year,

(xviii) There has been resignation of the previous statutory audifors and there are no issues,
objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

(xix} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial
ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the
Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, whicl causes us to believe that
any material uncettainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of Balance Sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as 1o the future viability of the company. We further state that dur reporting is based
on the:facis up-to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any
assurance thatall liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the Balance Sheet date,

will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) in-bur opunon and according to_the-infdnnation.and-exﬁlané:ﬁdn givento us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 pursuant to any
pmject Accordmgiy, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) and (b) of the Order are not applicable.

For Raij' 'Gu'pt’s_ii'_alj_i_&{_(fgnjpany

Ao, 000203N

\

| Memberglz_i_';;:-__r{p.-__s'_s364’5 .
UDIN: QUEEB6YSRKCPH b 5886

Place: Noida
Date: Mar_c_h 26,2024

Kolkata J&K Ludhiana New Delhi Mumbai Bangalore Chennai Hyderabad Amritsar-




RAJ GUPTA & CO. 1839, SECTOR 22-B

. j E-mail: carajguptaco@gmail.com Mob: 9815643637
Web Site www.carajguptaco.com Mob: 7889279571

Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

[Referred to in paragraph 2(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report of even date]

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under Clause
(i) of sub-section (3) of Scction 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Lava
International Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company

considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (“ICAT”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficienit conduct of its business including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection-of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act. . .o

Amii_tor‘s_’.._R\_'_e'_s_p'1_}_nsil_ii!it5r

Our responsibility .is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with
' financidl statements of the Company based onour.audit. We conducted our audit in
Note.on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

lidance Note?) iss nstitute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards

1 Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements was established
and maintainied and-if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

‘Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal

financial ‘controls system with reference to standalone financial statements and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements included obtaining an “understanding of internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating efféctiveness of intemnal control based on the assessed risk, The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We belieye that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to
standalone financial statements.

Kolkata J&K Ludhiana New Delhi Mumbai Bangalore Chennai Hyderabad Amritsar




-. RAJ GUPTA & CO. 1839, SECTOR 22-B
. | Chartered Accountants Chandigarh-160022
 E-mail: carajguptaco@gmail.com Mob: 9815643637
Web Site www.carajguptaco.com Mob: 7889279571

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements

A company’s internal financial control with reférence to standalone financial statements is a process
designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of standalone financial statements for external puzposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference to standalone
financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately-and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
'to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or

disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial
statements,

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of intérnal financial controls with reference to. standalone financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management ovemc!e qf conirols,
- material misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any

‘gvaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods

are subject 10 the risk that the internal financial control with reference to standalone financial

statements. ‘may become inadequate because of changes in. conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

It our opinion; to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
‘Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system with reference
to standalone financial stafements and-such internal financial conirols with reference to standalone

ancial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the criteria for internal
ontrol ‘with reference o standalone financial statements esta%:flished by the szd;;an);_
considering the essential components of internal control stated in:the Guidance Note on Audit o
Internalmflgnancxal ‘Controls Over Financial' Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India,

For Raj Gupta and Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm RegistratofZNoApQ203N

Gaurav Jind¥
Partner 5 o4
Membership No. 553645 - .

UDIN: 41455 5645 BKLPhn S 886

Place: Noida ' :

Date: March 26, 2024 : -

Kolkata J&K Ludhiana New Dethi Mumbal Bangalore Chennai Hyderabad Amritsar
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Lava Internationsl Limited

Standalone balance sheef as at 31 Marchk 20323

(Al enrownts in Indian Rupaes million unless othervise siated)

Particulars Note No.  As at 31 March  As at 31 Maveh
2023 2022

L Assets
Non-cwrreni-assels

Property, plani and equipment 3 568.05 580.09
Capital work-in-progress 3 191.99 182.24
Intangible assets 4 14.01 12,89
Right of use assel 5 1i6,8% £30.14
Flnancial Assels
Investment in subsidiarics and assgeiate .6 4,250.55 4,256.55
Other financial asset 7} 103.39 59.72
Deéferved tax assety (net) 23 i) 30745 31549
Othér non-current assels 9 {a} 208,03 96,54
i 5,766,138 5,633.96
Current assets
Inventories 8 4,394 99 4,353,046
Finanelal assets
Invesiments 7 (b} : 2873 -
Trade reecivables 7 (c} 2,542,235 8.342.84
Cash and cash eguivalents 7 (d) 771,09 724,33
Other bask tlgnees T{e) 414.95 1,084.36
Other fnancial assels. Tw 351.33 1.049.21
Other cirrent sssers 9 (b) 254122 238000
11,544.56 18,133.80
TOTAL ASSETS 17,310.94 23,767.76
El. Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equily share capital 10 2,705.63 2,705.63 |
Instruments entirely cquity in nature to 3342 3342 |
Other equity |
Sceurities premium ' 5,690.34 5,690.34
Share based pajanent megerve; 372.14 355.41
Retained curnings _ TS0 C 7,043,146 ;
Other reserve 17.31 17.31
Tola) Equity 9,583.94 15,848,27 i
Liabilities
Non-current linhilitics .
Finuneial liabilities ]
Borrowings _ 11 (a} 279.82 524,70 [
Lease liabilitics 1 {d) 109.47 132.43 P
Previsions 12 {n) 59.34 56.51
398.63 713,73 P




Lava Internations] Limited
Standzlone balnnce sheet as at 31 March 2023
(Al cpmounts In Indian Rupees m:ffmn witless otherwise \.fafed)

Particulars Note No.  Asat 31 March  Asaf 31 Magch
20213 2022
LCurrent lisbilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 1 (b 1.815.08 1,601.33
Lease liabiitics 1) (e} 38.40 30,14
TFeade payubles _
- lofal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises e 13217 241.9¢
- tolal outstanding dues other than micro ente prises and small _ o
erierprises tl (e} 3.286.79 3\.].71-.’08
rher fingpeial Liabifities 8 8¢ 1.512.46 [,354,38
Otheer cutrent liabilities 13 301.52 406.30
Provisions 12 (b)Y 133.7% 147.35
Current lax Habilitigs (seD) 14 108.16 256,26
7,328.37 7,208.76
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 17,310.94 23,767.76
Summiary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accombanying notey forms an -En[cgraf]_ pait of these standalone financial stalements,
Ag pit our report of even date a atlached
ForRaf Gupta and Company Yor and-on bﬁha}fﬁf]thc-ﬂgard- of Dikedtors of
Chartered Accountants Lava International 1imited

Firm's Registration No.: 000203N CIN: U32201DL2009PL.C1 58920

i Shailendrs Nath Rai
Pannci Whaole-Time Ditecior
Membership No. 553645 {DIN-00%084 7}

Sunit
Whaole-Time Director
{DIN-093062069)

Asitava Bose

Chief Financial Officer

Place: Noida Place: Noida
Date: March 26, 20724 Date: March 26, 2024

Sunfl BEAIR ™ Vishal Sehgal

g

'_Dir;:ciaz:- Director
{-l')]N—{}DS)'SU{MO'} (BIN-03127049)

Corpany Secrctary

gaw em} »AF ms}wdwﬁ

Sanjeev Agarwa
Whole-Time Director
{DIN-07110183y

Preet

(M. No.- A53936)




Lava Infernational Limited
Standalone statement of profit and loss for the period ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees inillion wnless otherwise stated)

Particulars Note For the year ended For tlte year ended
No. 31 March 2023 3t March 2022
Iiecome '
Revenue from operations ) 22,0586.74 18.222.26
Other income 16 273,08 20147
Total ineome (1) 22,329.82 18,423,583
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consimed 17 16,913.71 11,473.79
Purchase of traded goods ; 739.53 2,618.31
Changes in inventories of finished goods, sparcs and 18 (0.49) 262.75
stock in trade
Employee beneilts expense 19 1,482.68 LA18.89
Other expenses 20 2,138.52 . 1,582.73
Total cxpense (11) 21,273,95 17,356.47
Earnings hefore interest, tax; deprecintion and 1,053.87 1,067.06
amortisation (EBITDA) (3D _
Depreciation anid amoifisafion expenge 21 226,61 194,83
Finange cosis 22 366.41 20817
Profit Defore tax 462.85 56406
- Current tox 118,05 261,30
- Fax charged{credit) relaling io earlier years (16.98) €16.20)
~ Deferred tax expensef{income) 8.48 (86,52
Income tax expense 23 109.55 15857
Profit for the year 35330 ' 40549

Other comprehensive fneoine .
Other comprehensive income:not to be reclassified
lo profit and loss in subssquent periods :

- Re-measurement (gains)losses of defined benefit plas 28 . (1.71) 0.07

- Income tax-relating to this flem - (0.43) (6.02)
Other comprehensive (incone)foss for the year (2,14) 0.05
Total compretiensive ifcoine foi- thié year ' 385,44 405.44.

(This space hos been Intentionally left blank)




Lava Iternstional Fimited
Standalone statement of profic and loss for the period ended 31 March 2023
(Al amonnis i Indian Rupees million wnless otherwise Sterted)

Particulars Note For the year ended For the year ended
Ne, 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Rarnings per equity share (in vupees) 24 '
Basic 0.65 0.77
Diluged .60 0.70
Sunimary of significant accounting policies 21

The aceompanying notes forms an integral part of these standalone financial siatements,

As peeour report of even date as attachid

For R4j Gupta and Company For and on bebaif ofihe Board of Directors of
Chariered Accountants Lava International Lisited

Firm’s chisll'alion No.: $00203N CIN: U32201DL2009PECE 88920

;}j o LM _,/j A

- d .,‘ R 0N .
y 5 At . .

RiFAY: = Shailendrs Nathi Ral Sunii Bhalla Vishal Schgal
Partner Whole-Timg Dirécior Diréctor Divector

Membershiip No. $53645 {DIN-G0908417) {DIN-00980040)  (DIN-03127049)

Sa u em ,%;C%W‘Q
B9

Sunil K Sanj rev A
Whofe-Time Diregtoi Whole-Tithe Ditector
{DIN-09302069) {IIN-DT7110183)
2
\l{ 4
Asitava Bose Preeti
Chief Financial Officer Company Secrelary
B (M. No.- A53936)
i"]a'cc: N(}ida © Place: Noi{;{a g\:g:%_?\
Date: March 26, 2024 Date: March 26, 2024 4/@% Sy
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Lava Tuternational Limife)

Standaloue cash flow statement for the perivd cuded 31 March 2023

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million unless otherwvise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the yeur ended
31 Marelh 2022

Cash flow from operating sctivities

Prefit befove tax

Adjustment to reconcile profst before (ax to net cash flows :
Depreciation/amortization
(Profit)f foss on sale of propeety, plunt and ¢ggipment
Unrealized foreign esxchange (gain) loss
Net {gain)}loss on sale of mutual fund investments
Fair valuc (gain)Aoss en derivative finsiicial instriment at FVTPL
Provision for $hare based payment Expenses
Provision for Invéistorfes obsolescence
Provision for trade receivables and advances
Awmortization of prepaid securily deposit’
Inierest expense
Inierest income

Operating profit before working capital changes

Movements i working capital: .
increase/ (Decrease) in {rade payables and other Yiabilities
Tnerease/ (Deerease) in provisiens

(Increase) Decrease in frade receivables

{Increase) Decredss in inventorics

(Increase) Decrease in other assets

Cash generated from aperations

income laxes paid (net of refunds)

Net cash flow-from / (nsed)-in operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment including capital work in progress

and intangibles

Proceeds frony sale of property, plant and equipment (including intangibles)

Purchase of mestual fund investments

Sole of muwal find jnvestswents

Investment in bank deposiis

Malueeity of bank deposiis

Intcrest received

Net cash Tow i‘m;_:i / {used in) investing activities (B)

Cash flow from financing activitics

Proceeds from issue of ripht shares

Proceeds from issue of rion-convertible debentures
Proceeds from borrowings {ton-current) '
Fayment of horrowiegs (son-current)

Proceeds/ (repayment) from borrowings {current) {net)
Payment of prificipat pertion of lease Habilitics
intcrest paid on lease liability

Interest paid on borrowings

Net cash from / (used in) financing activities (C)

Net inerease in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +)
Cash and cash equivalents af the beginning of the vear
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the yeunr-

462.85 564.06
226.61 194.83
{1.95) 0.08
(65.60) (215.87)
{0.30) (0.35)
1.96 (5.82)
16,83 126.69
(20.25) 5.28%
(9.20) 255.28
0.97 128
255.84 19033
(74.23) (71.06)
802.53 1,044,773
56,72 2§2.03
(10,97 (11.54)
96.87 (£.274.70)
(21.68) (1,094,78)
€294.03) (37.06)
623.68 (1,161.32)
(255.46) (386.98)
368.22 {1,548.30)
{130.66}) (402.32)
~ 3.6 0.17
(53.50) (419.98)
25.00 430.37
(2,859.66) (943.02)
2,995.09 1,441.00
48.68 37,59
28,11 143.81
- F,020.00
- 250.00
127.53 372.32
{11402 (70.65}
{94.72) 543.25
{33.80) (23.75)
{13.68) (20.78)
(215.88) {122,65)
(349.57) 1,947.74
46.76
724,33
771.09




Lava [uternational Limited
Standalone cash flow statement for the period ended 31 Marel: 2023

(AN amoients in Indian Rupees million untess otherwise stoied)

Parficuinss

Far the year ended
31 March 2823

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Componenis of cash and cash equivalents

Cash onr hand. 5.16 5.04
Balaneces with banks:
On current gecounts. 23.37 149,45
Deposits with original satisrity of loss than three months 74256 569,84
Tetal eash and cish eguivalents Jrefer note 7 () 77109 724,33

Summary ol signiticant accounting policies (refer note 2,1)

The accompanying notes forms an ii}:ti:agr:til_ part of these standalone financial statements.

The schédules referred 10 aliove and:roles on accounts form an Integral parl of the standalone cash fow statement.

The above Cash flow staternent has been prepared under the Indirect method setout in Ind AS-7"'Statenent of Cash Flow’,

Cash flow lr‘om {)pu ‘ating activities ifiglude Bs. 10.03 millions (3 1st March 2022 » ls. &, 10 milfions) being expenses towards

AS pier ourreport of even date as atached

For and an behalf of the Board of Directors of
L;wa {nternational Liinited
CTN: L32201DL2000PLC1 88920

For Raj Gupta and Company
Chartered Abumntanls
Fzrm ‘& Rpgdstegiion No D00203N
o 9]?“,30

g G

i

Gaurav Jifal Shailendra Naith Raj Suizil Bhalia Vishal Sehgal
Partner ' Whole-Time Direclor Director Director
Membership:No. 553645 1?:)'11\1-0'9908417) (UIN-{}()QSQMQ}_ (DIN-0312704%)

- v .
Goia[aeat ~HELoasL
Sanjeev Aparagl
Whole-Time Directdy

Whole-Time Dircetor

{IN-09302069) (DIN-07110183)
]‘p
1 i"ﬁ\" \
Asitava Bose ’ Precti

Chief Financial Officer Company Scerelary

[M No A53936)

Pace: Noida Place: Noida
ate: March 206, 2024 Pate: March 26, 2024




Lava International Limited
Notes to-the Provisional Finanelal Statements for thie year ended 31 March 2023
(Al conowms in Indian Rupees million nnless otfierwise stated)

1.

and is incorporated under th provisions o

Corporate informatien

Lava Fnternational Limited (the. *Company?} is engaged in trad ing and mamnfacturing of mobije phongs, starage
devices and other wireless telecommunication devices. The Company is & public company doimiciled 1n India
' £ Companies Act applicable in. India as on 27" Mareh, 2009, The
registered office of the Company is Jocited in Karampura, Defhi and the principal place of business is Noida,
Uttar Pradesh. The Coinpany: lias an in-hegse research and development center and manufacturing ficHities in
Noida.

The financial statements of the Company. for the year ended 31 March 2023 were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors i their meeting held on 26" March 2024,

Basis of preparation
a. Stafement of compliance

The standalone financial statements;of '-r_'h'c-'étqmp:auy have been prépared in accordance with Indian. Accounting
Standards {Ind-AS) as per the Cempanies (Tndian Accounting Standards) Rulgs, 2015 as amended thereafler
notified ander section 133 of Compan ies Act, 2013, (the “Act’) afid other relevaiit provisious of'the Act.

b, Basis of measurement

The financial statements have bieen _pre;__y_ared on going concern basis in.accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in India, The financial statements have been prepared an'the histerical cost basis ¢xcepl for
the Tollowing items:

= Investments in equity instrumenis of othier entities (at fair vatug through 6ther comprehensive Heorme)
- Investment in mutual funds {at fair value tirough profit or loss)

- Durivative financial instruments (at fair value through profit-orloss)

- Plan assets under defined benefit plans (at fair value through profivor loss)

- Bmployee share based paymetits (af fir value through profit o loss):

¢. Use of estimates and jndgements

The prepdration of financial staternenis il conformity with generally accepted accounting peinciples requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the-application of accounting pilicies
and the reported amounts of assets, Habilities, income and expenses. and the disclosure of contingent Hiabilites
on the date of the financial ‘statements, Actual resubts could differ from those estimates. Estimites and
undetlying assunptions are reviewed oii an ongoing basis. Any revision to accountiing, estimates are fecognized
prospectively in currend and future periods. Information aboul judgments made in applymg accousiting policies
that have e most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is included in the
following notes: '

Sighificant estimzites

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the usefid lives of
depreciable/famottizable: assets at eiich reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assels.
Uncertainties in these estimates refate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of
assets. Carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are disclosed in Note 3 and
Note 4 respectively.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of
underfying assumptions such as standard rates of inftalion, mortality, discousil rate and anticipalion of finare

salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may impact the DBOQ amount and the annual defined benefi
i oy . . . . . MR .
expenses. Carrying amount of defined benefit obligations are disclosed in Note 28, /{/fﬁité:{jﬁ}*’“;g\x,_
) . }‘ \\\

- i




Lava Internatjonat Lintited
Notes 1o the Provisional Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in dndian Rupees million unloss. otherwise stated)

Provisions for warranties — A provision is estimated for mpeclcd warranty in respect of products sold during
the year on the basis of a techuical evaluation and past experience regatding failure treuds of products and costs
of rectification or replacement, The carrying amount of provision is disclosed in Note 12:

Significant indoments

Contingent fiabilities — At each balance shieet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the Company assesses the: requirement of provisions against the outstanding contiugent liabilities.
However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement,

Tmpairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historicy] default rates observed over
expected life, the manageiment assessts the expected credit loss on outstanding financial assets.

Evaluation of indicators for impaiyment of assefs — The evalnation of applicability of indicaters of
impairment of assets requires asséssmont of several external and infernal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies

(a) Current vs Non-ciirrent elagsification

The Compauy presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based ei-current/ non-current classification. An
assetis treated as current when itis;

E‘xpected to be realized of infended to be sold or consuemed innormal operating cycle

Held primarily for the purpose of trading

Iz»xpectcd to be realized within twelve months afier the teporting peried, of

Cash or cash equivalent unless-restricted from being exchanged orused to settle a liability for at Jeast
twelve months afier the mpcsrtmg period

o o & @

Current dssets include the current portion of non-current financial dssels, All other assets are classified as non-
current.

A ligbiligy.is current when:

It is expecied to be seitied in.normal operating cycle

1t is held primarily for the prirpose of trading

1t Is due to be settied within twelve months afler (he reporting period, or

Thete is no unconditional right to defer the settierizent of the Hability for at least twelve months afier the
Yeporting period

* . r

Current fiabilities inclade current portion of won-current financial Habilities. The Company classifies all ather
liabilities as noicrrrent.

Deferred tax assets and Habilities arc clussified as non-current asscts and Habilities,

Operating cycle

'E‘hc-upe:at_ing cycle is the time betwien the acquisition of assels for processing and their realization i cash and
cash equivalents. The Company ‘has determined its operating cycle as {2 months for the purpese of
classification of iis assets and Habiliies as current and noti-carrent.

(b} Functional and Presentation Carrency
The Financial Statements have been presented in [ndian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company's functional
eurrency. All Financial information presented in INR has been vausided off 10 the nearest 191!& Js 45 Rer the
lcquuemems of Schedule 1T of “the Acl®, unless otherwise stated. . .
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() Property, plant and cquipment

i Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulaled depreciation ‘and impairment losses
if'any. Costs dirgetly ativibuitable to. acquisition are eapitalized until the property, plant-and équipment @' ready

for use, as infesided by the management.
#. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are eapitalised. on the carrying amount or recogrised as a separate 4$sét, as appropriate, only
when future economic. benefits associated Wwith the item are probabie to flow to the Company and cost of the
itern can bie measured reliably. All repair and maintenance are charged to stafement of profit and loss during the
reporting period i which they are fncurred,

The present value of-the expected cost for the decom missioning of the-asset afler-its use is included in the cost
of the respective asset if the recognition critexid for a provision are met.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or refitement of an item of property, plant-and equipment is determined
as the difference. between the sales: proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and fs recognised. in the
statement of profit-and loss on the date of disposal or retirement,

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date
is classified as capital advances under the rion-curient assets and the cost of assels ot put to use. before such
date are:disclosed under “Capital work in progress’.

i Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-ling basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets as below:-

Assets Usefiil Lives ' _As per Schedule 1)
Office Equipment o S Years 5 Years
Furnituye and fixtures* 5 Years 10 Years
Demonstration Fixtures 2 Years 2 Years
Vehiclos* 5 Years 0 Years
Computer and Components 3 Years 3 Years
Plant and Machinery*

Jigs I Years 1 Years

Other Plant and Mach inery 5,t5 Years 15,25 Years
Electrical Installations {0 Years FG Years

*Based on technical evalhation, the management believes that the useful lives as.given above best represent the
period over which the. management expects (o use these assels. Hence the useful life of these assels arc
different from useful life as prescribed under Part  of Schedule 17 of the Companies Acl 2043,

Leasehold Impravements are amortized. over the useful life or 14 years whichever is less.

The residual values, useful life and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each {inancial year end and adjusted praspectively, if appropriate.

T
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(d) Intangibic assets

i. Recognition and initial measierement

Intangible agsets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initiat recoghition,
assets are canied at cost Jess accumulated amortization and accurnulated impaitment losses, if any. Internally
generated. intangible assets, excluding capitalized development cosis, are not capitalized and expenditure is
reflected in the statement of profit and foss in the year in which the-expenditure is incurred.

. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditare is capitalized onty if it is probablc that the future economic benefils associated with the
expendifure will flow to the Company,

il Amaeritization

The dseful lives of intangible asscts is assessed as finite as stated below: and the assets are amortised:over their
useful lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is au indication that an intangible asset mmay be

impaired,

Assels _ . Useful Lives
Computer software {over license pefiod) 1-5 Years
Internally generated soflware 5 Years

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at feast at cach financial year end, Changes
in expected nseful life or expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodicd in the asset
are congidered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated 2s changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss wnless.such expenditure forms part-of carrying value of another assef,

Gains oi josses arising from de-recogtition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the
nét disposal proceeds and the canrying aiiount of the asset and:are recognized in the statement-of-profit and
loss when the asset is derccognized. :

Research and developmeni costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditire, incwred on an individual- project is
recognized as an intangible asset when the Company can demonstrate all the following:

«  Thetechnical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it wil be available for use or sale

- ligidntention to complete the asset

- Hsabilily o use or sell the asse! .

- How the asset will generate future economic benefits.

~ The availability of adequate resoutces to comptete the development and to nse or sell the asset |

- The ability te measure reliably the expenditure atributable to the intangible asset during development. l
|

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied ,
requiring the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. |
Amortization of the asset begins when developnient is complete and the asset is available for use. 1 is
amorlized on a straight fine basis over the period of expecied future benefit from the retated project, i.e., the
estimated useful life of oue to five years, Amortization is recognized in the stalement of profit and loss, During
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{¢} Leases

The Company adopted Ind AS 116 using the Medified rotrospective method of adeption, with the date of injtial
application on 1* April 2019, The Company has recaguized a lease liability on inttial application (ie. 1% Aprit,
2019) at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the l¢ssee’s incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initia) spplication and right-of-use asscl at an amount equal to the lease Fability,
adjosted by the amount of any prepaid of gegued fease payments relaling to that lease recognized in the
balance sheet immediately before the dite of initial application.

The Company, as-a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset and a loase Linbility for its leasing arrangements, if
the contract conveys the right to control the \ise:of an identified asset,

The contract'Conveys the right o control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an identified
asset and the Company has substautially all of the economic bengfits from. use. of the-asset and has right o
direct. the use of the identified asset. The cost of the rightsof-use asset shall comprise of the amount of the
initial measurement of the lease Liability adjusied for any lease payments made at or before the conumencement
date plus any initial direct costs incureed. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any
accumtiiated depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the
fease linbility. The riglitsof-use assets is deprecibted using the straight-line method frem the commeficement
date over the shorter of fedse term or useful life of right~of-use asset (Refer note am,

The Company measuies the lease liability utthe present valoe of the leazé payihents that are not paid at the
commencemetit dite of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the st Tate implicil in the lease,
if that rafe cai be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily detérms ¢d, the Company uses an

incremental borrowing rate.

The Compiny also. clécted to use the recognition exemptions for lease cofifracts. that, at the commencement
date, have a lease teéfm of 12 months or less and do-not contain a purchase option (short-term leases), and lease
contracts for-which the underlying asset is of low value (low-value assets).

Lessor accuui_nifig_:;_j;t;t_jsr hid AS 116 is substantially unchanged fiom lid-AS 17 Tessors will continue 1o
classify leases as either operatibg or finance Jeases using simifar prineiples:as:in Tnd AS 17. Therefore, Ind.AS
116 does not have an impact for leases where the Company is the lessor.

() Impairment of non-fitiancial assefs

The Company assessés, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired, if
any indication exists, or when annual impairmerit testing for an asset is required; the- Company estimales the
assel’s recoversble amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher ofan asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and #ts value in use. Recoverable aimount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does
not generate cash inflows that are Fugely independent of these from other assets or groups of assets, Whea the
carrying amouit of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written

down to its recoverable amennt.

In assessing value in use, the estimated futwe cash flows are discounted to theie present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and le tisks specific to the
assel. In determining fair value less cosis of disposal, recent market ransactions are taken inlo account. 1§ ao
stich transactions can be identified, an-appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calcolation on detaifed budgets and forecast caleufations. These budgets
and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
caleulated and applied to project futnre cash flows after the Fifih year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond
periods covered by fhe most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow profections in the
budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified.
In any case, this growth rate does nol exceed the long-term average growtis rate for the products,idustries, or
country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used. y RN
impairment losses, including impairment on inventorics, aie recognized in the statement oI'prcﬁI}l»;___m
FE .+ A |
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() Financial instrinnents

A financial itstrument is-any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and & financial liabitity or
oquity insitument of another entity.

Financial assets

Recognition and inftial measurement.

All Financial Assets are initially recogiiised at fair vahie. Transaetion costs that are directly atiributable to the
atquisition or issue of financial assets, which are not at fair valae throngl profit or loss, dre adjusted to the fair
value oninitial recognitio,

Classification and subsequent sireasurement

For purpases of subsequent measutement, financial assets aré classified in four categories:

- Financlal assets at amortised cost _

- Tingrigial assets at fair value through other comprehensive inconie {TVTOCI)

- Fingncial assets, derivatives and equity instruments at fair vakie through profif or toss (FVTPL)
- Equity nstruments measured at fair value thraugh other compreheisive ingome (FVTOC))

Financial-assets at amortised cost

A *financial assets® is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
‘) The asset. is held within a business model whose objective is 1o hold assets for collecting contractual
cash flows, and _
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are sofely payments of
principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount eutstanding,

This category is most applicable: to ‘the Company, After initial measvrement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised ‘cost using the Effective Interest Rate (“EIR”) method, Amortised cost is
caleutated by taking into accourit any discount or premimm on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
parl of the BIR, The BIR amaftisation. Is ingluded in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The
losses arisibg fromy impairment are iecognised in the statemeni of profit and loss. This category generaily :
applies to trade and other receivables.

Finaneial assets at VTP,

FVTPL is a residual categoty for financial asséts. Any financial mstrument, which does not meet the criteria
for calegorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FYTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial assel, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
FVTOCI eriteria, as at FVTPL. However, such clection is considered only if doing so reduces or clintinates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referced to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all chan ges recognized in
the statement of profit and foss. This category is applicable 1o investments in mutual funds.

Financial assets at FVFQCH
A *financial assets’ is classified as at the FVTOCI i both of the following criteria are met;

a)  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash ftows and seiling the :
financial assets, and '

by The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPIL
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Fitancia! agsets included within the FYTOCY category are measured initially as well as at eacli reporting date
at fair value, Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI); However, the
Company recognizes intercst income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the
statement of profit and loss, On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in
OCT is reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss (P&L). Interest carned whilst holding
EVTOCI financial asset is repotied as interest income using the EIR method,

Equity Tnvestments

Alf equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 dre mecasured at fair value. Equily instruments which are held
or trading ave ¢lassified as at FVTPL. For a1l othiei equity instearnents, the Company may make an irrevocabile
election to present in other comprehensive inconie sabiscquent chabigés in the fair value, The Company makes
such election on an instrument-by-instrument asis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
drrevocable,

If the Company decides to classify an eqaily instrament as at FVTOCI, then all fair value chauges on the |
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the-OCL. Thére is no recycling of the amounts frem OCI to ;
Stateraent-of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the Company inay transfer the cumulative :
ain.or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL calegory are measured:at:fulr value. All changes in fair value

inichuding dividend are recognized in the statemet of profit and loss,
Pe-recognition
A financial asset is de-recognized when:

~  The rights 1o receive cash flows from the asset-have expired, or

= The Compaty has transférved its rights to receive cash flows from the-asset or fas assumed an obl igation
to. pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a thisd: party under a *pass-through’
arrangetnent; and either (&) the Company: has transferred substantially all the risks and vewards of ihe
asset, or' (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retined substantially all thie risks and rewards of
the asset, but has trausferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its tights to-receive cash flows {rom an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arangement, it evaluates if and to what cxfent it has retained the. risks and rewards of ownership,
When it has weithier transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the assel, ner
Aransferred control of the asset, the Company continues 1o recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated iiability. The
transferred asset and the associated lability arc measured o a basis that reflects the righis and obligations that .
the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of & guatantee over thedransferced asset is measured at the lower
of'the original carying amount of the asset and the maximum amount ef consideration that the Company could
be required to repay.

Iimpairment of financial assets

In accordance with tnd AS 109, the Cempany applics expecied credil loss (ECLY model for measurement and
recogrition of impairment loss on the foltowing financial assets and credit risk exposure;

a. Financial assets are measured a3 amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities, deposits, rade receivables
and bank balance T
b, Loan commilmeitts which are not measured as al FVTPL

ST
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The Company. follows “simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.
The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes i credit risk. Rather, it
recogizes impairment loss allowanece based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition,

For recognition of impaitment foss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company delermines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. I credil risk has nof
increased significantly, 12-month expected credit loss (ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss. However,
if eredit visk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. 1f, in a subsequent period, credil quafity of the
instiument nproves such that there is e longer a significani increase in credit risk sincd ‘initial recognition,
then the eality reverts 10 recoguizing impairment loss aliowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expacted credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial Instrumént. The 12-montl ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which resuits from default events
ihat are possible within 12 months afler the reporting dale.,

ECL. is the differehee between all contractual cash flows thal are due to the Company in accordance with the
contract and all the.cash flows that the entity expéots to receive (Le., all cash shortfalis), discounted at the
original EIR.

The Company uses a provision mafrix fo determine impainnent loss aliowance on portfolio of its trade
receivables. ‘The provision matrix is based on its historicaily observed defanlt tates over the expected life of the
trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates, At every reporting date, the historical observed
defeult rates are updated and changes in the forward-leoking estimates are anzlyzed,

ECL impairment Joss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is fecognized as incone/ expense in
the statement of profit and loss, For the financial assets measured as at amoitized cost, contractual revenue
receivables, ECL is presented as an atlowance, i.¢., as an integral part of the meastirement of those assets in the
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net garrying amount: Until the asset mects write-off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allewance from the gross carrying amount,

Finaneial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Al financial liabilitios dre recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings, net of directly
attributablégransaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include (rade and other payables, loans and borrowings mciudzlzg bank
overdrafls, fihancial guarantee contracts and-derivative financial instruments.

Subscquent measarement
The measurement of fingncial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial Habilities at fair value througi pirofit or loss

Finaneial liabilities al fair value through profit or loss include finaicial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated npon isitial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, Financiai liabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are inciined for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
alse includes derivative financial instruments enteved into by the Company that are not designated as hcdgmg
instraments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109,

Gains or losses on fiabilities held For trading are recogpised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or luss are (fwsghatc{} s,
such at the initial date of recognilion, and ondy il the criteria in Ind AS F09 are satisfied. Eg;ﬁ Inft)ﬂ:tia
designated as FVTPL, (air value gains/ Josses attributable to changes in own credil risk are lu,nz,m.;w in OCI %
1 E_Eéalll‘if lass are nod subsequently transfierred fo statement of profit and loss. However, lluﬁf(ﬁ)iﬂpal mdy: '
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transfer the cumulative guin or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liabilily are
recoghised in the statesment of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and Borrowings are subsequently measured al amortised cost
using (he EIR. Gains and losses are recognised in statemient of profit and loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well ag through the EIR amortisation process.

Anigitised cost is caloulated by ‘taking into acconnt any discotns or préminm on acquisition and fee or costs
that are an iistegral part of the BIR. The EIR amoriisation is iheluded in finance costs in 1he statement of profit
and loss.

Finaneizl giarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issged by the Company afe thoSe contracts thag require & payiment to be made to
reimiburse the holder for a Toss it iricurs because the specifisd debtor fails to muake 2 payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a financial instrumant. Financial guaranteg contracts are recognised initially as a
Tiability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs-that are directly atiributable 1o the issuancé of the puarantee.
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance defermined as per
irhpairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less cimulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation “under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by -another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing Hability are substantially medified, such an exchange or
modification is treated us the derecognition of the original liability and the +ecognition of a new liabitity. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss,

Reclassification of financial assets

Thie Copipany determines classification of financial assefs and liabilities on initial. recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equily instruments. and financial
liabilities. For financiaf assets whiich are debt instraments, a reclassification is made on ly if there is a change in
the business model for managing those assets. If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the
reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is. the first day of the immediately next
reporting period following the change in business model, The. Company does net restate: &Ry previously
tecognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or fosses).or inferest,

Offsetting financial instrumeits

Fitiancial asset and financial Habilities are offset and the not amount is seported in the batance sheet where
there is a legally enforceable right fo offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis or realise the asset and settlé the Habiliy simultaneonsly.

(b} Derivative financial insirament

The Company uses derivative financial instruments i.e., forward currency contracts to hedge its foreign
carsency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the lair value is positive and as financial Habilities when the fair value is negative. Any
gfiins or losses arising from changes ia the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement of profit and
logs.: . ‘ S
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(i} TFair valuc measurement

The Company measure its financial instruments such as detivative at fair value at-each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to seil an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants st the measuremest date, The fair value measurentent is based on the
presumption that the transaction to self the asset or transfoer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
- Intheabsence of a principal matket, in the mest ddvaiitageous market for the asse( oi lability

The priticipal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair valive of an asset or & Hability is measured using the assumptions that narkei participants would use
when pricing the dsset of liability, asstiming that market participants act in their sconomic best interest,

A fair value measurement of 4 foti-financial asset takes into account a market particigant’s abilily to generate
economic benefits by mmg the asset in it§ highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
thai would use the asset in its highest ahd best use.

The Company uses valuation tec&mques ‘that are-appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to measuie Tair vahie; inaximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unchservable inputs..

All agsets and liabilitics for which fair vafue is mweasured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hisrarchy; described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measuremeiit as a whole;

Level |- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices’is the active markels for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2- Valuation fe_ciin_iqae_s- for which the lowest Igvel input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observalie.

Level 3- Valuation techaiques for which the lowest Jevel input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is uncbservable,

For assets and labilities thal are recognised in the financial statements on a recuiring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have ocourred between levels in the hicrarchy by re-assessing cafegorisation
(based on thelowest level input that is significant fo the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the- movements in the vaiues of assets and liabilitics which
are required to be re-measwred or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
management or its expert verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valugtion by agreeing the information in
the valuation computation Lo confracts and other relevan| documents,

(i) Inventories

Inventories are vafued at the lower of cost and net realizable value.

Cosls incurred in bringing cach product to its present location and condition ave accounted for as follows:

- Raw materials and spares: cost inclades cost of purchase and other cosls incwred in bringing the
inveoties (0 their present location and condition. Cost is deterrnined on weighted average basis.

- Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of divect maierials and fabour and a pzppqmo
- of manufacluring overheads based on the normat operating capacity, but excluding lmrmeI)gfmma
Cost is determined on weighled average basis.
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~  Traded goods: cost includes eost of purchase and othet eosts incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present Iocation and condition. Cost is determined.of first in first out basis.

Net vealizable value is the estimated sefling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the-estimated costs hecessary fo make the safe.

(k) Revenue recognition

Ind AS 115 — “Revenue from Contracts witl Customers” has been notified by MCA with effect from |5 April,
2018, vide its notiffcation dated 28" March, 2018 which supersedes Ind AS 18 — “Revenue” and related
Appendices. ' :

We accouni for revenge i accordance with Ind AS [15 *Risvenue fiom Contracts with customers” using the
madified rettospective method,

The Company has recognise revenue its accordance with Ind AS 115 by applying the following 5 sieps:
L. Tdentify the contracts with (he customers,
ii. Identify the separaie performance obligations,
iii. Determine the fransaction piice of thecontract, _ :
iv. Allocate the teansaction price to each of the separate performance obligations, and
V. Recognize the revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied.

Sale of Goods

Revemie from coniracts with customers is recugnisaﬂ-wlm;;_'_'_c_o'l_nrql of the goods. or-services are transferred to
thi Customer at an amount that reflects the consideration entitted:in exchange for those goods or services.
Revenue mainly comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods in the
ordinary course of the Company’s activitics, Revenue is shown net of GST, returns, sales Inceésitives and
discourits,

The' Comparny has concluded that. fhe Company is prineipal in all of its revenue arranpgenients since the
Company is the primary obliger in_all the revenue arrangements #s the Company has pricing latitude and is
also éxposed to inventory and credittisks. '

The Company accounts for volume discount for pricing incentives lo customers ag a reduction of revenue
based on estimate of applicable discount/incentives.

Sale of Services

Revenue from sales of services: is from installation of third party mobile applications in the handsét and is
recognized by reference. to the siage of completion, net of GST. Stage of completion is tneasured by reference
to.services performed to date as'a percentage of total services to be performed.

Interesy

For 3l financial assets measured cither at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
interest income is recorded us ing fhe EIR.

EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash paymetits or receipts over the expected Hfe of
the financial instrument or a sherter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset or to the amorlized cost of a financial liability, When caicu lating the effective interest rate, the Company
estimates the expected casly flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does
not consider the expected credit losses,

Dividend Income

Dividend Income is recognized when the Company’s right to recefve the amount has been establi
. e
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Incentive Income

The Company has recognized incentive income in forns of, Merchant export icentive income (MEIS)Y, Buty
drawback income based on export made.

Disaggregation of Revetiue
See Note 29 (Segment Reporting) to Standalone Financial Statcments for our disaggregated revenues.
Contract Balances:

Trade Receivables

A reecivable represents the Company’s right to-an amount of consideration that is unconditional,

Contract Assels

A contract asset is.a right to consideration that is conditional upon factors othier than the passage of time.

During financial year 2022-23, ontof Rs, 10.30 milfion contract assets as on 31% March, 2022, invoicing for
82.40% has been done and Rs.1.81 million is pending for inveicing,

Particulars Ag at March 31, As af March 31,

2023 2022
Balance as at beginning of the:year 10.30 million 10.04 miltion
Dediction on account of reclassified fo receivable ¢51.94) mitlion (98.41) million
Recognizid as revenwe during tieyear- 46.45 miilion 98.67 mitlion
Balance as.al end of the year 4.81 million 10:30 million

Cantraci Liabilities

A Contract Hability is-an entity’s obligation to transfer goods or services 1o a customer for vt tch the entity has
received considgration from the.customer, _ |

Particulars As af March 31, Asai March 31,

2023 2022
Balance as at beginning of il vear ' 35011 millioh 347,06 million
Deduction on account of revéniies recognized during the year  {216,77) million {206,98) mitlion
Addition on account of fransadtion §121.83 million 214,03 miltion
Balance as at end of the vear 256,17 wmillion 35611 million

Changes in the contract asset-and Hability balances during the current year, were a lesuil of nermial business
activity and pot materially itmpacted by any olher factors.

1} Foreign currencies

(i) Funetional and pre';enta%ion currency
Items included in tiie. financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the
primary economic envitewment in which it operates i.e. the “functionat cusrency”. These financial
statements are presentid in Indian rupees, which is also the presentations currency of the Company.,

(ii) Transactions and balinces

_ Foreign currency transactions are recorded in finctional currency at the exchange rates prevaiting at
" the date of transaction. Exchange differences arising on settlement of transactions, are recogmsui as
[income or expense in the year in which they arise. :
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Al the balange sheet date, all monctary items denominated in foreign custency, ate reported at the exchange
rates prevailing at the balance sheet daie and the resuitant zain or loss is regognised in the statement of profit
and loss. Non-monetaty items which are carried in ferms of historical cost denomiinated in a foreign cusrency
are.reported using the exchange rvate at the date of the transaction,

Nou-monetary iteins measured at fair value in a-foreign currency are translated using the exchange rales at the
date when the fait value is determined. Tlie gain.or loss.avising on trasslation of non-mongtary items measived
al fair value is freated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of thy item (e,
translation differences on items whose fair valte gain or Joss is recoghised in QOCI or statement of profit and
toss, are also recognised in OCT or statefient of profit.and loss, respectively).

(m) Income taxes

Current{ iricome tax

Current income tax assets and liabilfties are measured at the amount expected to be recovered: from or paid 1o
the taxation authorities. The tax rages and tax Jaws used to compute {he amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date’in Tndia,

Current tax assets and current fax tabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts, and i is intended to realize the-asset or seltle the liability on .« het basis or simuitancously,

Current income.tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recogtised eitherin other
comprelienisive income or in equity. Current tax ‘items are recogaised in corelation to. the underlying
transaction jther in OCI or directly in equity, Management pertodically évaluates positions taken in the tax
retwrns with respect to situations in which applivable 1ax regulations are subject to hiterpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriste:

Deférred Incoime Tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the Hability method, on temporary differences arising between
the fax bases.of assets and labilities-and their carying amounts in the finnticial statements as at reporting date.
Deferred tax is measured based on the ax rates and the iax laws endeted of snbstantively eiiacted at the
repoctiiig date.

Deferred tax linbilities. are recognised foralltaxable temporary differeiices, except:

- Wheh tte deferred tax lability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or. liability in
a-transaction that is not 4 business combination and, at the time of ‘the transaction, affects néither the
accouriting profit nor taxable profi or joss.

= In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaies, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the fi oresceable futinre.

Deferred tax assets are recopnised for all, deductible-temporary differcnces, the carry forward of uniused tax
credits and any unwsed fax losses. Deferred tax asséts are recogaised (o the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the dedpctible emporary differences, and the carry forward of
unused tax credits and mnused tax losses can be wtilized; except:

- When the deferred ax asset relating 1o the deductibic temporary differcnce arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and. at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accountin g profit nor taxable profit or loss.

- Inrespect of deductible temporary diffeiences. associated with fuvestments in subsidiaries,‘_gsyé;-):c.izites

and thterests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised ondy to the extent thal it [§'probable
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that the temporaty differences will reverse in the foresecable future and taxable profit will be available

against which the temporary differences can be wiilized. _
The carrying amount of defersed tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the gxteni that it is
ne longer probable that-sufficient taxable profit will be available 1o allow all or part of the deferred tax. asset to
be wtitised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recogpised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred 1ax asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax relaling 1o iteins recognised outside stolement of ‘profit and loss is recognised cither in other
compreliensive ingome or in equity. Defersed tax items are recognised in corrglation 1o the underlying
transaction either i OCT or directly in equity,

Deferred tax assets and deferved tax liabilities are offset, if a legally cuforceable right exists 1o set-ofl cmrrent
tax assefs against curent tax liabilities and the deferred tax assels and deferred taxes relate fo the same taxable
entity and the same taxation avthority,

(1) Employee hencfifs

The Company’s employee benefits mainly inclede wages, salaries, bonuses, defined contribaion plans, defined
benefits plans, compensated absences, deferred compensation and share-based payments. The employee
benefits are recoguized in the year in which the associated services are rendered by the Company employees.
Short-téem employee benefits are recognized in Statement.of Piofit and Loss at undisconnted amounts during
1hé period in which the related services are rendered,

Defined Contribution plans

The contributions to defined cantribution plans are recognized it profit or logs as and when' flie services are
rendered by employess. The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its periodic
contributions,

Befined benefits plans

In accordance-with the local laws-and regulations, all the employees in India are entitled for the Gratuity plan, :
The said plan réquirés a lump-sum payment to elipible employees (meeling the required vesting service :
condition) a1 retirement or termination of employment, based on a pre-defined foremula,

The Company provides for the liability towards the said plans on the basis of actuarial v&!ﬁ_ﬁtién-’.{;&rxicd oul a8
at e reporting date, by an independent qualified actuary using the projected unit credit wetliod,

Tlie ob) igation towards the said benefits is recognised in the Balance Sheet, af the present value of the defined {
benefits obligations, The present value of the said obligation is determined by discounting the estimated fuiure
cash ontflows, using interest rates of povernment bonds.

The interest expenses are caleulated by applying the above mentioned discount rate. to defined benefits
obligations. The intercst expenses on the defined benefits obligations are recognized in he Staiement of PMrofit
and Lass. However, the related re-measurements of the defined benefits uhligations are recogsized direcily in
the other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. The said re-nicasurements comprise of
actuarial gains and losses (arising from cxperience adjustinents and changes in actuarid] assumplions). Re-
measurements are nol re-classified to the Statement of Profit and 1.oss in any of the subsequent periods.

Other shortsferm employee henefits

The Company provides for the Hability towards the compensated absences benefits on the basis of acluarial
valuation carried out as al the reporting date, by an independent quzalified actary using the préjected-unii-
credit method. The related re-measurements are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the pericd in
which they arisc. " ' : %




Lava Infernational Limted
Notes to the Provisional Fivancial Statemients For the year ended 31 March 2023
LAl wmonty in Indien Rupees witlion wntess otheiwisi: stated)

Share based paymients

Employzes (including sehior exceutives) of the Company may alse receive repuneration i the form of share. |
based payments, whereby: employees render: services as consideration for equily instruments (squity-setifed |
transactions),

Equity-settled transactions ' :
The cost of equity-settied transactions is.determined by the fair value at:the date when the grant is made nsing |
Biack Scholes Option Pricing Model, '

That cost is recognised; together witl 4 corresponding increase in share<based payment reserves in equily, over
the period.in-which the service contditiois are fulfilled in-employee benefits expense. The cumulative sxpense
recognised for equity-seitled transactions 4t each reporting date unfif the vesting date reflects the: extent to
which the vesting period has expired aid the Campany’s best estimate of the number of equity instruhiients that
will uktimately vest. The statementof profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents. the movesnient in
cumulative expense recognised as at-the beginning. and ead of that period and is recognised in employee
benefits expense. '

Service conditions are not taken into accouny ‘when determining the grant date fair vatee of awards, but the

likeihood of the conditions being met is assessedt as part of the Conipany’s best estimate of the number of

equity instruments that will ultimately vest,

No expense is-tocognised for awards thet:do not uktimately vest bécausé service conditions have not-been met,

Where an award is cancelied by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair vahig of the
award is-expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of dilujed
carnings per share, ;

(o) Proyisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisiojis

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company: has a present obligation (legal or coistenctive) as a result of a
past event, it-is piohable that an outflow of resources embodying econontic benefits will be required to-setue
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the abligation. The expense refating o a
provision is presented in the statement of profii and loss net of any reimbursenéist,

If the-effe{;i of the time value of ntoney js material, provisions are discounted nsing a cirent pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the lability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost,

Warranty provisions

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognised when the product is sold or service previded {0 e
customer, Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of wartanty-related cosis s
revised amally.

Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decomiissioning costs of a leased facility. Decommisstoning costs are
provided at the present vafue of expecled costs to settle the obligation using estimated. cash Nows and are
recognised as part of the cost of the particularasset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that
reflects the risks specific to the decomimissioning liability, The unwinding of the discount is expensed as
incutred and recogaised in the stalement of profit and loss as & finance cost. The estimated future costs of
decommissioning are reviewed annoally and adiusted as appropriate. Chanpes in the estimated fisty .
in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of the asset. s




Lava futernational Limited
Notes to the Provisional Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
{AH amounts _fﬁ_b?_’c?imf Rupees mitlivy unless otherwise stured)

Contjirgencies

A coiitingent labitity. is 4 possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or nosi-gecirrence of one or more uncertain filure events beyornd the control of the Company or
4 present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an ouiflow of resources will he
required Lo settle the obligation. A confingent liability also arises in extremely race cases where there is a
{iabitity that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measyred reliably. The Company does tot recognize a
contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

{5} Earnings per share

Basic EP$ amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year atiributable to equity holders of the
Cotpany by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts ate caleulated by dividing the profit or loss atiributable to-equity holders of the Company
{after adjusting the corresponding income/charge for dilutive potential equity shares) by:the weighted average
number of equity shares ovtstanding during the year plus the weighted average pumber of equity shares that
worlld be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares,

(q). Operating segment

Optrating segments are reported in a manney consistent with the intemal reporting provided to the Chief
Operating Decision Maker (CODM). Only those business activities are identificd as operafing segment for
which the operating resuits ate regularly reviewed by the CODM to make decisions about resource allocation
and perfoimianes measurément.

The c_nmp_a_ny Prepares its segment information in. conformity with the aécounting policies adopted for
prepaking and presenting the financial statements ofthe Company as a whole,

() Borrowing casts

Borrowing costs to the extent directly attributable to the acquisition/construiction of assels that necessarily take
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised along with the respective praperty,
plant: and equipment up to the date such asset is ready for use. Other borfowing costs arfe charged to the
statement of profit and loss, ' ' '

{8) Cash and cash cquivalents

Cash and-cash gquivalent in the balance. sheet and for the purpose of statement of cash flows coniprise cash af
banks and i hand and short-term déposits with an original maturify of three months or less, which are subject
to an insigaificant risk of changes in value. These do not include bank balances earmarked/restricted for
speeific purposes.

(1) Equity investments (in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture)

Investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint venture are carried af cost Jess accumulated impairment losses,
if awy in separate financial statements, Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount of the
investment s assessed and writlen down immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal-of investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint venitwt, the difference between net disposal proceetls. and the carrying
ameunts are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, '

(v) Measurement of Earnings before Interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)

[nd AS compliant Scheduie IH aliows line items, sub-tine items and sub-totals to be presented as an addition or
substitution on the face of the financial statements when such presentation is relevant to an understands
the Company’s financiat position /performance. . . PR
Accordingly, the Company has elected lo present eamings before net finance cost, tax, gf_i;pr.ecrati i ahd
amortization (EBTDA) as a separate line item on the face of the. statement of profit and logss: fhe C pany
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measuees EBITDA on the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In s measurcment, the Company
doces ot include depreciation and amortization expense, finance costs, and lax expense:

(v} Exceptional itenys

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the Statement of Profit and Loss from ordinary
activities which are non-recurring and ate of such size, nature or incidence that thei separate disclosure is
considered necessary fo-explain the performance of the Company.

(v) Recent Accounting Pronowncements

Minisiry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new gtandard or amendments to the existing standardts under
Companies (Indian Aceounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. .On 31 Margh, 2023, MCA

amended the Companies -(Indian Accounting; Standards) Rules, 2015 by issuing the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standardsy Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from 1 April, 2023, as below. '

Ind AS [ - Presentation of Financial Séatervents

The amendments require compariies to disclose their material accounting policies rather thai their sighificam
accountiing: policies. Accounting policy information, togeiher with other information, is: material when it can
reasonably-be cxpected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements. The
Company does not expect this amendment to have any significant impactin its financial statements,

Ind AS 12 - Income Takes

The amendments clatify how companies account for deferred tax: on. transactions sugh as lgases and
-decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs
15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognitiol exemption) so {hat it no longer applies o transactions that, on- ifitial
recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The Comipairy % evaluating the
impact, if afly, in its financial statemients, ' :

Ind A8 8~ Accounting Policies, Changes in Accpanting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estifmites. The
definition of a change it accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates,
Under the new definition; acconnting éstimates are “monetary amounts in financia! statements that are subject
to measwrement uncertainty”, Erititiés develop sccounting estimates if ‘accounting policies require items in
financial staterents:to be measired in 4 way that ihvolves measurement uncertainty, The Company does not
expect this amendment Lo have any significant impact in its financial statements,




"1 90U UL P3QUIIS3P UII JABY FOHGM IO .ﬂmmﬁw..mﬁ. “SBuIMOLI0G 1SuESe [eregjeo s2 pamoaipodAy are wawdinba puy werd “Auadosd vieuany @ oton

[ ]

“Asunyaew pue wed sopn(au ssasBoad-wnion muden

¥7°781 507685 IS0 £TTL 90°0 %P 7§81 66’7 <10 LG8 TL0T Yoy |E 3B SY

66761 £g°85s 500 <ger - €£9 Br'se z9°¢ €69 £9°RLY €IOT YDPIBIN 1 T8 5V

_ aorg 13N

- SEIET 16D 51 Tt 6TpL e 7 L79¢ 78595 £T07 YIIRIA 1€ JE SV

- - s - - - T - - - - swaunsnips Y10

- AN | - - - S 5L £9°0. 620 ol's peenende)) ; spestdsyq

- 98'581 800 ES6T %00 $9'1 15yt ‘0 AN e8Le1 128 oy 1y o8eyp

- ST'IPIT $T0 TS SRl PSzl 97641 TUIL $9°9¢ LOIEY TTOL Y24ein I¢ B sy

- - - B - - - - - - . sjupuasnipe soy0

- 801 - - - - 6T°01 600 - - pazijende] ¢ sjesodsigq

- 6E'PS1 80'G 67 A 871 59 ors 99°] 9001t Je24 aup o] sBieyn)

B LT'L66 178 95 ZRE. ¥8LTT 971 86281 0799 B6'PE LOTILE 170Z [ady 181 sy

’ ’ ’ zogrdaadag paiepnmniyy

66161 LEIRST 980 §h's8e 11°8¢CE 7502 A [T9L 45°9¢ SETRO"T £T0T YMWIA 1T 1 sy

- - - - - - - - - - siuausnipe By

901 §9°cl - - - - ot'L oLG . 870 11 peziEnde / sesodsicy

19°01 S6ELL 900 g - 90°¢ 60°1¢E €8T . - 8L7C€] SLOPPY

7781 LTTTLT 080 SEPRE 11821 95,1 8L°L91 QTrL 5L°0¢ 8L'IL6 70T QIR 1T 1B Sy

Z - - - - - - - - - suaunsnipe 4oy

9L op £9°61 - z0°0 - - 27701 £50 - - pazyjende)) ; sesodstg

" 8861 3L78SE s - - - 69°F1 Lo - 0E0p! SUCTIPPY

9LTE P98y 096 LEPSE 11371 9L LE'E9T 9L7EL 5L9E SPILL 178z pady asy Je sy

i i . H0{gY S50.15)

ey 0L Conelles gumwmesoidu sy o T T iy seamg pae dvuion sieoneg
“pdom [epde) _ jeateieic] PIOYSEI]  HOpEISIOMN( _ RO JUBRMLIBE  pur iuTld

wandinba 3 yoeid *aadoag ¢

(P2IDIS FSINLBHTO SSEFUT BOTIUE SEEAG wripi] tf STURGWD {117
€707 YILEW 1¢ popua portad ayp 40] SJUBMIAZEIS [RIBNBUY U0IEPLEES 0] SIY0N
P30T [BRODVULIINY BAR]



Lava International Limited

Notes to stundalonie Tinancial statements for the period ended 31 RMarch 2023
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees villion unless otherwise stated)

Ageing of Capital work-in-progress; -

Particulars Amount in Capital work-in-progress for a peried of
Léss thain 1 | 1.2 years | 2-3 years {More than 3 years Total
year
Asat 31 Marck 2023
Projects in progress 10.81 183,18 . - 191.99
Projects temporurily sugpénded - . - - - -
Capital work-in-progress 10.81 181.18 - 191.99
Amounf
Prajecis which have xceeded ihelr original timeline 181.18
Projects which have execeded their original budget -
Particulars Amount in Capital work-in-progress for-a pesiod of
Lessthan 1 [ ¥-2years | 2-3 years |More tidn 3 years Total
y year
Asat 31 March 2022
Projects in progress i82.24 - - - 182.24
Projects temporarily suspended. - - . . .
Capital work-in-progress 182,24 - - « 182,24
_— Amonnt
Projects which have éxceeded their origingl tinieline -
[Projects which have exceeded their original budgel ~

(This space has been intenti onally left blank)




Lava International Limited
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(Al amors in Indien Rupees million unless otherwive stated)

4

i

fidangible assets

Particulars Computer sofiwares Internally Total
and licenses peneraléd soltware
Gross Block
As st Ist April 2021 216.39 12568 342.04
Addditions 7.7 - 7.17
Disposals - - .
Oilrer adjustments - - -
As gt 31 Mareh 2022 223.56 125.G5. 349.21
Additions 9.54 - 0,54
Disposals 0.02 “ 0.02
Other adjustments - » -
As at 31 March 2023 233.08 125:65. 358.73
Accimulated Amortisation
As al Ist April 2021 202,28 125,190 327.38
Charge for the:year 6.81 2.13 8.94
Disposals - - -
Othier adjustmenss 1,5% {1.58) -
As at 31 Marcl 2022 210,67 125.65 336.32
Chaege Tor the year 8.42 - -8.42
Disposals 0.02 - 0.02
Other adjustrtents - " -
Ax af 31 Mardh 2023 219,07 12568 3472
Net Block _
Asat 31 March 2023 14,01 . 14.81
Asat 31 March 2022 12,89 - 12.89
. Right of use asset
Particnlins Office building  Factory building  Warehouse Velticle Total
Building
Gross Block B
As at 15 Ajiril 2021 G281 159,15 2,69 - 224,65
Additions - « - - -
Disposals - - - - -
Asat 31 March 2022 62.81 159,15 2.69 - 224.65
Additions - - - 19.08 19.08
Disposais - - - L.
As at 31 March 2023 62.81 15%.15 .09 19.08 243,73
Accimulated Depreciation
As a1 15t Aprit 2021 18.58 43.64. 0.79 - 03.01
Charge lor the year 9,29 21.82 039 . 31.50
Disposals ' - - - - -
As af 31 March 2022 27.87 65,40 1.18 - 94,51
Charge Tor the year 9.30 21,82 0.40 .81 3233
Disposals - - - - -
Asat 31 March 2023 37.47 87.28 (.58 0.81 126.84
Neot Block
As at 3 March 2023 25.04 71.87 .11
34,94 93.09 [.5¢




Lava Iniernntional Limited
Notes to standatoiie financial statemeiits for the period ended 31 March 2023
(Al canaunts in Indicn Rupees million unfess otherwise sigted)

6 Investiment iy subsidisries and assoviate As af 31 March 2023 As af 31 March 2022
No of units Amount No of units Amount
Unguoted equity investients fully paidup
Envestments by equity instruments of sabsidiaries (at cos)
Equity share of 1 HKI» each fully paid up of T.ava
Intethiational {FLK.) Limited 16,000,006 57.48 10,000,000 5748
Equity share of 1 HKD each fully paid up of Xolo '
Intesnational (J1.K.) Limited 100,000 0.43 £00,000 0.83
Equity shares 0 Rs. 10 each fully paid up of Lava
EnterprisesLdmited 5,200,000 5280 5,200,000 52.00
Equity Sharepf 1000 USD each fully paid up of China Bird '
Centroamerica, 8.A. (refer note 16) 15,000 3,716.14 15,000 3,716.14
Equity shares of Rs. 10 eagh fulfy paid up of Sejo
Manufacturing Services Privitg Liaitcd 2,219.000 22.19 2,219,000 22.19
‘Equity shaves-af ' Rs, 10 each fully paid up of Sojo
Manufacturing Services (AP} Privale Limited 3,959,000 19.59 3,959,000 39,59
Fquity shgres of Rs, 10 each fully. paid up of Sojo
i stribution Privale Limited . 9.400 0,09 9,000 0.09
Lquity shares of 1000 ARD each lully paid i%p of Lava :
Technologies DMCC 18,350 33941 18,350 33941
Equity:shares of 0.00G1 USD each fully paid up of Lava '
Techinologies LJ.C. 4,000:000,000 2859 4,000,000,000 28.79
Investments in equity instruments of associate (at cost)
Equity share:of Rs. 10 'of MagicTe! Solutions Private
Limited ' 2,500 0.03 2,500 0.03
425685 4,256,585
7 Financlal assels
7 {a) Tnivestments (Ron-current) (unguoted) _ As i34 March 2023 ‘As at 31 March 2022
No:gf Units- Amount No of Units Amousit
Toviestmuits in equity instroments of othey endities ) '
{nt-figi ¥nlite chrough oiher comprehensive income)
FquzLy Share of £01 SGD cach fully paid up.of Abhriya
Ple. Tad.¥ 63,830 - 063,836 -

Aggregateamount of quoted invesiment
Agpregaie amonnt of wnqueled investiment

*As at.31 March 2023, the Company has fair valued the investment at Nil (31 March 2022 - Nil) amount as there 3s no

Tuture-econamic henelit cxpeeted from the invesiment,

(This space has been intentionally left blank}




Lava Interaational Limited
Notcs ta stamdnlose fiuscked statements for the period ended 31 Maureh 2023
LA amovnts in Indian Rupees million unless otherwise stated)

7 (I} Investments (eurrent) As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No of Units Amonnt Neo of Units Amount

Investment in Mutual funds (Quoted)(at fair value
throngh proefit ar loss)

LIC MF Overnight Fund-Regular Plag Growth 17,387 24111 - -
Union Corperale Bond Fund Regular Plan - Growth 390,%0 5.04 - -
25,15 -

Investment in Mwcunl fusids (Unguoted)(at fair value
through prafit or loss)

Canara Robeco MF « Regular Plan Growth 344,798 3.58 - -
3,58 -
o] p e e
2873 -
fe e —— T —
Aggregate book value of quoted investment ' 25,15 -
Aggregate markel value of quoted investiment 2518
Apgregale book value of unguoled nvestment : 3.58
Aggregate market value of unguoled investment 3.58 -

{This space has been intentionally leff blank)
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Notes to standatune Hicucial statcments far the period ended 31 March 2023
(AN amonts-in Hidiin Rupees million unless othertise stoied)

7¢c) T'rade recivables Asal 3 As at 3t
March 2023 March 2022
Unseeured
« Considered good $,647.06 8,810.15
- Reccivableés from refated parties, considered good {refier note 30) 848.42 765.69
~ Considered doubtiul 31.99 42.50)
9,527.47 9,618.34
Eess
- Provisian foi doubiful debis (31.99) (42.50)
- Alttowance for.credit loss (3CL) (6,953,23) {1,033.80)
2,542.25. 8.,542.84
Ageing-of trade receivables: -
Outstanding for following periods from due date
N of payment .
Purticulars Not Due Less than | 6 mouths te 1.-—-;;;2113 L-3years| More than 3 Total
6. months { year ) VRS
Undisputed trade receivables - 11,18 180.38 91780 [ 1,858.04 § 1,729.57 5,008.51 9,495.48
considered gbod
Undisputed-trade receivables -~ - - - - - - -
credit impaired
Disputed tradeé regeivalbios - - - - - - - .
considered good
Dispuisd trade receivables - credit - 0:11 0.17 1.1% 4.44 20.08 3199
impaired
Total tride yecs 101,58 180,49 M7.97 | 155923 | 1,734.01 5,034.59 9,527.47
Less: Provision for daubzful debis (31.99)
Less: Allowance for credit foss (6,953.23)
Net:trade receivables 2,542.25
‘Outstanding for following periods from due dale
TR of pryment .
Fartlcutars Nt Due, Less than | 6 months to !-v_e"gy);ars 2-3:yeirs ] More than 3 Total
% months 1 year ' ' YeRPS
As 1t 31 March 2022 )
Undispuied trade receivables - 563.28 [ 1,952.64 323,04 | 183423 [ 3,565.67 1,336.98 9,575.84
congidered good. '
Undisputed tiade recetvables - - - - - - - -
credit ispaired
Dispuled trade receivables - - . - - - - -
consideved gotd _
Disputed trade receivables » credit - . 1.05 493 6.08 30044 42.50
impaired
Total irade receivables 563,28 1,952.64 32409 | 1,839.16 | 3,571.75 1,367.42 2,618.34
Lass; Provision for doubtful debis (42.50)
Less: Allowanée foreredit loss {1,033.00)
Net trade receivables 8,542.84

For termg and conditions relaling to trade receivubles (reler note 27)

To comply with Lhe requirement of Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, the. Company has created total BECE of Rs. 6,953.23

mitlion (3] Mareh 2022: Rs. 1,033.00 milfion), As it was impracticable fo ascertain the BCL, for each of tespectiy _
Fnancial year, therefore, IRs. 5.920.24 million in compliance with the u.quuumms of para 44 ol Tnd AS § - Accoyy i ﬁg, ?nlmfc

Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, has heen adjusted 1o 1he retained Larnings.




Lava Internationad Limdted
Nofes to standalone firancisl statements for the period ended 31 March 2023
(Al amouits by lndien Rupees miflion unless otherwise stated)

7 (d) Cash atul cash equivalents ’ As at 31 As at 31
March 2023 March 2022
Cash an hand 5.1a 3.04
Halances with banks:
€In current accounts 23.37 149,45
Deposits with original maturity of less than three months # (Refer footnote to note 700 742.56 569.84.
771.09 724.33

# Shori-lerm deposits are iade for varying periods of between one day and thiee mionths, depending on the immediate cash

requirements of the Company, and carn interest al (he respeetive shori-term deposil rates.,

Asxt 31

76} Other bank balances Asat3dl
March 2023 March 2022
Deposits with bank for osiginal magsrity of more than three sivutlis but less 914.95 1,084:36
than twelve months (Refer footnote to note 7() :
914.95 1,084.36
7 () Other Gnancial asset {Non-current) 7 Asat3i Asat 3}
Mareh 2023 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good unless siated stherwise
Security deposits
= Considered good 31.62 27.62.
- Considered doubtful 4.02 4,92
' 36.54 32,54
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits {4.62) (4.92)
' 31,62 2762
Prank deposits with remaining maturity of more than twelve months # 05.36 3138
Interest accrued onbank deposits : 6,41 072
103.39 %72
Nofe:
# Includes margin money deposits under Hien {refer note 7(d), nole 7{e) and, note 7{N):-
© - ngainst letter of credit facility, bank gouaranices and ether margin ' _ 1,317.28 1,220,880
- against amount paid under protest (excluding interest accrued) (réfer note 31BN 304,00 300.00
7 (g) Other financial assets (current) As 9131 As af-31]
March 2023 March. 2022
Haosecured, considered good uniess sigted otherwise '
Security deposits {A) 17.48 10.86
Interest acerued on bank deposits (B} 173.92 i55.19
Drerivalive asset () - 0.67
Others receivables
- Considered good*® 159.93 882.44
- Considered doubiful** 713.27 -
. 871,20 882,49
Less: Allowanee Tor credit 1oss (ECL) (713.27) -
)] 159,93 #82.49
Total (A + B+ C+ D) 351.33

1,049,21




Lava Interustional Limited
Notes to standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in Iadian Rupees million anless otherwise staried)

* Includes other receivables from related parties amounting to Rs,142.48 million (31 March 2022 : Rs 200.37 million}

{refer nole 30 for detaits).

**To comply with the requirement of Intt AS 109 - Financial Instramenits, the company has created BCL of Rs, 713,27
miiljon. As it was impracticable 1o ascertain the FCL for each of respeetive éarlier financial yewr, therefore, Rs, 713.27
millien in compliance with the requirements of para- 44 of Ind AS 8 « Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting

Estimates and Errors, has been adjusted 1o the retained earnings.

March 2023

Inventorics As at 31 As at 31
(Valued atJower of cost or net reafisable value) March 2023 March 2022
Raw maletlals and components (refir note 1 & 2 below) 2.843.40 2.802.05
Finished gootls (refer note 2 below) £,242.86 1,067.39
TFraded goods (refer note 2 below) 0.68 4,57
Spares (refer note 1 below) 308.02 477.05
' 439499 4,353.06
Nofe | including stock in transit
+ Raw materisls and components 299.74 G58.77
Note 2 The abgve inventory is net of :-
4) Write down of invenlary from cost to net realisable value
Finished goods 2568 25.82
Traded poods 0.02 iz
Spares 4,13 9.90
b} Write down of investory for obsolescence
' Tinished goods i3.69 1338
Traded goods 0.01 -
Spares 132,43 145.45
Raiw.materials and components 204 2.04
9 (a} Other non-current assets As af 31 Asat 3]
March 2023 March 2022
Unsecured, considered guod, unless ofhérvise stated
Capital advances : 2.8 94.54
Prepaid expenses 175.94 2.30
208.05. 96.84
9 (b} Other enrrent assets As at 31 Asat 31

March 2022

Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated

Prepaid expenses (A} 59060 256.75

Balance with statutory/ government authorities (vefer note 31 {B) (B) 609.27 341.94

& 34)

Advanees to vendors

- Considercd good L137.56 1,209.48

- Advanees (o relaied parties, considered good {eeler nate 300 23.64 124.06

- Congidercd doubl il 9.76 14.89

LET1LGI] 1,348.43

Less: Provision for doubtful advances {9.76) (14,89}
(©) 1,161.25 1,333.54

Others )] f80.10 247,77

Total (A + B+ C + D) 2,541,22

£ 2:380.00
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(AN cononnts i Indian Rupees milfion wnless otherwise stcrte)

10 Equity share capital and instrements entirely equify in nature Asaf 31 As.at 3l
Mareh 2023 March 2022
Authorised shave capltal
782,000,000 equity shares of Rs. § each 3,910.00 3,910.00
(31 March 2022 : 782,000,000 cquity sharés of Rs. 5 cach)
100,008 (31 March 2022; 100,6607 Coinpuisory Convertible LOD 1.00
Peeference Share (CCPS) of Rs 10 cach ' :
500,060 (31 March 2022: 500,000} Compilsory Convertible 50,00 50.00
Preferance Shases (CCPS) of Rs. 100-eneh
3,961.00 3,961.00
Issued, sibseribed and fully paid-up share capital
541,126,216 vquily shares of Rs, 5-cueh 2,705.63 2,705.63
(33 March 2022 : 541,126,216 cquity shares of Rs.- 5 cach) _
140,000 (31 March 2022 1 100,000). Compulsory Convertible 1.0 1.60
Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10/ each.
324472 (31 Maich 2022 : 500,000) Compslsory Converlibie 32.42 3242
Preference Stiares (CCPS) of Rs. 100 each
Totalissned, subseribed and fully paid-up share capital 2,739.05 2,739,058
(2} Reconciliation of the shares ontstanding af the beginming and at the end of the reporting yiar
) Equity shares
Amount . Nool Shares _
Asatal Asat 3} Asat3l Asat 31
: Mureh 2023 March 2622 Marele2623  Mapéh 2022
At the beginnirig of the year 2,705.63 1,248.67 541,126,216 124,866,902
Right shaies. issued during the year Trefér below note
{a)-&-note (1) - 19,14 - 1,913,695
CCPS Conversion [refer betow note (d)] - 1529 - 1,528,834
Shairée Split (Rs.10 per share 1o 5 per share) [refer. . . - 128,309,431
bislow: fote(e )] '
Bonys shiees issued during the yedr [fefer below note
) ' : . 1,283.09 - 256,618,862
Issued during the year [reier below note ()] _ - £39.44 - 27,888,492
Outstanding at the.end of the year 2,705.63 2,705.63 41,126,216 541126216
Note:

4) Pursuant to approval of board of direetors of the Company in the miseling held on 18th May, 2021, 1,350,844 equity
shares of Rs. 10 each were allotied on right shares basis al a premivm of Rs. 523 per share.

b} Pursuant 1o approval of board of directors of the campany in the meéting heid on 5th June, 2021, 562.851 cquity shares
of s, [{-each were allotted on 1ight shares basis al a premium of Rs. 523 per share.

¢} Pussuant to the approval of sharchoiders granted in the extra-ordinary general meeting held on 28th Tune, 2021, the
Company Increased the existing authofized share capital from Rs. 1,530,000,000 divided into (1) 147,900,000 equity
shares of Rs, 10 eachy (if) 100,000-CCPS of Rs, 16 cach; and (i) 300,000 CCPS of Rs. 100 cach to Rs. 3,961,600,000
divided into (i) 391,800,000 equity shores of Rs, 10 eschy (ify 160,000 CCPS of Rs, H each; and {iH) 500.000 CCPS of
R 108 cach,

d} Pursuant o approval of board of directors of the company in the meeting held on 9th Augusy 2021, 175,828 CCPS
were converted into 15,28,834 cquity shares of Rs. 10 cach at a premivm of Rs, 1.5 per share.

¢} Pursuant Lo the approval of shareholders granted in the extrasordinaty penerat meeting hald on 10th September, 2021,
the Company uadenock a stock split ol ane existing, equity share of Rs, 10 each into two fully paid up equity shares of Rs.
5 cach, As a result of the above transaction, the authorised number of equity shares have been increased (o 782,000,000
equily shares of the Company having a face value of Rs. 5 cach from 391,000,000 equily shaves of the Company ha\{\iqg_-g\;\_
face value of Rs. 10 éach, pRRLeN

ok
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Notes to standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 March 2023
LA amounts int Indich Rupees million unless otherwise siated)

(i)

()

ii.

(¢}

{) Pursuant to the approval of shaecholders granted in the sxtra-ordinary general meeting held on 10th September, 2021,
the Compaity issued and aliotled fully paid-up “bonus shaves™ ai par in proportion of one new equity shares of Rs. 5 each
for every one existing fully paid up equity share of Rs. 5 cach held as an the record date of 08th Seplember, 2021,

&) Pursuant to the approval of shureholdets granted in the extra-ordingry general meeting held on 10th Scpterber, 2021, o
{otal 0f 27,888,492 equity shares of face value of Rs. 5 cach were créated, offered, issued and allotted at a premium of Rs.
128.25 each to Clipper Global 8.A. for consideration other than cash o the preferential cum private placement basis,

Instrumenits entirely equity i nature ~-Compulsory Convertible Proference Shaves (CCPR)

Amtonnt No-of Shares
Asat 3t As at 31 Asat 31 As at 31
‘March 2023 March 2022 March 2023 Marech 2022
Al the beginning of the vear 3342 5100 424,172 660,000
Converted (o equity and other equity . {17.58) _ - (175,828)
Outstanding at the end of the year 3342 33.42 424,172 424,172

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company lias only onc class of requity shares:having a par value of'Rs. 3 per share (3F March 2022: Rs. 5 per share).
Each holder of equily shares is entitled to ane vote per share and dividends it proportion to their shareholding. Tn the
evenl of Houidation “of the ‘Company, the holders of equity shares will be:entitled to receive residual assets of the
Company affer distribution of all preferential ‘amounts. The distribition: will be in proportion to the numbeér of equity
shares hold by the sharcholders. '

Tevnss/ vights attached to compulsory convertible preference sharves (CCPS)

Duting financial year 201718, the Company has issued 500,000 .CCPS of Rs:100 each. The preforence shares shall
collectively be entitled Lo dividend of 0.0001% of the agerogaic face value of the preference shares. As per the terms of
Subscription and Sharcholders Agreement, the preference shares may be converted, at any time at the diseretion of the
CCPS holder; inte fixed number of equity shares, further, if any of the preférence shares have not been conveited jilo
equity shares within 19 years and 11 months, remaining preference shares: shall be avtomatically and comipulsosity
converted into equity sharcs.ipon the explry of such perivd. '

Purseant. to approval of board of directors of the company in the meeting held on 9th Aug, 2021, the Company has

-converted its 175,828 CCPSinto 1,528,834 Equity SHures of Rs. 10 cach at.the premivm of Rs. 1.5 per Share.

During financial year 2017-18. the Company bed issued 100,000 CCPS of Rs. 10 each for a considerdtion of Rs. 520.00
million. The CCPS shall carry & coupon of 0.0001% and shall be ner-cumulative in rature, which s to be declared o the
discretion of the sharcholder of the Company. The preference shares may be converted itlo the equity shares at any time
at the discretion of the CCP'S holder, subject to lhe terms-of the agreement, If any of the preference sharcs have nol been
converied 1o cquity shares within 10 years from the. allotment daic, then sugh remaining preference shaves shali be
compulsorily converted info equity shares gpon the ekpiry of such perfod. '

i response ol the éxercise the option avatlable, the Company has to issue 5,368,832 equity shares against 160,008 CCPS.

Number of botins shares issued during the period of five years immediately preceding the veporting date:

No of Shares

Asat 31 March As at 31 As at 31 As al 31 As at 31
2023 March 2022 March 2027 Marpeh 2020 March 2619
Equity shares altotied during the - 256,618,862 - - -
year as {uilly paid bonus shares .

i

(e

o
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(d)  Detnils of sharchoelders holding moreghan 5% shares in the Company:
Kquity Shares of Rs, § each fully paid (31 March 2022 : Rs § each fully paid)
_ No of Shires Percentage shareholding
Nane of Sharcholders As a3t Asat 3 Asat 3l Asat 31
Mareh 2023 March 2022 March 2023 March 2022
Hari Om Rai 146,658,304 180,335,568 25.99% 33.33%
Sunil Bhallg 98,376,203 113,561,488 18.18% 20.99%
Vishal $ehgat 73,244,123 $8,417,408 . 13.54% 16.34%
Yash Investments 60,693,140 - P1.22% 0.00%
Shailendra Nath Rai 40,914,798 46,984,112 7.56%; 8.68%
Shibani Schgal 29,042 880 29,042,880 5.37% 537%
Clipper Global 8.A. 12,578,492 27,888,492 23284 5.15%
Instrincnts entirely equity in nature -Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCP'S)
No of Shares Percentage shareholding
Name of Sharcholders Asat 31 As at 31 Asat il Asat 31
Mareh 2023 March 2022 March 2023 March 2022
UNIC Meémaory Fechnolopy (Hong Kong) Limited 324,172 324,172 H0.00% 100.00%
Compuifsery Convertible Preference Shares (CCI'S) of ‘
Rs. 100/ ¢ach _
Bennett Colemun And-Company Limited 160,000 100,000 100.00% 100.00%
Compulsory Conventible Preference Shares (CCPS) of
Rs. 104 each
{e)  Sharelioldings of Promeiers
Equity Share held by promoters as o1 315t March 2023
. a F . m 1 ;
Pramateys Name No of Shares % of toi.ai {" Ulange. .
Shares during the year
Hari Om Rai 140,658,364 | 25.99% -7.33%
Sunit Bhalla 498,378,203 18.18% -2.81%
Vishat Seligal 73,244,1 23 13.54% -2.80%
Shailendrs Nath Raj. 40,914,798 7.50% -1.12%
Total 353,195428:) 65.27%
Equity Share held by promoters as of 3ist March 2022
o N w
Promoters Name No of Sharesy % of lglxl {" Change
Shares during the year
Iari Om Rai 180,335,560 3333% -2.78%
Suniil Bhalla 113,561,488 20.99% -1.75%
Vishal Sehigad 88.417,408 16.34% ~1.36%
Shigilendra Nath Rai 46,984,112 3.68% -0.72%
Total 429,298,568 72.33%
{f Shares reserved for issue under options &

For delails of shares reserved for issue under the emplovee stock option (ESOP) plan of the Company (refor note 36),
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11

il{n)

Financial liabilities

Rorrowings (Non-current) As at 3 - Asat’3]
Mareh 2023 Mareh 2022

Secured {refer note I helow)

Non+Convertible Debentures - 250,00
Term foan from banks 2.86 1.54
Ternm foan from other parties 226.96 273.25

229.82 524.°19
Current maturitics of non-current borrowings frefeinote 11(b)) 401.23 92,76

Note I Security. disclosgve for the outstanding curvent horrowings ave as follows:

(i) Nen-Convertibie Debentures - (NCDs) hud been issued during the previous year amouniing to Rs. 254 miltion. The
amount oulstanding against the said loan is Rs. 25000 mithion {31 Mareh 2022: Rs. 250.00 million) which carries interest.
@ 12.41% p.a-and 1o be repaid on 25th Septerbier 2023, The loan is secured by first and exclisive charge by pledge of
certain shares of the Cotmpany held by the: pramoters. Furihier, the loan has been peisonally guaranteed by certain directois
of the Compary:

(i1} Car loan had been obtained from HDFC bank amounting te Rs, 2.32 miifion duri ing the previous year and the amount
ouistanding aginsl the suid loan is Rs. £:53 miBion (31 March 2022: Rs. 1.96; ml]fion) which carries inlerest @) 7.50%

pa. and repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments starting from 07th May 2021, ‘The lodn is scheduled o be repaid by
07th Apri) 2026, The loan is secured against the vehicle funded out of aforesaid foen.

(iii) Car loan has been obtained from HDTC bank amcusntitig to Rs. 2.53 mitlion and the amount outstanding against (i
said Joari iz Rs, 2.24 million (31 March 2022; Nil} which ¢iries interest @ 7.70% p.a. and repayable in 60 equasl manthly
instalments staiting. from- 05th’ August 2022, The lodn is schedsled to be repaid:-by 05th July 2027. The loan is secured.

against the velicle: finded oul of aforesaid [oa,

(iv) Term loan:from Bajaj Finance Lid. had biges abtgined amounting to Rs. 350 miftion during the previous year and the
amount ouistanding against the satd loan is.RRs. 267.65 million (31 March 2022+ Rs, 330 million) which carries interest @

" 11.00% p.a. (31 March 2022: 8.75% p.a) and repayable in 51 equal monthly instalments starting from 85th April 2022 w
p- paya

)

G5th June 2026, The: Joan is secured by exclusive charge over plant and machinery funded under the terim Toan with
minimum Fixed-Assgts Coversge Ratio (F FACR) of £:33x and second pari-passiz charge on overall currest assels (eyreent
and future) of the Company. Edrther, the loan has Bee pétsonally guaranteed by certain directors of the Company.

(v) Term losn. from Oxyzo Financial Services Private Lid. had been obtained dufing the previons year amounting to Rs.
20 miilion and the amount outstanding against the said loan is Rs. 5.46 miftion:(31 March 2022: 15.59 mifilion) ‘which
carries interest @ £2.25% p.a. and re}my:ihlc in 24 equal monthly instadments. Flie loan 1o be repaid on 05th Sepiember
2023, The loan was 'sccurc;f hy personal guarantee by divector of the Company.

{vi) Term loan {rom Tata Capital Financial Services L4, hias been oblained amounting to Rs. 125 million and the amount
outstanding against: the said foan is Rs. 104.17 million (31 March 2022 Nil} which caries interest ¢2 1 L.10% paa, and
repuyable in 24 cqual monthly instalments, The foan is schieduled to be repaid by 15 November 2024, The loan is ségured
by guarantee equivalent to.the 5% of the facilily amount und pessonal puarantee. by vertain direetors of the Company.

Note 11: Satisfaction of charges
There are no charges or sntistaction which are yet o e registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the slatutory
period,

Borrowings {current) Asat 31 As at 31
Mareh 2023 March 2022
Cash credit / overdrall facility from banks (repayable on demand)* 743,82 $90.09
Buyer's credit* ; 139.03 24848
Working capilal demand loan** 531.00 370.00
Current maturities ef non. current borrowings [refer note § 1{a)) 401.23 92,76

TTTR15.08 1,601.33
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Notes to standalone financial stateinendis for (e period ended 31 Marek 2023
(Al amonnts in indign Rupees milfion uriless othenwise stued)

*Secured by way of hypethecation ou fivst pari- passu chavge basis, on overall cusrent assets of the Company (curzeni and
future) and coflateral securities/personal guaraniees of promoter dircctors and refative of promoter direciors, The said loan
is further secured:

(§} by way ol a first charge on pari-pissu basis, of existing and future movable fixed dsséls of the Company excluding
goftware and machineries/ sssets erealed by way of term lodns from other Banks and financial institotions,

(2) by way of d second charge on pari-pussu basis, of such existing and fufisre movable fixed assets of the Borrower such
machincries/ othér sssels which are created by way of e loans fram other banks and finuncial insttutions. The cash
credit Is vepdydable on demand and carries interest @ 10.30% pua. (o 1L55% p.a. {31 March 2022: 10.55% p.a. to 12.10%
p-a.}. Buyer's credit carries inierest @ SOFR +0.50% p.a. to SOFR +1%.p.a,

**Sccured by way of personal guararilee of promoters of the company. This facility is repayable on demand abd casries
inferest tangiig from 8.85% p.u. to 9.20% p.a. (31st March 2022: 7.50% p:a,). Working capital demiind loan of Rs, 123
million is secrired by way of guarantee equivalent to the 50% of the.fueility amount and personal guarantee by certain
directors ;ji"th'e\(i‘_ompany- and repayable on demand and carries interest (@ 11.10% p.a.

Note I:

In respest of working ¢apital Joans, quarterly returas or statements of current assofs filed by the company with banks wre
i agreement with the books of accounts,

11{¢) Trade payaliles As at 31 As at 31
Mareh 2023 March 2022
Micro and small-enterpeibis (réfer nole 32) ' £32.17 241.90
Other than mierg and simall enterpises. 3,250.43 3,170.96
Payable 1o related parties (vefer note 30) 2?66 P 0.2
A 44896. 341298

Ageing of trade payables: -

Particulars Less than 1 year|  1-2 years 203 years. Mo;ee[_t‘:f:n 3 Tota)

Az at 31 March-2023 o

Cutstanding dueés 16 micio-tnd smiall .

enterprises 132.17 - - - 132.17

Others 3,195.52 1004 1.05 0.58 3,117.19

Disputed - dues 1o micro aad small i ) ) A .

enerprises

Disputed « Others - - - o f -

Tolal trade payables 3,237.69 1004 1.05 0.58 3,249.36

Provision for Expenses 165,60

Net teade payables 341896

Purticulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 yenrs Mo;z;::a n3 Tatal

As al 31 March 2022

Oulstanding dues io micro-and small .

enterpriscs 241.49 0.41 . - 241.90

Othets 281825 3.49 3.79 745 | 2.825.98

Disputed - dues to micro and smlf . . ;

entorprises

Disptited - Oshers 7.63 - 211 £.04 9.78

Total trade paynlites 3,060.37 3.90 591 7.4% 3,077.66

Provision for Expenses 338,32

MNet trade pavables - N41208° ]
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11{d) Lease linbilitics {Non-current) As af 31 Asat 31
March 2823 March 2022
Lease Liabitities (refer note 37) i00.47 132.43
109.47 132:43
11{e} Lease liabilities fenrrent) As §t 31 Asal 31

Muareh 2023  Mareh 2022

Lgnse Linbilifies (vefer note 37} 38.40 30,16
38.40 30446
11 (f) Other financial liabilities (current) ' Asat 31 As at31
March 2023 March 2022
Payable for capital purchases £.27 1.12
Sceurity deposits 1,460,31 L27136
Inter-company deposit - 30.00 |
Interest acorued on borrowings 6.08 4.96
Employee payables : 43.31 46.94
Derivative liability : 1.29 - |
1,512:46 1.354.38
12 {n) Provisions (Notiscurreni) _ As at 31 As.at 31

March 2023 Maréh 2022

Provision for employce beitefits

Provision for gratuity (refer niole 28) 5728 54.45
Otlier provisions : :
Provision for decommissioning finhilities # 2.006. 200

59.34 5651
# Under iease agreements entered by the Company; i bas to incur restoration cast for resioring lease premiises to the

original condition at'the time of expiry of tdase period. The timing of the oulfTows is-expeeted Lo be in next 3 years. The
impaet of discounting is not considered being immaterial and hence ignored.

12 (by) Provisions (Current) As at 31 Asat 31
March 2023 March 2022

Provision for emuployee henefits

Provision for gratuty {refer note 28) : 25.67 2149

Provision for compensated absences 20.59 24.30
46.26 48.79

‘Other provisiens

Provision for warramtics* B7.53 I01.36 !
$7.43 141.56
133,79 147.35

* The Company provides warranty on its produets by giving an undertaking Lo repaitfreplace items o the customers,
which fails 1 perform satisfactorily during the warranty period. Provision made represents the amount ol the expeeted
eostof meeting such obligations of fepairfreplacement. The timing of the outflows is expertid 10 be in next 12 imonths 154,
March 2022 : 12 moiths), : ' ‘ Sl
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Provision for warranties As at 3¢ As at 31
Mnrch 2023 March 2022
At the beginning of the year 181,56 118.78
Avising during the year £6.92 68,81
less: WHilized / reversed during the year {10(.95) {80.03)
Al the end of the year #7.53 101.506
Provision for decomymissioning liabilities As at 3] As il 31
_ ' Mareh 2023 March 2022
Al the beginning of the year 2.06 3.02
Less: Reversed duringihe year - (0.96) |
At the end of the year 2,06 2.06
13 Other current Liabflities Ag af 31 Asat 31
March 2023 March 2022 |
Advance from customers. 256.17 35001
Tax deductible at souroe: N7 23.05 |
Other statulory liabilities _114.-6‘_4 32,14 |
301.52 406.30 |
!
14 Current tax Jiabilities (nef) As a 31 Asat 3l |
March 2023 March 2022 |
Provision for income tax* I08.£6 256.26
108.16 256.26

*Net of advance tax-and TDS receivable amouniing to Rs. 3,734,515 million (31 Maich 2022: Rs, 3,464 .47 million)

{This space has been intentionally feft blank)
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is

16.

17

18

Revenue from operations

Sule of produets {refer note 30)
Sale of services
Othér oporating revenues

= Scrap saic

= Exporl incentives

Other incolne

Interest ineome en financidl agset st amortised cost

Interest income on fixed deposits with banks

Nel gain on sale of mutwal fimd investments

Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss

Tordigh exchange differences {net)

Profit.on sale of property, pfant and equipment

Miscelfaneous income

Cost of raw material and componeity consumed

Inventory materials af the beginning of the year
Parchase during the year
Less: Inventory materials at thie end of'ihe yenr

Changes. in inventories of fiiishd-goods, spares and stock in

‘trade.

Tuveniories at the end of the year
Traded goods

Spares for handse(s

Finished goods

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Traded goods

Spares for handsets

Finished goods

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the yenr ended
31 March 2022

22,000.68 18,109.59
47.16 105.41
4.97 281
3.93 4.55
22,056.74 18,222.36

For the year ended

31 March 2023

‘For the year etided

31 Maich 2022

1.13 137

73.10 59.69

0.30 0.35

- 5.82

176.69 9335

195 -

£9:51 30.59.

273,08 20117
For-the year ended  For thie year ended
31 March:2023 31 March 2022
2,802.05 1,449.80

1695585 12,826.04
{2:843.49) (2,802.05)
16,913,71 11,473.79

For the year ended

31 March 2023

TFor the year ended

3 March 2022

0.6% 657
308.02 47705
1,242.80 1,067.39
1,551.50 1,551.01
657 102.00
477.08 789.17
1,067.39 922.53
1,551.01 1,813.76
262,75

0.4%)
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19 Employee benefits expense

~ Balary, wages and boaus (refer note 30)

20

21

Condribution.te provident and other tands (refer noic 28)
Giraluity expense (refer note 28)

Share based paymenl expense (refer note 36)

Stadt welfare, recroitment and tyaising

Othier expenses

Power and fuel

Rent.

Rates and taxes

Instifange

Repair and maintenance - others

Advirtisement and marketing expenses

Sales promotion, Scheme expenses and ECL Provision [tefer note
7(c) for ECL] '
Freight.and cartage

Outsourced salary tost

Travelfing and conveyance

Communication ¢osts.

Warranty expenscs-

Legal and professiofal fees

Paymient 1o anditor (refer details below)

Donation

Corporate social responsibility expense (refer note 33)
L.oss on sale of property, plint and edquipment

Fair value loss on derivative fingncial instrument & fair value
through prolit or toss

Miscellancous expenses.

Payment te sudifor

Asauditor:

- Audit fee

~ Tax audit fee
Reimbursement of expenses
Qther services

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation expense
- on Property, Plant & Equipment
- on RO Asset
Amorgisation expense on Imangible Asscls

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2023

1,H16,03 002,49
57.27 50.96
i8.90 16.49
16.83 126.69

273.65 23226

1,482.68 1,418,389

Fartheyear ended  For the year ended
31 Maveh 2023 31 March 2022
40.062 39.36
52,18 54,82
12.53 744
14.34 14.39
78.78 60.87
468.75 22231

805,32 7i1.39
247.79 152.04
N5 22.09
99.76 57,56
7.95 7.81
#6.92 G68.81
156.13 12440
2.50 1.26
1.18 0.05
10.03 3.10
- 0.08

1.96 -

~k5.73 2395
2;138.52 1,582.73

For: thie year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
3 _Mal‘ch__Zi}ZZ

250 3.60
- ¢.35
- 0.18
- 3.3

1.50 7.26

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For ihe year ended
31 March 2022

[85.86 154.39
32.33 31.50
$.42 . 8%
226.61 IRENEET S
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22 Finance costs Por the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Iislerest on

~Term loan 137.26 7528
—Cash credit. 79.80 51,38
=Seeurity deposits 8.41 4.33
-Incomi gy 20.10 42.89
-or1 Lense Liakility (refer note 37) 18.68 20.78
Bank charges 10216 113.51
366.41 308.17

(This space hay been intentionally lefi-blank)
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23
{a)

()

Income tax expense

The major épmponents of rconic tax expense for the year endad areas follows:

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the vear ended
31 Mareh 2022

Current income (ax:

Current income tax charge 118.05 26130

Adjustments in respeet of income tax of previous year (16.58) (10.21)

Deferred tax

Relaling 1o origination and reversal of temporary differences 8,48 (§6.52)

Total tax expense on profit of the year (a) 109.55 158.87

Other comprehensive income _

Deferred tax related 1o items recognised in other compreliensive income

duiing in the year

» Re-ntedsurement losses of defined bhenefit plan (1.43) 0.02)

Total tax expense on other comprehensive income of the year-(b) (0.43) (0.02)
109,12 158.55

Total tax expense on total comprehensive income of the year {a} + ()

Reconciliation of {ax expesse.and the accounting profit manltiplied by India’s domestie tax rate

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year-ended
31 March 2022

Deferved tax assets {net)

Profit befoie:tux 462_.85 56’_4_.06
Applicable tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Exrected tax expense (A} 116.50 14197
Expenses nol considered in determining taxable profit 25400 25.39
Inconie not considered in determining taxable profit (3.7 (2.99)
Tag pertaining Lo carlier yedrs (16.98} (16.21)
Others (11.20) 1041
Total adjusiments (B) (6.95) 16,60
Actual tax expense {C=A+B} 109.55 158,57
Tax expense recognised in staipment of profit and loss 109.55 158.57
Effective Tax Rate 23.67% 28.11%

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Deferred tax relates to the following;

For the year ended .
31 Mareh 2822

Deferred tax assels on acedut off

Troperty, plant and eguipment (93.99) (82.67)
Provision for employee benefils {26.00) {25.23)
Allowance for credit loss (ECL) & proviston for doubtful advances: (271.76) (274.45)
Provision for obsolescence inventories (10,80} (14.00)
Others 4.66 -
Deferved tax related to other comprehensive income of the year:

Re-measurement losses of delined benefit plan 3.36 3.7
Change in fair vadue of FYTOCT equity instraments (2.3 230
Deferred tax lisbility on sccount oft

Tax to be paid on-custom duly receivable in future years {refer note 34) 89,43 79.3%
Ner deferred tax UHability/ (assel) iillt'luding ather comprehensive incosme (307.45) B315.49)

of the year
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Movement in delerred tax assets Tor (he vear ended 31 Mareh 2023

Asat31  Recoganised fn other Ricognised inprofit As at 31 Mavch 2023
Murch 2022 comprehensive and. loss
Hicome.

Property, plant-ind equipinent (82.67) ' . (1132} (93.99)
Provision 1orémployée beaefiis (25.23) “ {0.83) (26.06)
Allowancee for eredit toss (ECL) & {274.45) '« 2.69 (271.76)
provision lor doubtful advances
Provision for absolescence inventories (14.00) - 3.20 (10.86)
Tax to'be paid on eustom duty 79.38 “ 190.07 89.45
receivable in Tisiide yedrs (refer note
34)
Others - - 4.06 4.66
Deférred ax related to other
comprehensive income of the year:
Re-meagorenient losses of defined 3.7 {0.43) - 3.36
benefit-plan
Change infair value of FVTOCT equity {2.31) - - (2:31)
instruyiients : ' _ _
Total {(315,49) (0.43): 8.47 (307.45)

Movement in delerred tax assets for the year ended 31 March 2022

Asat31  Recoguised inother Recognised in profit As at 31 March 2022
March 2021 conprehenisive il foss.
income

Prapefty, plant and equipment (82.04) - (0.63} {82,673
Provision for employee benefits (23.55) - (1.68) {25.23)
Allowance for credit loss (ECL) & (209.92) . (64.53) (274.45)
provision {or doubtful advances
Provision. for obsolescence inventories (14.00} - - {14.00)
Fair valuation of investment 0.50 - {0.30) -
"Tax lobe paidion custom duty 08.58 . {19.20) 70.38
receivable T fature years (refor nate
34y
Deferred tax related to other
camprehensive inconse of ihe yeur
Re-measarenient losses of delined 377 0.02 - 3.79
benefit plan.
Change is fiirvalue of TVTOCT {2.31) - - (2.31)
equity instruments
Total - (224.97) 0,02 (86.50) {315.49)

(This space has been intentionally left blankj
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24 Larnings per share (EPS)
The compistagion of earnings per share s as follows:

Nominal vatue of equity shares (JTNR)

Profit attributable 10 cquity shareholders for computing basic and diltive

EPS (A)

Weighted average number of equity shares for ealewating basic EPS.
Weighted average number of equity shares ouistanding during the year for
compiding I3asfe 1IPS (B)

Dilutive: effect of share based payments on weighted average _Jjurﬁ'b'ér of
cquity shares outstanding during the yéar (C)

Dilutive cffect of compulsory canverlible preference shares on. weighted.
average number of equity shares putstanding duribg the year (@)

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding dning the year for
camputing Diluted EPS (B = C+J) '

Basic earning per share. (A/B)-

Diluted earning per-share (A/£)

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
3! March 2022

5

353.30

541,126,216
30955614
16,643,640
588725470

0.65
(.60

527,934,041
30,888,097
16,643,640
575,405,778

4,77
0.70

During the curvent financial year, 1,201,872 number of optiors issucd Tor share based payment were excluded from the
calculation of difuted weighted average number of equity shares s theireffect would have been anti-dilutive,

(This space has been infentionally left blank}
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25 Fair value measorement

4) The carrying valye and fair value of financial instruments by categories are as under:

Notes 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
FVTPL | pvroct AVOTST L punpr D pypogy | Amortised
Clost: ; : Cost
Assels E '
|
Non-current assets. ' :
Financial assets .
Giher financhal asset 7 - - 103,39 - - 59.72
- - ’03.3‘9 - - 59.72
Current assefs’ ' e
Financial assets i ;
Tnvesiments 7 (b} 28.73 - . - - -
Trade réceivables 7 (¢) - - 2,542.25 - - 8542.84
Cashi‘and cash equivalents 7 (d} - - 771.09 . - 724,33
Other bank balances 7{e) - .- 014.95 - . 1,084,36
Derivative asset 7{g) - - 0,67 ! - -
‘Otlers financial-assels 7(g} - - 351433 - - 1,048.54
28.73 - 4,879,62 0.67 | - 11,400.07
[Liabilities . ' ; :
Non-curreit liabilities : %
Financigl Babilitics : .
Borrowings I (a} - - 229.8% | - ’ - 524.79
Lease liabilities. n |- . 10947 - : 132.43
- - 33029 - “ 65722
Current Habilties { :
Financial tnbililies : : _
Bortowings 1 (b - - i 181508 - - 1601.33
Lease fiabilities [ (c) . - 38.40'] - - 30.16
Trade payubles 11 (c), 32 . -1 341896 - - 1 341298
Derivative liabilities 17 ¢} 129 - - L - - :
Other financial lisbilHics 1t () - - sl - “o 1,354.38
' 1.29 ] - 66l | - - . 6,398.83%

The fair values of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents, other current financial asset, (rade payables and sier current
financial liahilities are considered to be same as their carvying values due to ficir shor term rasure.

The carrying amousts of other ilems carried al amorlised vost are reasonable approximation of their fair values on respective
reporting date.

For (inancigt assets and liabilides that are meosured at fair value, the carrying gmounts are equal 1o the lair values.

(This space has been intentionally left blank}
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25 b) Fair vaine hierarchy and vatuation technigies used to determine fair values:

Te provide an indication about the reliability of inpuis used in determinieg fair value, the Company has classified its
firaneial instrument intothree fevels prescribed uider the accounting standard. The following luble provides the fair value
measurement hierarchy of the compairy’s assets.and liabilities,

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measmriement hicearchy for asséts and liabilities arc as ¢

Fair value measarement using _

_ Quoted prices in Biguificant Significant Total
At 31 Mareh 2023 active mavkets observable inpats  wnobservable inpits :
(Leyel 1) (Level'2) (Levet 3
Assets measured at FVTPL
Derivative gesets - - - -
Investments.in migual funds 28.73 - - 28.73
Assets measured sit FVTOCY
Invesiment in equity instruments® - - - “
Linbility measaresd a¢ FVTPL, _
Derivaiive liabilitics - 1.29 - 1.29
_ Eair value measurement using
_ Quated yrices in Significant Significant Tota]
A3t Mareh 2022 activeniarkets observable inputs  unobservable inpuis
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Assets measured at FVTPL
Investment in mutnal funds - - - 0.60
Assets megsired at FVTOCI
Invesiment in equity instruments® - - . u
Liability measured a¢ FVTPL _
Derivative assel - 3:67 - 0.67

* Tnvestment in Abhriva Ple. Lid. has-been valued at zero value f.e. at fair value and it has been shown in other reserve
wmounting 10 Rs 7.69 million in Reserve and surplus.

- There were no transfers between the Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the years presented.
= There is no chasge i 'the valuation technique during the year,

Vatuation techinigues nsed fo devive Level 1 fair valies

Derivative. asset/liability representing fiture foreign exchange contracts have been fair valued using futare exchange rages
that are guoted in the active market,

The fair vatues of Investesents in nusual fud units is bascd on the net asset valse ("NAV?) as slated by (he issucrs of ihese
mutual fund uniis in the published statements as at Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the price at which the issuer will
issue farther units of mutuad fund and the price a1 which issuers will redeem such uanits from the investors.,

Valuntion techniques used to derive Livel % [nir values
Derivative asset/liahility representing forward forefga exchange contracts have been {air valued using deater/counter party
quotes at halance sheet date.

Valuition techniques used (o derive Level 3 Tair values
laputs for the assets or liabilities that wre not based on observable market data. A one percent chinge in the;

unobservable
inputs wsed in fair vahustion of Level 3 assets docs not have a signifteant impact in its value. (,/;’7 X o
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16 Capital management

The Company’s objectives while managing capiial are to safeguard its ability io continue as a going concern and o provide
adequate retutns for #s shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. The Compeny's policy is gencrally to oplimise
borrowings at an operating company level within an acceptable level of debit. The Carpany's policy is to boreow using
mixture of long-term and short-term debts together with cash genorated 16 meét anticipated funding requirements,

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated as enderlying net debt divided by total capital plus
underlying net debt. The Company’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio below 46%. The Company measures its underlying nel
debt as total debt seduced by cash and cush equivﬁ]enls. The: Cotmpany. menitors pomplianee with its debt vovenants. The
Company has complied with all debt covenants at ali reporting dates.

No changes were made in the objectives, pelicies or processes for munaging eapital during the yewrs ended 31 March, 2023
and 33 March, 2022,

Particulars _ ' : 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Boreowings ' 2,044.90 2,126.12
E.é8s: Cash and cash equivalents (771.09) {724.33)
Net debt (x) . 1,273.81 140175
Equity __9:583.94 15,845.27
Total capital (b) . 9,383.94 l5,§45_.2'?
Capital aud net debt (a)+ (b} = (c} 10,857.75 17,247.06
Gearing rafio (%) (27 (€) 11.73% 8.13%

(This spice has beew intentionally left blank)
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27 Financial vishk management objectives and policies
The Company*s rincipal financiul liabifities, other than derivalives, comprise loans and overdrafts, and trade payables. The
main purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Company’s operations. The Company has various
linancial assets such as irade receivables, cuash uml cash equivalents, and shorl-term depasits, which arise difectly from its
operations. The Company alse bolds mutual fund invesinments and enters inlo derivative transactions,
The main risks arising {rom the Company's finencial instruments are price risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk, foreign
cutrency risk, and credit risk,
The Board of Divectors review und agree policies. for managing each of these risks which are.summarised below,
Price risk
The Company is mainly exposed to the price visk dgé o ils investment in eguity insthuments and mutual fonds, The price
risk arises due 1o uncertainties about the fuluré fiarke! values of these investments. In erder 1o manage its-price risk arising
from. imvestments. in mutnal fonds, the Coriypany diversifies its portiolic in accordance with the limits set. by the risk
management policics. The Company does not have significant investment in mutual funds.

Set out below is the impaet of ¢ 1 % movement inthe NAV of mutpal funds on the Company’s profit before tax;

Particalars _ _ , 31 March 2023 31:-March 2022
Effect on profit before tax:

NAY increase by 100 bps 0.29 -
NAV decrease by 100 bps _ _ (.29 -

Interest rate risk

The Compaiiy's exposuse 16 the tisk of changes.inmiarket interest tates relates primarily-1o the Company’s borrowings with
floating intérgst ¥ates. The Coinpany’s policy ig Lo managé is interest costivging a mix of fixed, floating rate horrowings.
The foliowing lable provides a breakdown of the Company’s {txed and floating rate borrowings:

Partieulars _ ' 31 March 2023 31 Moavch 2022
Fixed tate borrowings 259.23 267.55
Floaling rale borrowings . . 1.785.67 1,858.57
Teial 2404490 212632

The following table demonstrales the sensitivily Lo a reasonably possible change in inlerest saies, being a (.5%. increase ar
deerease in interest rate, with all ofher variables held constant, of the Company’s profit before tax due to the impact on
floating rate borrowings.

Particulars B 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Effect on profil before tax; '

PLR*- decrease by 50 bps 8.93 9.20
PLR*. inerease by 50 bps y (8.93) (9.29)

*Prime Lending Rate CPLRS'Y set by individual Indian banks in respect of their loans.

Credif risk
The Company i5 also exposed 1o oredit risk from trade receivables, lerm deposils, I1qu|d investments and other Nnancisl
instriments,

(i} Customer gredit risk is managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and eentrol relating o customer eredit
risk management. All customers are subjeet to eredit verilication procedures. [a addition, receivable balinces are monitored
on an -on-geing basis. The Company is exposed 1o oredit risk in the event of nen-payment by cuslomers. An impairment
analysis is peribrmed at each reporting date by prouping the receivables in homogeaeous group. Trade receivables are nons
interest bearing and are generally on osiginal eredit terms of upto 188 days depending upon category and nature ol
custoners. Credit term may be extended based on sansgement judgement and credit worthingss ol the costomgers
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The management regularly folows up to récover the obtstanding dmount and cvaluates recavesics at the end of every
reporting period. To comply with the requirement of Ind AS [0V - Financial instrismenis, the company has created total
expected credil loss (ECLY as on 31 March 2023.0f Rs. 6,953.24 million (31 March 2022: Rs, 1,033.00 million}. As it was
impracticable to asceriain the BCL for each: of respeotive éarlier financial year, therefore, Rs. 5,920.24 willion in
compliance with the. requirements of para 44 of Tad AS-% « Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Ervors, has been adjusted Lo the refained eamings.

(ii). The ceedit #isk for cash and cash equivalests, oiher bank batances, term deposits, eld, is considered negligible, since the
counterpartics arc reputable banks with high quality extem! eredit vatings.

Ageing based on original eredit 1erms but aflera) lowanu. Tor eredit loss as follows:

Particulars _ _ 3i March 2023 31 March 2022
0-180 days ' ' 281.56 2,515.92
180365 days 917.80 323.04
§year plus 1,342.89 5,703.88
Total o I 2,542.25 $,542.84

The Company has provisions of Rs. 31.99 million {31 March 2022 : Rs. 42.50 million) for douhifel debts. None of those
trade debtors. past duccor impaived have had Lheir térms-renegotiated. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date is the fair valie of each ¢iass of debtors presented in the financial statemends,

The Company evaiuatesthe concentration ofrisk with:respect 1o trade receivables as low, a8 its customers are Jocated in
several jurisdictions and operate in Jargely independent markets,

Liquidity risk

The Company monitor theji fisk of shortage of fnds using cash flow forecasting models. These models consider the
mturity of their financial investments, committed funding and projected cash flows from operations.

The Company’s objective is to provide financial resources 10 meet its business objectives in a timely, cost effective and
reliable manner, A balance between contingity of funding and:flexibility is maintained. lhrou;,h the use of bank borrowings.

The Company alse menitors complinnce with its debt covenants; The maturity prof‘ ite ofthe Company’s [inanciul iinbilitics
based on contractual wndiscounted paymenis is given in (he table below:

<tyr 1-8 yrs >5§rs Total
‘As #t 31 March 2023 - o
Borrowings (including interest acerued) 1,821.46 229.82 - 2,050.98
Lease labilities _ 31840 109,47 - 147.87
Trade payables 3,418.96 - - 3,418.96
Derivative linbiiity 1.2 - - 1,29
Other financial liabiity 1,505.09 - ' - 1,305.09
Total 6,784.90 339.29 - - 7,124.19

<iyr 1-5 yrs =5 yrs Total
As at 31 Marech 2822 :
Borrowings (incfuding interest acerued) 1,606.2% 524.79 - 2,131,008
Lease liabilities 30,16 13243 - 162.59
Trade payables 341298 - - 3,412.98
Other financial liahilily "1,349.42 - - 1,349.42

Total ' 6.398.85 . 6587.22 - 705607
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Foreign currency risk

The Company has significant purchases from outside India. The Company has transactional currency exposures srising from
sales or purchascs in currencies other thun the functiona) currency. Acgordingly, the Company’s financial state o affairs can
be affected significantly by.movements in the US dollar exchange rates. ‘The Company enlets into derivative. transactions,
primarily in the nature of forward contracts on import payables. The purpose is 1o manage curvency risks arising from the
Company’s operations.

The catrying amounts of the Comipany’s fingncial assets ang liabilities denominated in different eusrencics. ape as follows:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

As at : -

Fingncial assets | Financial lizbilities| ¥Financial assets { Fingneial liabilities
Amount in United Ssates Pollar (USD). 37.76 19.86 40.17 23.70
Exchange Rate. 8238 42,18 75.00 780
Amount in Indian Rupees-(INR) 3.02.97 1,632,013 3,048,587 1,799.00

The Company’s expostee fo forpign culrericy arises in part where a Company holds financizl assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency different from the functional currency of that entity with USI being the.major non~tanctinnal
currency of the Company’s main operating subsidiories. Set out below Is the impact ofa 1% movement in the US dollar on
profit before: tax arising as.a result of the vewvaluation of the Company’s foreign cutrency financial assets and unhedged
liabilities :

As af

31 March 2023

31 Mareh 2022

Eifect of 10% strengthening of INR aguin.'st__US_D;orz_ profit before lax:

Effict of 10% weakening of INR against USD.on profil before tax:

(147.08)

147.08

1424.99)

124.99

The Company enters inlg forward contracts to mitigate the risk arising from fuciusiions in foreign exchange rales o cover
foreign currengy payments. The Company hasitaken forwards contract of the following amousnt to hedge against currcacy risk
against movemens iin INRAIS dollar. The conteact as on year end are as follows :

As af

31 March 2623

3% March 2022

Amount-in INR

843.51

902.45

(This space has been intentionally left blank}
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28 Post-employment benefits plan

Defined Contribution Phin

Fhe Company has recognised Rs. 57.27 millions (31 March 2022 : Rs, 50.96 millions) related to employer's contribution to

provident fursd-and employces' state insurance fund ag ag expense in the statement of prefit and loss,

Defined Benefit Pian

The Company has unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan, Ivery employee who has compléfed five years or more of service

gets a gratuity on departure al 15 days satary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service of part thercof in excess of

& months.

The. following talde summarizes the components of net benelit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss for

geatuily plan and ammounts recogiiized in the balance sheel in respect of same,

Statement of profit and loss
Net.employee benefit expense recagnized in the employee-¢gst
Current service cost

Tnigrest cost on benefit obligalion
Net benefit expense

Balanie sheet

Bimefit assetAiabitity

Prescnt value of defined benefit obligation
Net asset/(liability) recognised in halance sheet

Changes in the present valoe of the defined benefit obligation arc as follows:

QOpeniing defined benefit obligation
Current service cost

Inferest cost

Total amount recognised in profit- & loss

Re-measurement (gainsWlosses of défired benefit plan

- Dwe 1o changes in financial assamptions

- Due 1o experience adjustment

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive income

Benefits paid

Closing defined benefi¢ obligation

The principal asstmptions used in determining gratuity henefits are as below:

Discount rate
Lmployee rnover
Salary Escalation Rate
Mottality Rutes

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in defuarial viduation, lake account of jinflation, seniorily, |}| 0

other pelevant luctors. such as supply and demand in the employment market.

The av :.mbc duration of the delised benelit phan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 4.78 )ca;&{{? N; mh\i(

31 March 2023

' 31 Mareh 2022

13,68 £2.35
.22 4.14
1890 16.49

31 Mareh 2023

3 March 2022

(82.05)

(75.95)

(82.95)

{75.95),

31 Marcle 2093

31 March 2022

75,98 66.07
13.68 12.35
5.22 4.14
18.90 6,49
{2.96) {0.56)
1.25 0.93
.1y 0.07
(10.19) (6.68)
82.95 7595

31 March 2023

3 March 2022

7.1%

30.0%

7.0%
1AL212-14L70L

3.9%

30.0%

7.0%
IAL20§2-14811

Y '{o

5 ?22{;}\
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Amiounts Tor the current.and previous four yeurs are as follows:

Particulars. 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020. 31 March 2019
Gratuity '

Delined Benelit obligation 82,95 7595 66.07 56.29 54.43%
Experience adjusiments on

liabititivs gain / (loss} (1.23) {0.93y (0.55} 1.38 18.66

Sensitivity Analysis:
A quantitative sensitivity-analysis fof sighificant-assumption is as shown below:

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Projected benéfi obfigation on current assumplions $2.95 75.95
Delta effect of +1 Yo .chape in discount rate (2.16) (2.10)
Delta effect of <1 %:changesin disconnt rale 2.30 224
Delta effect of +1 % chasge in salary esealation rate 2.51 2.40
Delln offoey of - £ % Change. in salary escakation rate (2.40) {2.30)
Delta etfect of +£0'% change in rate of employee tumover (0.80) {1.08)
Delta effect of -10 % change in rate of employee tornover 0.85 1,18

29 Segment imformation

Ind AS 108 cstablishes standards for the way the companics ropott information abastit: opevating scgments and related |
disclosures about products and services, geogeaphic ateas, and major customers. The Compaiy’s opeeations relate to sales of
mobile handsets ki India through the distribulor and retailers network, The €hief satiig Decision Maker (CODM) :
evaluates the Compdiy’s performance sind allocates resources based on analysis of vaiious-peeformance indicators pertaining

10 business as a single ségment, Accordingly, for the purpose of entity wide disclosures, only geographical information has

been presented, Business seginent of the Company is primarily sale of mobile handsets,

Geographical information on-revenues are collated based on individual customers. invoiced eor in relation to witich revenue is
otherwise recognized.

Geographical informaion: )
The foliowing tablis present.geographical information regarding the Company’s revetite;

For tlie year For the year

Particulars ended 31 March  ended 31 Mavch

' _ 2023 2022

India - 21,641.90 17.060.87

Qutside India 414.84 116149
(8,222.36

Total 22,056.74

Revenue fiom one customer Tor the year ended 31 March 2023 is Bs, 4,533.55 mifion which represents more than 10% of the
o} revenue of the Company. During (he year ended 31 March 2022, there was mo customer individually, revenue from
whom represents mose than 10% of the total revenue of the Company.

The Company does not have any non-current assets, as defingd in nd AS 108, which is focaled outside ndia,

(This spetce has been infertionalfy fefl blank)




Lava luteraational Limited
Notes 1o standatone financial statenients for the peried ended 31 March 2023
(A amownts in Indian Ripees million wnless.otheniise stetfed)

30 Relaied party disciosures

Refated Party Disclosures” the names of related parties whose control

In accordance with the requiremenis of Ind AX 24 on © :
during the year and description of the rclutitmslzip, 48 identified and

exist and/or with whom transactions have taken place
certified by the managerent are as below:

(i) List.of parties where control exist

Sr. Relnted Part Country of Nature of Relationsliip

No. . _ any Incarperation: 3t Mareh 2023 31 March 2022

H I m:::: dl mernational (H.K.) Hong Kdng Wholly owned subsidiary Whelly owned subsidiary

2 “i:‘;i’é_‘“"m"“"“a' WY Inongkeng  [Wholly owned subsidiary Wholly ownied sibsidinry

3 _|Lava Technologies L.L.C. Usa. i‘.’hoily awned subsidiary Wholly owned subsidiary

.4 [Lava Technologies DMCC UAE | Wholly owied subsidiary Wholly awned subsidiary
.-.\,i. -’d - N ) ’ .
5 ;;{nf Bird Controamierica Panima { Wholly owned subsidiary Whotly owiied subsidiary
_ O Subsidinry ISubsidiaey

6 [Lava Enierpri . : _ : HYE _

- ve Enlerprises Linvited _ .Ind]a (Owncd-‘).g_,ﬁ_s%-shm'cs) {ane.é.ﬁ.‘).%% shares)

7 [Sojo Distribution Private Indi Subsidigry Subsidiary

- jLdmited —_ (Ovwried 90.00% shares) {(Owned -90;’00%_-5harcs]

§ Sojo Manufacturing Services lidia Subsidiary Subsidiary
(A.D.) Private Limited I ‘(()wrm‘d 99.97% shares) (Owned 99.97% shares)

o |Sois Manu{acturing Services | In dia Subsidiary Subsidiary
Privale Limited (Owned 99.95% shares) (Owned 99;915% shates)

EN - Subsidiary Subsidiary:
H0 2P Lava Mobile Indonegia hidonesia (95% owned by LAVA (95% owhed by LAVA
; _ Internationat {H.K.) Fimiled) International (H.K.) Limited)
1 - e Subsidiary {Subsidiary
N Utxi:ﬁcmaimna! DMCC, UAE (wholly ewned by LAVA (wholly owned by LAVA
T [International (H.K.} Limited) Internationa] (1K} Limited)
| . Subsidiary [Subsidiney

12 I‘?:';?z:,\gﬂ:iﬂ[y a(n !:;vate} SriLonka {wholly owned by LAVA {whaliy owsed by LAVA

S b International (H.K.) Limited) Internationsd (H.K.) Limited)
, . . - Subsidiary Subsidiary

13 D;‘._f ?I\G"b’]e Mexico SDER.L. [y oo (99.00% shares owned by LAVA  [(99.00% shares owned by LAVA
T Iaternational (H.K.) Eimiled) Internptional (HK.) Limited)
- . , X Sobsidiary = Subsidiary

14 '(;“I' :::;’t’;:ju“’"‘” (Myanmary {yanmar  {(99.00% shares owned bY LAVA  [(99.00% sharés owned by LAVA
o International (1.K.) Limited) Internationgl €17.K.). Limited)

15 irvrm Sttt el (e s Subsidiary Sabsidiary _

I5 i,':l]:i::tlc:::::gwl (Nepal) Nepal {wholly owned by LAVA (wholly owned by LAVA
ks Iterngtional (HLK,} Limited; Infernational (M.K.) Limited)
Lava International ' Subsidiury Subsidiary

IO o Bungladesh  1(99.99% shares owned by LAVA  [(99.99% shares owned by LAVA
(Bangladesh) Limited . L ) ; LY

; international {14.K.) Limiled) [nternational (H.K.) Limited)
A T Cenreconres o oo ep Subsicliary Subsidimy '
17 ?ibl]: Consumer Produots, Pamgmd (wholly ewned by China Bird {wholiy owsed by China Bird
o Centroamerica 8.4,) Centraamarica S.A )
Subsidiary Subsidiary
18 [China Bird Hong Kong, FLuge* Hong Keng {wholly owned by China Bird {whoelly owned by China Bird
Centroamerica 8,A.) Centroamerica §.A.)
Subsidiary Subsidiary \
China Rird Guatemala, 5.4 [Guatemala (99% owned by China Bivd (99% owned by Chiga
Cenlroamerics 5.A.) Centroamerica F&4- "1




Lava International Linited :
Notes to standalone fingacial statements for-the period ended 31 March 2023
(A1l amonnts in Indian Rupees million nnless otherwise stated}

32 {Azami Mobile Afijen*#

South Aftica

(wholly owned by Azumi, §.A.)

Sr. Related Party Country of Nature of Rcl'a(iti';:sﬁip
No. - Incorporation 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
B Telecomunicateioncs Subsidiary Subsidiary .
20 Mexico. S A T3 (- +% México (9% owned by China Bird (99% ewned by China Ried
exico, SANDECV, . . i LT
Centroagmeric $.A4.) Cenfroamerica 5.A.)
Subsidiaiy 1Subsidiary
21 |Bmobile America 8. De RL** |Panama (wholly gwned by Mobile {{wholly owned by Mobile
Consnmer Products, S.A.) Consumer Products, $.A4.)
Subsidiary Subsidiary
22 18ms De Guatemala, S.A** Panamé (wholly owned by China Bird (wholly ewned by China Bird
Centroamerica 8.A.) Cenlioamerica S.A.)
Subsidiary Subsidiary
23 |Momemtum HEK, LT ** HongKong  [(wholly owned by Mobile (wholly ovined by Moabile
Consumer Products, S.A,) Consumer Products, S.A.)
Subsidiary "|Subsidiary
24 |Binobile Buropa®* Espaiia {wholly owned hy China Riid (wholly owned by China Bird
Céntivamerica 8.A.) Centroamerica S.A.)
e 1B Telccomunicaciones Subsidiary Subsidiary .
25 Colombia. §.A S Colombiy twholty dwned by Chind Bird (wholly owned by China Bird
P Centroametica §,A.) Contreamerica $.A.)
B Telecomunicaciones Subsidiary Subsidiary
Y1 Lationoamerica. §.A. Ecuador (wholly owned by China Bird Hwholly swned by China Bird
P Cenlroamerica S.A.) Centroamerica 5.A.)
Poder Ecuatoriano De Subsidiary _ -Sﬁhsidimﬁ"
27 [Manufactura ¥ Desarrollo LEeuador {whally owned by Mobile {wholly owned by Mobile
Poceumade, 8, A.%% Consumey Producis, S.A.) . [Consumer Praducts, S.A.)
Tl iiesryii e i Tha Subsidiary [Subsidiary.
28 L‘?g‘ﬂ‘f‘"’“““"'-“-“'-“’“-"’""I""”’ Perl - (wholly-owned by ChinaBird  {tivholly owsied by China Bird
o Centroainerica 5.A.) Cenlroamerics §.A.)
Subsidiary Subsidiary
29 [Azumi, §.A %% PBanama {(whotly owned by Mobile {wholly ovined by Mobile
| _ Consumer Producis, $.A.) Corisumer’roducts, $.A.)
30 [AZumi, S.A. Agencia En Chile Subsidiayy  |Subsidiary .
o AChilexs ’ (wholly owned by Azami, 8.A.) - (wholly owned by Azumi, $.A.)
. Subsidinsy Subsidiary
31 |Azumi Hong Kong Lid** Hong Kong (wholly owaed by Azumi, 8.A.)  Iwholly owned by Azumi, $.A.)
Subsidiary Subsidiary

{wholly owned by Azumi, 5.4.)

Subsidiary

[Subsidiary

33 jAzumi USA, Corp, ¥+ b , ey
A - Corp, USA {wholly owned by Azumi, S.A.) (whoHy owned by Azumi, S.A)
. - Subsidiury Subsidiary
34 |Neocom, SA “hile: ; . _ -
eocom, $.A Chile (wholly swned by Azami, $.A)  |(whelly owned hy Azumi, S.A.)
. ) Subsidiary Subsidiary
35 ez Mexico, S.A. DE C.v ¥ [Méx - . - . :
Neaz Mexico, S.A, DE C.V México {whoily owned by Azami, 8.4.) (whotly owned by Azumi, S.A.)
Yamuma Llecironics Jaint venture of Subsidigries Joinl venure of Subsidiaries
36 IMaonufacturing Cluster Privale {India
Limited (YEMCPL) "
39 Nfag.ic']"cl Solutions Privale India Associate Associale
Limited
38 [Lava Lmployee Wellare Trust | India Controlled (rust Controiled frust

* Chiva Bird Centroameriea S.A. became subsidiary w.e.f. 16(h Seplember, 2021
¥ Subsidiary Companies of China Bird Centroamerica $.A. became subsidipry of Lava Internationgl TA¢
Septerrher, 2021
LT

1V

International DMCC, UAL cease to exist w.e.f. 12th June, 2023

Ioth
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(i) Others (with whom transactions have taken place during the year)

influenced by key managensent
persunnct or their relatives

Sr. Country of Nature of Relationship
Rel; Par -
No, ated Party Incorporatipn 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
1 8ajo Infotel Privale Limiled india nterprises owned or significantly|Enterprises ovinédt or significantly

influciced by key management
persorinel o their refatives

Logistics {Partoership Firm)

2 |Gtdmate Iiternational Private [fudia Enterprises owned or significantty|Eaterprises owned or significantly

Limited influenced by key management|infiuenced by key management
personnel or their relatives persormel or théir relatives

3 [Am Expross Worldwide India Enterprises owned or significantly|Enterpises:ovwned or significantly

influenced by key munugement
persomel or their relatives

infiuenced’ by key management
personnel oriheir relutives

(it} Key Management Personnel :

Mr. Hari Om Ral ~ Chairman & Managing director Qupto 28th Februaiy 2024)
Mr. Shuitendea Nath Rai -~ Whoic time director
My, Vishal Sehgal - Non Bxeoutive dircctor
81 Subil Bhalia - Non LExecutive director

M. Vinod Rai -Independent director {upte 22nd August 2023)

Mrs. Chitra Gowri Lal - Independent dircctor ¢upto 22nd Augnst 2023)
Mr. Rahul Kansal - [ndepeadent divéetor (upto 22nd August 2023)
Mr. Asitava Bose - Chief Financial Officer (upto 18th July 2922)

Mr. Vinod Sharina. ~Independent director (w.e.f 23vd August 2021 to 19th march 2024}
Mg Bharat Mishra - Company Secietaty (upto 3fst Pecember 2021)
‘M. Jitendra Kumar - Independent director {w.c.f 01st September 2023 1o 30th December 20233
Mr, Naveen Kumar ~ Company Secretary {w.c.l" 12th January 2022 1o 315t Augusl 2023)

ME: Sunil Raina - President & Business Head (w.c.f T8th May 2021)

Mf. Sanjeev Agarwal - Chiel Manuiaclu: ing Officer (w.e.f 18th May 2021)
M. Mugdh Rajit ~ Senior Vice Prisident - Head. Marketing, {w.c.f 18th May 202} o 29th September 2023)
Mr. Sourabh Raghuvanshi -Vice President - Sales & Supply Chain {w.e.f 18th May 2029

Mr, Nirav Giiishbhai Raval - Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 18th July 2022 to 3rd December 2022)

Mf. AsHtava Bose - Chief Financial Officer (w.c.f. 3rd Brecember 20229
Ms. Preeti ~ Company Secretary (w.e.!, 01st September 2023)

Mr. Sunil Raina - Whole Time Director {w.c.l. 06th Novernber 2023 1o 30th December 2023)
My Sanjeev Agarwal - Whole Time Direcior (w.e.f @l ehroary 2024}
Mr. Sunil Raina - Whole Time Director {w.c.t. 28th Feby wary 2024}

(This space kas been intentionatly left blank)
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Particulars

Subsidiaries

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

A. Traunsactions during the year
Investment made in related parties

Ching Bird Centroamerica S. A.

Export Bales to related partics

Ching Bird Centroamerica $.A.

Liva Techiologics DMCC

Sale of Services to related parties

Sajo Distsibution Private Limited

Purchase from rolited parties*

Lava International (H.K.) Limited

HOLO International (Hk) Lid.

Expenses incurred on behalfl of related parties
Sojo-Manufactining Services (AT) Private Lid
Sojé-Manufuacuring Services Private Limited
Sojo Pisteibtition Private Limited
Lava.Prierpeise Limited

Payment made to related parties

Liava ftérnational (H.K.) Limited

XOLO International (Hk) Ltd,

Advance given to related parties

Lavi Enterprise Limited

Sojo-Manufaeturiing Services (AP) Private Lid
Soje Ninufacturing Services Private Eimited
Sojo Distribsiion Private Limiled

XOLO Internitional (Hk) Lad.
Amountreceived from related paviics

Lavs Infernational (17.K.) Limited

Soje Mapifacturing Services (AP) Privawe 1.4d
XOLO Taternational (Fk) Lid,

Ching Bird Centroamerica S.A.

Lavi Technologies DMOC

B. Amount due to / from related pasties
Other reccivabies

Lava hiternational (H.X.) Limited

Sojo IJE_s_trji;uéi«;n Privale Lirgited

Sojo Manulaciasing Services (AP) Private Lid
Sojo Manufacturing Services Private Lid
Lava Teghnotogics DMCC

Trade vécéivable

Lava Techaologies DMCC

XOLO International (1%} 1.id,

China Bird Centroamericn 8.A,

Sojo Distribution Private Limited

Advtiuce to vendor

Sajo Bistribution Private Limited

Sojo Manufucturing Scrvices Private LLd
Lava Enterprise Limited

XOLO Intermatignal (H.K:) Limited

65.00

0.14.

328.82
3E83

0.09
.02
.02

003

294:61

23.25

Q.0
0.10
0.1
360

1848

2800
0.1

46.08

32.63
0.04
02.25

10.38

3087

343.83
477.88
24.60
0.42

2316
0.14
0.18

3,716.14

18.40
304.32

0.14

0.07
0.02
0.23
0.02

96.39

3.98
365

0.04
12.80
67.17

93.08
0.04
0.25

10,38

28.51

317.55
441.50
5.67
0.28

19.54
0.02

RS
AT
g '.\9’ \%
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Lava international Limited

Nates te standalone financiaf statements for the period ended 31 March 2623

(Al amownis.in Indian Rupees million wnless otherwise stirted)

Particulars

Substdinyies.

31 March 2023

31 Mareh 2022

Sejo Masuficturing Services (AP) Private 14d
Trade payable
Sajo Manufuctiring Services (AP Private 14d

27.60

0.15

*During the cusrent financial vear, guarantees issued i regpeet of certain purchase on oredit terims,
& yeir, g

FParticulars

Juint Venture

31 Mareh 2023

31 Miurch 2022

A, Transactiviis .:(i_iii‘flt_g the yenr

Expenses incusred on behalf of related parties

Yamunz Bléelonics Manufacturing Cluster Private Limited
Advance given fo related partics

Yamuna Elecfronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Eimited
B. Amount due from related parties

Advance to vendor:

Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Limited

.10

0.21

6.07

.11

Particulars

Parties in which Key Management Persongel of the
Compiny arveinferested

31 March 2693

31 March 2022

A, Trangactiong ame_i_ng ;ﬂnc year
Equity Shares issued to relited parties

[Sojo Infolel PviLimited

Sales 1o relateil pastics

Ottomate [nteinationaf Private Limited
Services falen

Am Express Worldwide Logistics
Expenses incurred on hehalf of related parties
Sojo Infotel Pvi Limsited

Payment. made.fo refated partios

Am Express Worldwide Logistics
Amomit received from related parties
Otlemale Intérnational Private Limited
Advance Given

Sojo Infotel Pvi Limited

Advanee veceived from related parties
Sajo Infotel Pyt Limited

B. Amoeunt duc'to / from related parties
Other receivables

Sojo Infotel Pyl Limited

Advance te Vendor

Sojo Infolel Pyl Limited

Trade receivable .
Qitomate Internationad Private Limited
Trade Payable

Am Express Worldwide Uogistics

3.08

0.98

.16

.09

95.60

(.04

1,020.00

0.07

0.03

0.04

95.60




Lava International Timited
Nofes to standalene financial scatements for the period ¢nded-31 March 2023
CAll amonnts-in fndian Rupees mitlion unless otherwiss steted)

Countrolled Tyust
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars

A, Transattim:s‘ earing the year

Expenses incnrred on behall of related parties
Lava Employee Welfare Trust 0.07 6.07
Advance given to relafed parties
Lava Employee Welfare Frust 0.10 .
B, Asiount due from related parvties
Other reecivables

Lava Employce Wetfare Trust 68.27 68.10

Kenmuneration of Key Management Personnel

Particulsirs -

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Short-terth employee benefits 62.34 45,25
Post-employment bencfils 4.63 447

All transactions. with refated pariies are made on terms equivaient to those that prevail in arm's length tran_su_e‘tions, Quistanding
balances at the year-end are unsecured-and thejr settlement, oceuss in cash, For the yeur ended 31 March 2023 and year ended 31
March 2022, the Compasty has nol recorded diny impairment of reeelvables relating 16 amounts owed by 1élated parties.

{This space kas been infentiviially-feft blank) .




Lava International Limited
Notes to stundalons financial statements for the peiod ended 31 March 2023
(Al amonnts in Indian Rupees miltion wnless otherwise stited)

3

Conumifmients sind contingencies

{A) Capital anil other canimitments

(8)

(%)
®

(iE):

(it}

Particulars: 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
listimated amount of contracts 1o be executed on ¢apital accoant o - 84.22
[net of capital advances amounting to Rs. Nil (31 March 2022: Rs, 15.15

million} and rigt provided for] {refer note 9(a)}

Contingent linlsilitios

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2632
Runk guarapiecs : 672.25 737.57
Sales tax:and custol smalers [refer note (8] (amount paid under protest Rs, 448,17 451,69

15843 mikion) (31 March 2022: Rs, 126.65 million)

Geods and service tx matiers {refer note (b)] (amounit paid under protest 944,54 9,70
Rs. 4% millmn) (31 Magch 2022: Rs, Nil million)

Income tax matters (amount paid under protest Rs. 6.05 million) (31 Mg‘it‘c;h' 96,41 92,95
2022: Rs. 5.05:million)

3,161.37 129191

Sales tax and custom

“The Hon’ble. Supreme Cowtt of India vide its order dated 17 December 2014 -in-the case of State of Punjab Vs. Nokia India

Tyt. Limited,.lias held that the mobile charger contained in the inebile phoneetail pzmk is-an independent: part and'shall be
separately chalgcd to VAT at the rale as applicable to the chargers. The appeliant has aircady approached e Hon'ble
Supreme Cofirt in a review pelition uhdllcngmg the judgment. in view of this: Jndgmem, the VAT Authorities of" various
states have se,d:demandh along with interestand. penalties aggregating to Rs, 110.06million (31 March 2022: Rs, 11546
1111[!1011) The Company has fled appeal against these demands. Amount pald under protest. against demands amountitig to
Rs. 39.75 million (31 March 2022: Rs, 46.50 millicha} have been dzsoiosed under Datance with stitutory/government
guthorities in:other assels.

Based on the degal assessment. management befieves that the possibifity of ‘materializing sales tax demands s low,
Accordingly, no provigion is made in the financial stalements for such demands,

Sales tax demands received of Rs 30.70 million {31 March 20221 Rs. 28.82 miillion) {amount paid under protest of Rs. 6.19
million (31 March 2022: Rs. 7.66 mitlion}) {out of which Rs. 1.86 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 3.45 million) is pending for
refund from department as the cases had been disposed off in favour of the compgny} fromi various sales tax suthorities for
which the management believes that the possibility of materializing the demand fs:remote.

Sales tax demands received of Rs 283,70 milbon {31 March 2022; Rs. 283.70 million} (ameunt paid under profest ol R
70.93 million: 131 Mureh 2022: 70.93 miliion) classifying mobile phone under residuary entry under schedule- V, Wherens as
per lawyer's oplnion product is well covered in specific eatry 39 under schedule -1V for which management also betioves
that the possibifity of materializing lhe sales tax demand is low. Accordingly, no provision is made in the {inancial
statements for stch demands.




Lava Infernafjonal Limited
Notes to standalone financinl statements for the period ended 31 March 2023
(Al amoints In Indian Rupees million zndess otherwise siated)

{iv}

v)

(I}
(i)

(ii)

)
i

"Camera Module for mobile phone® is neither similar nor identical with "Digital Sl buage video camerss” as claimed by
compety and thus the items *Camera Module for mobile phone® is lotally difTerent from “Bigital sull image video camergs,
hence dvailed exemption is not eligible to company. According 1o the Company, the company bave righlly claimed
exemption from the payment of SWS under SR No 30 of the notification No 1172018 CT dated 02.02.2018 which exempls
“Digital Sil Imiage video cameras” falling under the Heading 8525 8020, considerin i camera module & digital still image
vidco cameras serving the same purpose which ig capuning the image and stored in data bank, Therefore, the Company have
done no mistake. by ctaiming exemption under above saié aotification, The period in which the Cempany had claimed this
exempiion is 2nd Feb 2018 w0 3 st Jul 2019, Total ainount involved is Rs. 23.71 million (31 March 2022: 23.71 million).
Against- the order passed by Commissioner, the Company have fited an appeal before the CESTAT Delbt & deposited Rs.
£.56 million (31 March 2022; 1,56 million) of ahove mmount for filing the appeal as preseribed under Jaw. As per the
caisuitant, the Company have a good case to argue and justify the claim,

Search was conducted by Diresiorate of Revenue Intelligence (DRIY af company’s premises on Febiuary 09, 2022, During
investigation, questions sveré rafsed on. interpretation issue for classification on imported display assembly. To -avoid
unnecessary “husiness interruption, the company had decided to: make a deposit of Rs: 40 million under protest. The
Company has not received any show cause netice or demand from the Department. The management is of the opirion that
the Company is in cempliance of law and ihe Company has strohg chagides of success agains any dispuie/demand and no
Hability witt arise.

Goods anid Service tax

GST Tax demands received of Nil (31 Mareh 2022: R5-9:70 million) (amount paid under protest of Rs. Nil (31 March 2022:
Nil) on account of less [TC Reversat u/s 42/43 of COST Agt, the company had repticd ngainst the nofice. We have submitted
letler an April. 03, 2622 with GST dept., Noida for cleatance of this:matier-and same has been settled in-our favour.

During the review of transaclions of cerfaist third parties, the Directorate General of Goods and Service Tax (DGGI), has
identitiéd certaln sale und purchase transactions which was executed by the Company with tsose partics. Based on that, (he
Depariment has issued a show cause notise dated July 30, 2022 (6 the Cotapany for the reversal of Taput Tax Credit of Rs.
920 million (amount paid under protest-ofRs. 20 million (315 March 2022: Nil)} relnted to carlier years. The Company has
filed interim roply on June-21, 2023 befure the aforémentioned adjuvating autherity, Managemett has. obtained a legal
opinion from the lawyors and based. on such assessment, the Company does not expect any financial exposure and believe
that it has.a strong case and aveordimngly, vie such reversdliof Tnput Tax: Credit will be required. Accordingly; ho penally, if
any, will also be leviableas per the assesstiont of the management,

Further, out ¢{ transactions of certain third parties under review of DGGE, show cause notice has been issuwd by GST
department, Delhi of Rs. 602.69 million on dated December 1, 2023 and Rs, 341.85 million (out of Rs. 371.14 milfion) on
dated September 23, 2023 in relation (o certnin transactions with few parlies. The Compsny has filed the roply against the
dermand notice oo October 20, 2023 and conclusion pending for complelion, As matter pending before DGGI and GST
departmest, Delhi arc for the same transaclions; hence, it should be assessed by the single asthority, Management belicves
that the Company is not anticipating any liabifity against these notices.

Others

The Compuany has filed a civil suit against Tefefonaktichol agel LM Ericsson (*Erviesson’) belore the Hon’ble District Court,
Gaugam Budh Nagar in the month of January 2015 in relation to alleged standord essential Patents of Ericsson. M/
Telefonakticbolages LM Ericsson (‘Ericsson®} filed 2 counter suit alleging infringement of it's alleged patents against the
Company in the month of March 2015, Since then, both the sniss have been transferred/clubbed belore the Tonhle 1eihi
High Court and ase peading final adiudicagion.

Hon'ble High Court, Deihi vide its order dated June 22, 2016 has passed an inferim order wherein the Company was
fnjuncted from manufactening, importing, selling its devices, subject to the condiion of deposit of Rs, 300 million (as
modified in appeal} with the Registrar General of Dethi High Cowt, The Company has complicd with the said order and
deposited] g som of Rs. 300 miltion, as a result of which, the aperation of Iterim Order was stayed G the final dispossl of
the main suit. Presently the aforesaid seils are pending adjudication belore the Delsi 13 igh Court. Based on legal advise and
management’s assessment thereol, the Company does ot expect any finascial exposure upon {:gﬁi%@i}]unmy and
aceordingty fio provisien has been made in the finuncial statement of the Company. ?f;:’(/;, o
TR TN 3
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Lava Intcenational Limifed
Notes to standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 Mavceh 2023
(All amowsits i Indicm Rupces miltion unless otherwise statec)

(i) On July 1, 2017, Research and Coliaboration A greement (*RCA’) was exceuted between the Company, Mimcttectuals 1.LP
and Nokia Technologies as a confirming party. Under the RCA, the parlics were (o.gxplore and work 1owards the possibility
of technical and rescarch collaborations between Mintellectuals/Nokia and the Compiny. ’

The Conipany made payments to Mintelicotuals LLI under the RCA, with 2 view (o receive the Research and Collaborstion
deliverables envisaged under the Agreement. The pariies also agreed not to challenge/assert any legal rights in relation o
Technically Necessary Patents, if any, used/practiced during fhe ierm of this agreement. The payments in question were
being made by the Company in-lieu of the execulory consideration/promise/obligation of Mintellectuals/Nokia to enable and
assist reseavel and collaboration in.terms of the RCA and no techinisuily neoessary patents were used/practiced.

Consequently, the Company declared-the RCA to be frostrated as there was no copsideration in its favour and consequently
stopped making payments to Mintellectuals. As a result of this dispute, Mintellectuals initiated arbitration proceédings for
resovery of amounts for the 41h anid 5th quarter under the RCA, which was denied by the Company: ajong with secking
refund of the amounts paid for the first three quarters undéi the RCA (“First Arbitration™, In relation to ihe Firsi
Arbitration, an award dated July 15, 2020 had been passed” helding the.Company liable to pay approximately Rs. 240
miHlion. The Company has chalfenged (he award of the First Arbifration before the Hou’ble Righ Coutt of Delhi, which is
admitted and pinding final adjudication. Without prejudice-to it’s challenge to-the:award, the Company has already paid Rs,
271.03 milfions (including TDS net of GST) and submiited bank guaraniteeof Rs<119.50 millions with the Registrar Geneial,
Delhi High Coiirt. Basis the Company’s management assessmentand supported by iridopendent legal opinion from the legal
counsel of the: Company, subject to the pending chalfenge, the entire amount paid by the Company under this agrégment to
Mintellectuals is fully recoverable on legal grounds in favour of thie Company.,

MinteHeetuuls had initiated another arbitration proceeding 1o claim amount allegedly due to it for the 6th guaster onwards
("Second Aibitration™), which is pending af the arbitral tribunal and no amotnt have beer adjudicated as yet o1 the claims
faised by Minteliectuals, Without prejudice to the samie, the company has deposited the post-dated cheques rmounting to Rs.
- 226.22 millions us a secwrily with the concerned aibiteal tribunal. Management lias taker legal opinjon from the lawyears and
‘as per managerment’s assessinent, company has strong case before arbitral tribunal on-the ground presented by Lhe company.

(it) On November 29, 2017, Share Subscription & Shareholder Agreement ('S8SHIA’) was executed between the Company,
Spansors of the Company and UNIC Memory Technofogy (HK) Ltd. (FUNIC?), There were cortain dispute hetween the
pasties for wiiich arbitration proceeding was initiated,

During the arbitration, settlement was srrived between the partics on the basis of which Consent Award dated Seplember 9,
2021 (*the Consent™), was passed by the arbitral tribusal,

In terms-of the Consent Award UNIC has approached Delhi High. Count which is pending adjudiention. The Compiany has
evaluated the case and does not foresee any additional ligbility towards UNIC,

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




Eava Internations) Limited ,
Nofes to siandalone fingucial statements for the period ended 31 March 2023
{AN amonnts in fndian Rupees mitlion unless otheswise stated)

32 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2086

On the basis of conlinmation obtained from suppliers who have registered themselves vnder the Micro, Small gnd Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (MSMLED: Act; 2086) and based on the isformation available with the Company, dues
disclosed.as per the Micro, $mall and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2006 at the ygar end are below:

8. |Particulars 31 March 2023 | 3{ March 2022
No. _ )
! h"P"‘""iﬂﬂl smount remaining unpaid to any supplier us at the énd of each (3917 241,90
ACCOUTING year _ _
5 The'interest:due thereon remaising uipgdid to dby supplier us at the end of cach L19 LI%
© [aecointing year. ’ !
Thezamotnt of interest paid by the buayer in (erims of seetion 16 along with the
3 jamounts-of the payment made 16 thi supplier beyond the appointed day during Nil Nl
eneh gecounling year, _ _
The: amount of inferest due and payable for-the perdod of delay in making
4 [payment (which have been paid but beyond the appoiiried day during the year) Nil Nif
butwithou! adding the interes{ specified.ander this Aot
5 ) The dmount of interest accrucd and fcmainirig whpaid al the énd -of each 119 119 -
accounting year; and _ ) )
The amaunt of further interest remaining due and payable even ir lhe
~ 6 jsucceeding years, until such date when the fnterest ducs as above are actually, Nil Nil
paid 1o the:small enterprise.

33 Details of Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility as per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and vules

ihereon:-
S, {Particadars 31 Mareh 2023 | 3% Maveh 2022 |
No.
) 'G'r@:s.s asnound required to be spent .by the Company during the year 10.03 ‘805
2 Api¢unt.gpent fn cash during the year on: 14.63 g.10
a} (f?hﬁsl;'uctionf: acquisition of any asset - -
b) iBafeguarding environmental suslatngbility - .10
¢} Hromotion of education 10,03 -
dy [Uplifiment of Ruraf Poor Youth _ . -
e)  [Uplifiment of Sports and Cultural Activities - -
3 Shoi’_t_f_zi%_i '_a_i the end of the year - -
4 [Reason for Shostfali NA NA
5 |Conitribution 10 trust controtied by the company Nil Nil
& iMovement in Provision made Nil Nit

(This space has been intentionally feft blank}
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Notes to standalone finaneial statements for the period ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in Indien Rupees million wnless othenvise stated)

34 bmpont of mobile phones only attracts Special Duty of Custons in ey of Excise (CVD) which is equivalent to excisc duty

35

gpplicable en like poods us i manufactured or produced in Todis: Acomé_mgly mobife phones manufactured in India are
subject 1o éxeise duty at the rai¢ of 13.5% (including NCCD-of 1%) if:-Cenvat Credil on'inputs and cupital goods is availed
(rate of duty was 7.21% (including NCCD of 1%) tifl 28 February 2015) dnd 2% (including NOCD of (%) if such Cetval
Credit oh inputs-and capital goods is not svailed,

‘This has been (urther clarified by the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India in the similar cases by ruling (hat the benefit of
exemption { concessional rate of gxise duty, which is subject (o4 condition that no Cenvat credit on inputs or capital goods
used in the manufacture of such goods shall be taken, is also-avoilabie to the importers of like goods for payment of CVD
under Customs,

During the financial years: 2(!!4 ~2015 and 2015 - 2016, the Company was clearing the imported mobile phones by faying
CVD of customs a¢ higher rate of 7.21% before March 01, 2015 aad 13.50% from March ¢1, 2015 instead of 2% during
réspéctive periods, The Corpany pol re-assessed bifls of entues amounting to Rs 638.47 million during the fiancial year
208718 Post clarification’issued by the Hon’ble Suprema:Couit e M/s SRF case discussed above, and-afler re-assessment of
Bills of entries, the-above said CVD amount became Tully récaveratite. Accordingly, the Company has claimed refund as per
the Customs Aet 1967,

As at 3ist March 2023, total amount recoverable amounting to Rs: 315.37 million (3] March 2022: Rs. 315.37 million).
(including recoverable charges for delayed payment amounting, to Rs. 251,54 million {3 March 2022: Rs. 251.54 miltion))
was recorded, has been disclosed under “Batance with statulory/goverimgnt auﬂmr:lm" based-an fegal opinion obtained,

Research and development expenditure
The Company hus' daly carried oul its research. and ‘development nctivities during the year and the details of related
expenditure dre given befow:

Partienlars ' 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Amount chasged to Statement of Tyofii and Loss 155.88 12892

Amount capitalised .
- Properiy, plant and cquipment 11,89 1036

167.77 139.28

(This space his been infenrionally foft blank)
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Noles to standalone financial statements for the period ended 31 Mareh 2023
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36 Employee siock option plans:

The plans existing during the year are as follows:

Number of otions approved

15% of Equity Paid up Share capital

Method of settlement {Casl / Equity)

Cash/Equity

Vesting conditions

its subsidiary

“The emiployee should be on 5o of the Company of

The detrils of activity tmder ESOP Schemes have been summarized below*:

31 March 2623

31 March 2¢22

The details of the ESOP: (}uistundi_zz_g__.arc as Tollows*:.

Number of Weighted Number of Weighted
N sverage avernge
apions L . options P
. i CXErCise price CXCECISC J1 IC{:
Outstanding af the beginning-of ysar 49,161,554 8.35 48,701,702 827}
Options granted (Ei%_i‘i_[‘l&{f}tf year | 1,201,872 24,86 459,852 17:03
[Exercised / Sefded during the yeur 152,969 19.2 - -t
F_Oi‘éﬁeled _.d'u_tﬁin_g the year: ' _ 482,907 16.09 - ]
Qutstsnding at the:end of the year 49,727,550 8.64{ 49,161,554 8.35
Exercisabie us at end of the year 44,449,927 7.58) 42,619,502 7.V}

Options Guésianding.as:ai31 March 2023

.Opt_fﬁ;ls 'Oﬁtstandillg as at 31 R*Inile:.liﬁzz{}.zi

No.of shares  Weighied Weighted Ng. of ghares Weighted Weighted
Range of exercise price  arising oui of Average Average arising-out of Average Average
per share opiions remainieg  Exereise price options remaining, Exetcise
conlpactinal life contractual life. price
Rs1-Rs 3.125 20,444,744 276 2.50 20,444,744 396 2,50
R, 6.250 = R, 9:375 1,639,200 3.18 .72 1,639,200 4.18 7.72
Rs 9375 - Rd, 12,500 18,508,158 - 10.95 18,508,158 L1y 10.95
Rs, 15.625 - Rs. 18.750 7,933,575 2,99 16.82 8,569,449 3.73 16.81
s, 21875 - Re, 25.000 1,201,872 4.00 24.86 - - -

*Nursher of ESOPs and its exercise price has been cafeulated taking inlo account the following events happened post 31

March, 2021:

4) Pursuant {o the approval of shareholders gmn!ed in the extra-ordinary general miceting held on 10 September 2021, the
Company undertook a stock split of one existing equity share of Rs, L8 each into two fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 5 each.
by Pursuant @ the approvai of shurcholders granied in the extra-ordinary gencral mecting held on 10 September 2021, the

every one exigting fully-paid up equity share of Rs. § cach held as on the record date of 08 September 2021,

The share based payment expensé incurred duving the year is shown in the foliowing table:

Expense arising (rom equity-seftbed share-bised payment transaclions

(Income) / Expense arising fron saulement of oplions

3 March 2023 31 March 2022

16.83

126.69

£6.83
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37 Lease Liabifities

Confraetusl nistoritics of lease Uabilitles;-

The details of contractual maturities of lease liabilities as-at March 31, 2023 & Murch 3§, 2622 on an undiscounted basis are-

as follows:-

Particulars 31 Mareh 2023 31 Muw'ch 2022
Payable not luter than § year 38.40 30.16
Payable later than § yearand not 10947 132.43
later than 5 year

147.87 162.59
Lease fiabiHty
Partiealays Office buitding Factory Wareliouse Vehiele Total-

building Building
As ut 31 Mareh 2021 51,00 133,13 221 - 186,34
Addition in lease Hability - . - - -
Prefetion in lease Hability - " - - -
Inlerest expense on-fease liability 5.68 14.85 025 - 20,78
Payment made during CY 1328 30.68 0.57 . 44.53
As at 31 Mareh 2022 4340 117,30 1.89 - 162,59
Addition in lease tubility . - - 19,08 19,08
Dieletion in fease liability - - - - -
Tnterest expense ofi lease liability 4,84 13.09 0.20 0.55 18.68
Fayment made during CY 13.79 33.93 0.59 4.17 5248
As at 31 March 2023 3445 96.46 1.50 1546 147.87
Nou Gurrent portion 23.02 71.94 102 13.49 109.47
Current maturiies of lease
11.43 24.52 0.48 197 38:40

Habitity

(This space has been intentionally lefi-blank)
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38 Ratios
The following arc analylicat ratios for the yeur ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022: -
Particulars Numerator BDenominater | For the yesr ended | For the year ended Variance
) _ Mareh 31, 2023 March 31, 2022 _
Coirrent Ratio* Currenl assets Current liabilities 1.58 2.52 -37.38%
Debi- Equity Total debt Shascholder's 0.23 0.14 58.40%
Ratio* including fease  joquity
linbilitics
Drebt Service Earnings {Pebt service £.06 b42 -25.76%
Coverage Ratio*®  javailable for-debt [including lease
service. liabilities
Return on Bauity  [Net Peofil.afler  1Ave. sharoholder's 2.78% 3.07% ~9.47%.
tases equity
Inventory Furnover|Revenue Avp, inventory 5.04 4.78 5:39%
Ratio _
|Teide receivable  {Reventic 1Avg, Trade 3.98 2.29 73.96%
Tirnover Ratio* recedvables
Trade payable Purchases Avg, Trade 5.18 4.39 17,90%
Tumover Ratia payables
Net Capital Revenue Ave. Working 2.91 1.81 G0.85%
[Turnover ratio* capital
Net Profit Retio®  [Net profit Revenue 1.60% 2.23% -28,028%
{Return on Cagital {Easnings before | Capital employed 7.24% 4.90% 47.78%
employed* inlerest and taxes
Return on Et:yiiiz‘:«_g,’t_{ before  |Avg. Total assets 4.04% 4.24%. =4.76%
Invegtment interestand iaxes '

*Eyplangtion where va

Cnrvent Ratio: deereased dud 10 déviiie in trade re

¢ is move than

ivable od-dgcount of inerease in allowance made for expeeted credic

loss as.compared {0 previous financial year.

Debt Equity Ratio: increased due 1o destine in other equity as cormpared to previous financial year.

Pelit Service Covernge Ratio: decreased duc to increase in debt répayment as.compared 1o previous financial year.

Trade Receivalile Turioveit Ratio: increased due to-revenue grovth and dectine in trade receivable on account of increase
in allowance made for expeéoled eredit loss as compared to previous financial yeat.

Net Capital Tursover Ratio: increased due to yevenue growth und reduction i average working capital duc o decling in
trade receivabte on account.of increase in allowance made for expected credit loss in current finansial year.

Net Profit Batioi decreased die o févenue growth and degline in net profit for the year,

Return on Capital smployed: increased due to reduction in capital employed on account of deeline in other equity as
compared 16 previous financial year,

3% Previous year fighires have been reclassedfregrouped, wherever considered necessary (o make them comparable with those for
the curent year.
The summary of regrouping related (o siandalone balance sheet as at 3§ March 2022 are as follows;

Particulars Notes 31 March 2622 Reprouping 31 March 2022
Regrouped
Financial assets
Other financial asset 74N 1.045.85 (986.13) 59,72
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalenis 7{d) 220.64 303.69
Other bank baldiices 7{c) 601.92 482.44
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The Company has appointed independent copsultants for condweting a (ransfer pricing study to didermine whether the
Lransactions with associaled enferprises were underiaken at Marm’s lesgth price®. The management conlirms that gl

international transactions with associate enferprises are undertaken af wegotiated contracted prices ot usual commercial terms
and there is no-adjustments required in financia! statements on completion of the siudy.

There are cértain receivables and payables where the Company istends 0 set off with each other, For the purpose of
presenlation in finapcial statefnends, such receivabies und payibles liave been presented on net basis, The Company i$ in

process of obtaining the requisite approvals from the appropriate-authosiiies in this repard.

Non Adjusting Bvents subsequent fo 31 Maich, 2023

In respect of ceriain ransactions pertaining to other company/companies relating to prior periods, the Dircciorite of
Enforceinent (D) hus filed a case against the Company and its former Managing Director which is sub-judice. On the basis
af the infivmation available und the fegal opinion obtained by-the. Compuny, the prospects of the case being discharged is
favorable. Accordingly, as on. the date of appioval of these: financial results, the Company is not required (0 make any
adjustments, disclosures or g:ven any effect {o:the financial statéments.,

There were ra amounts which were required to be transferred to-the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the company.

The company did not have any long-term contracts for which there et any material foreseeabie losses.

The Company does not have diy Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company
for holding any Benurmi property.

The Company has not been déglared willRil defaviter as-at thé.date of the balance sheet or on the date of approval of the:

financiat statements.

The Compiany has not-advanced ot foaned or invested funds'to any ollier person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entitics
{intemediaries) with the understanding that the: intermediary shali:

(a) directiy o ||1d1rcclly lend of invest in other persons or eiitities identified in any manner whatsogver by or on behalf of the
company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or _

(b} provide any guarantee, security o the like to or-on behalfof thie Ullimate Beneficiaries.

‘The Company has not received any fund {rom oy person(s) or entity(ics), mcludmg {oreign enlllim (Funding Parly) with the
understanding (whether recorded in-writing or otherwise} that thie Company shatl:

(a} divectly or indirectly lend o iGvest in other persons or ehtities identified in any minaer whalsoever by or v behall of the

Fanding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b} provide any guarantec, security or the like on bebalf of the Uliimate Beneficiarics.

The Company is in compliance with the number of layers preseribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act,
2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on naember of Layersy Rules, 2087 {as amended).

There is ne income surrendered or disclosed as-income during ¢hé current or Previous year in the tgx assessments urder the
Inceme Tax Act, 1961, thal lins nol been revorded in the books of account,

The Company has no transaciions during the year with the comipanies sieuck off under Companics Act, 2013 or Companics
Act, 1956,

The Company have not traded or invested in Cryplo currency or Vistual Cuorrency during the linaneial year,
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Place: Nolda Place: Noida
Date; March 26, 2024 Date: March 26, 2024

Pursuant to the Share Swap Agreenient dated August 4, 2021 enlered into smongst the Company, China Bird Cenlreamerica
8.A., Clipper Global 8.A., sharehalilers of Clipper Global 8.A, and shurcholders of the Company, the Company purchased
15,000 equity shaies aggregatiog to 100% of the issued and paid-up share capital of Ching Bird Centroamerica 8.A., on a
fully dituted basis, from the Clipper Global-8.A. for a consideration of USD 50.54 miltioiy.

On 161h Sepiember 2021, the Company had issued a total of 27,888,492 equily shares at a face value of Rs. 5 cach (share
premium of Rs. 128.25 each) (o Clipper Global $.A.. for acquisition of China Bird ‘Cenirowmerica $.A. with 108% equity
stake for o (otsl purchase congideration of Rs. 3,716.14 mitlions,

China Bird Centroamerioa S.A. Is engaged in the supply of mobile phones and telecommunication cquipments of its v
brand.

The Codeon Social Security, 2020 (*Code’) relating 10 employee benefits, during employiment und post-employnent benefits,
fias received thie Presidential assent in September 2020, This Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the
effeetive date from wiiich the changes are applicabie is yet 1o be notified and the rujes-for quanlifying the financial impact are
also yet o be jssuéd; The Compuany will evaltiste the impact. of the; Code and will give appropriate impact. in the [manw&l
$latements in the petiod i which the Code becomes effective-and the related rules are published.

For Raj Gupita and Company For and on belaif of the Bogrd of Directors of
Chartered Aceountants, Lava Internationad Lisisited
Firms Rﬁ/%l_s‘g‘\atmn No.: 000203N CIN: U32201DL2009PLCI 88920

: Ve ~"Shaitendra Nath Rai Suni ﬂhaliiﬂ ‘Vishsl Sehpal
Partner Whole-Tine Dirgelor I¥irector Brirector
Meinbership No. 5530645 {DIN-GOY38417). {(IHN-00980040) (BIN-03127049)

Sanjc v A ;‘%&4

Whole-Time Director Whole-Time I)amctol
{IMN-09302069) {(DEN-07110183)

P
b
R //
Asilava Bose Preefi
Chief Findncial Officer Company Secrotary
(M. No.- AS3936)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Lava Intetnational Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Lava Intemational
Limited (“the Holding Company™), its subsidiaties (the Holding Company and its subsidiaties
together referred to as "the Group"), its trust, associate and a joint venture comprising of the
consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
informaton.

In out opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and
based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate Ind AS financial statements and
on the other financial information of the subsidiaties, trust, associates and joint ventures, the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the infotmation tequired by the Companies
Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) ptescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Gtoup as
at March 31, 2023, its consolidated ptrofit including other comprehensive income, consolidated
changes in equity, and its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act).
Our responsibilities under those Standards are further desctibed in the 'Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements' section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these’requir t;ments and the
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suf é,lifllt{ d apptoptiate to

Ir = X\
provide a basis for our audit opinion. a Ifﬁi
U\t_‘:e FRN: ‘}

Kolkata J&K Ludhiana New Delhi Mumbai Bangalore Chennal Hyderabad Amritsar
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Othet Information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the prepatation of other information.
The other information comprtises the information included in the Holding company’s Annual report,
but does not include the consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our repott thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, out responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is matettally
inconsistent with the consolidated Ind AS financial statements ot our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have petformed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are requited to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Ind AS financial statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Ditectors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a
truc and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated change in equity of the Group including its associate and
jolnt venture in accordance with the accounting principles genetally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (India Accounting Standards) Rule 2015 amended. The respective Board of Directors of
the companies included in the Group including its associate and joint venture are responsible for
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Group including its associate and joint venture and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregulatities; selection and application of apptopriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror, which have been used
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the Ditectots of
the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respecttve Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group including its associate and joint venture are responsible for
asscssing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless pianagement either intends
to liquidate the group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but t% 50,

o A
" .
~

Kolkata J&K Ludhiana New Delhi Mumbai Bangalore Chennai Hyderabad Amritsar
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The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group including its associate
and joint venture are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group
including its associate and joint venture. -

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain teasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as 2 whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud ot error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a matetial
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can atise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Tdentify and assess the tisks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or etror, design and petform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one tesulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misteptesentations, ot the override of internal control.

¢  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)() of the Act, we ate
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Group, associate, and joint venture
which the companies are incorporated in India has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of
such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether 2 material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncettainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s repott to the related disclosutes in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or,
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusiong lare based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. Howerfr, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 2 going congern. F */

Kolkata J&K Ludhiana New Delhi Mumbai Bangalofe Chennai Hyderabad Amritsar
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+  livaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactons and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

*  Obuain sufficient and approptiate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activides within the Group of which we are the independent auditors, to
express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision, and performance of the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of such
entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors. For the other entties included in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, which have been audited by othet auditors, such other auditors remain responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carned out by them. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to beat on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

a) We did not audit the financial statements of 27 subsidiaries and 1 trust whose financial
statements reflect total assets of Rs. 11,432.78 million and net assets of Rs 6,653.27 million as at
March 31, 2023, total revenue of Rs. 32,795.93 million and net cash outflow amounting to Rs.
28.46 million for the year then ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements before giving effect of elimination of intra-group transactions. The
consolidated Ind AS financial statements also include the Group's share of loss (including other
comptehensive loss) of Rs. 0.22 million for the year ended Match 31, 2023, as considered in the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in respect of an associate and joint venture, whose Ind
AS financial statements have not been audited by us.

These financial statements have been audited by the other auditors whose repotts have been
furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, in so fat as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, trust, associate and joint venture, and our repott in terms of sub-section (3) of
Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, trust, associate and
joint venture is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

Furthet, of these subsidiaties, 23 subsidiaties ate located outside India who Ind AS financial
statements and other financial information have been prepared in accordan%idﬁf-ﬁccoundng

Kolkata J&K Ludhiana New Delhi Mumbai Bangalore Chennai Hyder'a‘bad Amritsar
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principles generally acceptable in their respective countries and which have been audited by
other auditors under generally accepted auditing standards applicable in their respective
countries. The Holding Company's management has converted the financial statements of such
subsidiaries located outside India from accounting principles generally accepted in their
respective countries to accounting ptinciples generally accepted in India.

Also, we did not audit the financial statements and other financial information in respect of 8
subsidiary companies, whose financial statements reflect total assets of Rs. 93.55 million and net
assets of Rs. 10.80 million as at March 31, 2023, total revenues of Rs. 9.75 million and net cash
outflow amounting to Rs. 4.87 million for the year ended on that date, as considered in the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements before giving effect of elimination of intra-group
transactons. These financial statements and other information are unaudited and has been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the
subsidiaries, and our report in term of sub-section (3) of section 143 of the Act, in so far it
related to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on such unaudited financial statements and
other financial information. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations
given to us by the Management, these financial statements and other financial information are
not matetial to the Group.

Our opinion above on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements is not modified in respect of
the above matters with respect to out reliance on the work done and the repotts of the other
auditors and these financial statements and other financial informaton cettified by the
management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

With respect to the matters specified in clanse (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the
Companies (Auditotr’s Report) Order, 2020 (“CARO”/ “the Otrder”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act; according to the information and
explanations given to us, and based on the CARO reports issued by us and the auditors of
respective companies included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements to which
reporting under CAROQ is applicable, as provided to us by the Management of the Holding
Company, we trepott that thete are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective
auditors in the CARO trepotts of the said companies iricluded in the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements.

Section 143(3) of the Act is not applicable to LAVA Employee Welfare Ttust and companies
incorporated outside India. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based-on our audit and on
the consideration of the repotts of the other auditors on the separatg ‘financial statements and
other financial information of subsidiaries refetred to in the ‘Other,_BfI;!rtc(’er;ec‘tipn above we

| i

report, to the extent applicable, that: | ol Frnieg0203
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(2) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief wete necessary
for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books, and the repotts of the other auditors;

() The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss, (including
other comprehensive income), the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the putpose of the preparation of the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") presctibed under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

{¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the ditectors of the Holding
Company as on March 31, 2023 taken on recotd by the Board of Directots of the Holding
Company and the reports of the auditors of its subsidiary companies, associate and joint
venture which ate the companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group's
companies, its associate and joint venture which are companies incotporated in India is
disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial teporting and
operating effectiveness of such controls of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies,
associate, and joint venture which ate the companies incorporated in India, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”, and :

(® In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
temuneration paid by the Holding Company which are the companies incorporated in India
to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of
the Act. Futther, based on the auditor’s repott of subsidiary companies incorporated in
India, no managerial remunetation is paid/provided by these subsidiary companies to their
directors during the year ended March 31, 2023 and hence, reporting for the provisions of
secion 197 read with Schedule V to the Act is not applicable for these subsidiary
companies.;

() With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Repottin accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as i;?p%;l;twﬂgifh@ﬁx\opirﬁon and
to the best of our information and according to the explanationg givefi{p us as
the consideration of the report of the other auditors on sepatate |txi

X

fitg usiand based on
PR @é?ﬂm}.l%d;}statmwnts
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as also the other financial information of the subsididries, associates and joint ventures, as
noted in the ‘Other matter’ paragraph:

1.

i,

The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations
on its consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates, and joint ventutes in
its consolidated Ind AS financial statements — Refer Note 30 to the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements;

Provision has been made in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, as required
under the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any,
on long-term contracts including detivative contracts;

There wete no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, its subsidiaties, associates,
and joint ventures, incorporated in India duting the year ended March 31, 2023;

{a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaties which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under
the Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of such subsidiaries
respectively that, to the best of theit knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note 53 to
the consolidated Ind AS financial statement, no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or shate premium ot any other sources ot kind of
funds) by the Holding Company ot any of such subsidiaties to or in any other person(s)
or entty(ies), including foreign entitles (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing ot otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, ditectly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons ot entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaties and associate
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries |

(b) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries, which
ate companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have béen audited
under the Act, have represented to us and to the other auditors of such subsidiaries
respectively that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the note
54 to the consolidated Ind AS financial statement, no funds have been received by
the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaties and associate from any person(s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the undetstanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of
such substdiaties shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other-persons ot
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of/th&FundlE; Party
(“Uldmate Beneficiaries) or provide any guarantee, security on/ :
the Ultimate Beneficiaties.

Kolkata J&K Ludhiana New Delhi Mumbai Bangalore Chennai Hyderabad Amritsar
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Mob: 7889279571

considered reasonable and

us and that performed by the

other auditots to believe that the representations undet sub-clause (a) and (b)

contain any material mis-statement;

and paid dividend during the yeat.

account using accouniting software
facility is applicable w.e.f. April

The Holding company and subsidiaty companies incorporated in India have not declared

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of
which has a
1, 2023 to

feature of recording audit trail (edit log)
the Holding Company and its subsidiary

companies which are incorporated in India, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g)

of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
ended March 31, 2023

For Raj Gupta & Co.

Chartered Accountants

l'Tir}M"Rﬁgi'Sﬁ,ﬁfim\rl No: 000203N
) A

Partner

Membetship No. 553645
UDIN: 24553645BKCPHW5798

Place: Noida
Date; 20-05-2024

Kolkata J&K Ludhiana New Delhi

2014 is not applicable for the financial year
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Annexute - A to the Independent Auditors’ Repott of Even Date on the Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements of the Lava International Limited

Repott on the Internal Financial Controls undet Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of The Lava
International Limited (hereinafter seferred to as the “Holding Company”) as of and for the yeat
ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), its associates and joint ventures, which are
companies incorporated in India, audited by othet auditors.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Ditectors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies, assoclates
and joint venture incorporated in India, are responsible fot es tablishing and maintaining internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the respective Companies considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAT)”. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were opetating effectively fot ensuring the ordetly and efficient
condugct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under

the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditots’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to exptess an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both, issued by ICAL
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whethet adequate internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Qut audit involves petforming
procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal ﬁ,l’lan‘glﬁ controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. | | PR fog203N
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind
AS financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated Ind AS financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed tisk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of matetial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors of the subsidiary companies, which are incorporated in India, in terms of their reports
referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and approptiate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated Ind AS financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Refetence to Consolidated Ind AS financial
statements

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated Ind AS financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control ovet financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that(1) pettain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and faitly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authotizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements.

lnhete-nt Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Ind AS
financial statements '

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial repotting, including
the possibility of collusion or impropet management override of controls, matetial misstatements
duc to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any. evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future petiods are subject to-the tisk that the
internal financial control over financial teporting may become inadequate,-‘.i)‘_t‘:éau':_,,pf' ¢hanges in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures mg.y deferiorate: |

/
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company, its subsidiaty companies, its joint ventures, and its associates
which are companies incorporated in India have, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were opetating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal financial control
over financial reporting critetia established by the Holding Company considering the essential
components of intetnal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Control
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chattered Accountants of India.

QOther Matter

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(@) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness
of the internal financial controls over financial repotting, in so far as it relates to 4 subsidiaties, 1
associate and 1 joint venture which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the
cotresponding teports of the auditors of such subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
incorporated in India.

For Raj Gupta & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Figpg Regﬂmmm No: 000203N

CA Gautav Jindal

Partner

Membetship No. 553645

UDIN: 24553645BKCPHW5798
Place: Noida

Date: 20-05-2024

Kolkata J&K Ludhiana New Delhi Mumbai Bangalore Chennai Hyderabad Amritsar



L.ava Interpational Limited
Consolidated balance sicer as 21 31 Mare): 2622

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million, unless otfierwise stated)

Particulars Note No. As at 31 March As at 31 Mareh
2023 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
Properiy, plunt and eqvipment 3 578.91 1,619.64
Capital work-in-progress 3 191.99 568.69
Intangihie assets 4 2,108.47 2,220.05
Goodwill 4 451.51 426.90
Rignt of use asset 5 116.89 130.14
Investments accounted for using the equity method 35 60.87 61.09
Financial assets
Investments 6 (a) 987.31 695.15
Other financial assets 6(H 130.93 87.23
Deferred tax assels (net) 22 310.23 315.49
Other non-current assets 8(a) 237.03 117.37
5,174.13 6,241.76
Current assets
Inventories 7 7.361.20 6,828.77
Finaiicial assets
Investments € (b) 28.73 .
Trade receivables 6 (c) 7,381.88 12,921.16
Cash and cash equivalents 6 (d} 963.59 930.69
Other bank balances 6 (e) 914.95 1 484.36
Other financial assels 6(g) 209.68 1.266.45
Other current assets 8(b) 3,226.74 4,660.42
20,086.77 27,691.86
TOTAL ASSETS 25,260.91 33,933.62
Equity and liabilities
Egnity
Equity share capital 9 2,705.63 2,705.65
Instruments entirely equity in nature 9 3342 33.42
Other equity
Securities premium reserve 5.690.34 5,690.34
Treasury shares (63.34) (6 5.34)
Foreign currency translation reserve 68.58 66171
Share based paymeni reserve 372.14 355 41
Retained earnings 4411064 13,474 16
Other seserve 17.31 17.31
Fquity atiributable to equity holders of 1he Holding Compan 14,005.71 22,900.64
Non-controlling interest (22.83) 22,13
Total cquity 14,042.88 22,884.50
Liabililies
Non-current linbilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 10 (a) 52479
Lease ljabilifics tO (d) 132.44
I {a) 56.51

Provi.-;iol}r;-' 7

713.74




Lava International Limited
Consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2023

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million, unless otheiwise statéd)
Particulars Note No. As at 31 March As at 31 March

2023 2022

Current liabilities
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 10 (b) 2,828.58 2,699.37
Lease liabilities 10 (e) 38.40 30.16
Trade payables
- total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 10 (c), 32 132.17 241.90
- total (?utstandmg dues of cr?dltors other than micro 10 () 5.730.74 4.915.71
enterprises and small enterprises
Cther financial liabilities 10 (f) 1,512.84 1,392.80
Other current liabilities 12 332.02 642.71
Provisions 11 (b) 133.78 147.35
Current tax liabilities (net) 13 110.87 265.37
Total Current liabilities 10,819.40 10,335.38
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 25,260.91 33,933.62
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

As per our report of even date as attached

For Raj Gupta and Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Lava International Limited
Firm’ S_-:_fl{gﬁg:-i:jtrﬂii_i}ll No.: 000203N CIN: U32201DL2009PLC188920

A\ A g |
\ 3 .
. (M/—:”,” / S au;luo Agf—‘\&x&
Shailendra Nath Rai Sunil Raina Sanjeev Agarwil
Whole-Time Director Whole-Time Director Whole-Time Director

"\"\'51;36{\,' o /
Gaunﬁﬁﬁﬂaﬁ/ (DIN-00908417) (DIN-09302069) (DIN-07110183)
Partner
Membership No. 553645 ‘2
——— — =7

Sunil Bhalla Vishal Sehgal

Director Director

(DIN-00980040) DIN-03£7049)

itiva Bos Preefi
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

(M. No.- A53936)

UDIN | A¥653¢4S RKPHW CIF
Place: Noida Place: Noida

Date; 20th May 2024 Date: 20th May 2024




Lava International Limited

Conselidated statement of profit and loss fer the year ended 31 March 2023

(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Particul Note  For the year ended For the year ecnded
articulars No. 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 14 54,435.99 58,776.45
Other income 15 273.87 203.68
Total income (1) 54,709.86 58,980.13
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 16 16,913.71 11,473.79
Purchase of traded goods 28,807.13 38,700.71
Changes in inventories of finished goods, spares and 17 (490.99) (1,037.89)
stock in trade ‘

Employee benefit expenses 18 2,106.34 2,122.74

Other expenses 19 4,446.51 4,280.40
Total expense (II) 51,782.72 55,539.75

Earnings before share of loss of an 2,927.14 3,440.38

associate & joint venture, interest, tax,

depreciation and amortisation and tax
Depreciation and amortisation expense 20 1,400.54 967.14
Finance costs 21 538.32 441.17

Profit before share of loss of an associate & joint venture and tax 988.28 2,032.07
Share of loss of joint venture, associates {net of tax) (11 35 0.22 0.96

Profit before tax 988.06 2,031.11

- Current tax o 119.60 265.13
- Tax charge/(credit) relating to earlier years (16.98) (16.21)
- Deferred tax expense/(income) 5.69 (86.47)

Income tax expense 22 108.31 162.45

Profit for the year 879.75 1,868.66

Other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income not to be

reclassified to

- Re-measurement (gains)/losses of 27 (1.71) 0.07
- Income tax relating to this item (0.43) 0.02)

Other comprehensive income that will be

reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent

periods :

-Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations (204.87) (261.51)

Other comprehensive income/loss for the year (net of tax) (207.01) (261.46)

Total Comprehensiye income for the year (net of tax) 1,086.77 2,130.12

Y
\\ £\
N 1 Al




Lava International Limited
Consolidated statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million, unless otherwise staled)

Particulars Note  For the year ended  For the year ended
ALESER No. 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Profit for the year is attributable to
- Equity holders of Holding Company 880.44 1,869.19
- Non-controlling interest (0.70) (0.53)

Other comprehensive income of the year is attributable to

- Equity holders of Holding Company 207.01 261.46
- Non-controlling interest =
Total comprehensive income of the year is attributable to
- Equity holders of Holding Company 1,087.45 2,130.64
- Non-controlling interest (0.70) (0.53)
Earuings per equity share (in rupees) 23
Basic 1.63 3.54
Diluted 1.50 3.25
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
As per our report of even date as attached
For Raj Gupta and Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Lava International Limited
Firn}},sy‘fﬁfégiﬁgugo|1 No.: 000203N CIN: U32201DL2009PLC188920
[ @) .\ .
A5 . .
Gauravlindal / S ( Q’qu cen Qhk"{
Partner Shailendra Nath Rai  Sunil Rai Sanjeed Agarwal
Membership No. 553645 Whole-Time Director ~ Whole-Time Director Whole-Time Director
(DIN-00908417) (DIN-09302069) (DIN-071 10183}
Sunil Bhalla Vishal Sehgal
Director Director
(DIN‘O()Ow (DIN-03127049) (\ E §
'ﬁva Bose Preeti
Chief Financial Officer Company Sectetary

(M. No.- A53936)

VOIN L NSS B LHC Bk p Hiw S48
Place: Noida Place: Noida

Date: 20th May 2024 Date: 20th May 2024
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Lava International Limited
Consolidated cash flow statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax

Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows :
Depreciationfamortization
(Profit)/ loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain)/ loss
Net gain on sale of mutual fund investments
Share of loss/(Profit) of associate/ joint venture
Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative financial instrument at FYTPL
Payment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Provision for Share based payment Expenses
Provision for Invemories obsolescence
Provision for trade receivables and advances
Amortization of prepaid security deposit
Interest expense
Interest income

Operating profit before working capital changes

Movements in working capital:
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payables and other liabilities
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions
({Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables
{Increase)/ Decrease in inventories
(Increase)/ Decrease in other assets
Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid (het of refunds)
Net cash flow from / (used in) operating activities (A)

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment, including capital work in
progress , intangibles and capital advances
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
(including intangibles)
Investment in equity shares of other companies
Purchase of mutual fund investments
Sale of mutual fund investments
Investment in bank deposits
Maturity of bank deposits
Interest received
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activitics (B)

Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of equity
Proceeds from issuance of NCD
Proceeds from long-term borrowings
Movement in short-term borrowings
Interesatd Ol fease Liability
I‘ayméﬁf—?ﬂ" rincipal portion of lease liabilities
Intergst [w:gm borrowings

Net m’sli’-'_.}& Y{ (used in) financing activities (C)

988.06 2,031.11
1,400.54 967.14
(1.95) 0.08
(65.60) (215.87)
(0.30) (0.35)
0.22 0.96
1.96 (5.82)
: (23.75)
16.83 126.69
(20.25) 5.28
(0.20) 255.28
0.97 1.28
427.75 322.82
(74.77) (73.20)
2,673.26 3,391.65
511.58 (423.65)
(10.73) (14.70)
(1,841.69) (919.54)
(512.21) (738.42)
(189.09) (351.42)
631.12 943.92
(262.22) (390.69)
368.91 55323
198.36 (1,910.38)
3.16 0.17
(291.79) (244.10)
(53.50) (419.98)
25.00 430.37
(2,859.66) (943.04)
2,995.09 1,441.00
49.22 39.73
65.89 (1,606.23)
a 1,020.00
: 250.00
(71.03) 301.67
94.72) 349.78
(18.68) (20.78)
(33.80) .
(387.79) (257.62)
(606.02) 1,643.05




Lava International Limited
Consolidated cash fMow statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
(All amounts in Indian Rupees million, unless otherwise stuled)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Net incrrease in cash and cash equivalents (A + B +C) (171.23) 590.05
Effect of exchange rates on translation
of operating cashflows 204.12 37.40
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 930.69 238.75
Cash of China Bird as acquisition happened during the year - 64.49
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 963.59 930.69
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 8.54 8.12
With balances on current account
- on deposit account 751.54 578.82
- others balances 203.51 343.76
Total cash ard cash equivalents |Refer note 6 (d)] 963.59 930.69

Summary of significant accounting policies (refer note 2.1)

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
The schedules referred to above and notes on accounts form an Integral part of the consolidated cash flow statement.

The above Cash flow statement has been prepared under the Indirect method setout in Ind AS-7 'Statement of Cash Flow".
Cash flow from operating activities include Rs. 10.03 millions (31st March 2022 : Rs. 8.10 millions) being expenses

towards Corporate Social Responsibility.

As per our report of even date as attached

For Raj Gupta and Company

Chartered-Accountants
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Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory information

For the vear ended 31 March 2023 ~ =

1.  Corporate information

Lava International Limited (‘Company’ or ‘Holding Company’) is engaged in trading and manufacturing
of mobile phones, storage devices and other wireless telecommunication devices. The Company is a public
company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of Companies Act applicable in India. The
registered office of the Company is located in Karampura, Delhi and the principal place of business is Noida,
Uttar Pradesh, The Company has an in-house research and development center and manufacturing facilities in

Noida,

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 315! March 2023 were approved and authorized for issue
by the board of directors in their meeting held on 20'" May 2024

2. Basis of preparation

a. Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Company, the trust, its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
‘Group’) and the Group’s interest in joint ventures and associate have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as
amended thereafter notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act’) and other relevant
provisions of the Act.

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, and all amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest
millions upto two places of decimal, unless otherwise indicated.

b. Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for the following items:

- Investments in equity instruments of other entities (at fair value through other comprehensive income}
- Investment in mutval funds {at fair value through profit or loss)

- Derivative financial instruments (at fair value through profit or loss)

- Plan assets under defined benefit plans (at fair value through profit or loss)

- Employee share based payments (at fair value through profit or loss)

C

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates and
underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates are recognized
prospectively in current and future periods. Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies
that have the most significant effects on the amounts recognized in the conselidated financial statements is
included in the fotlowing notes:

Significant estimates

Useful lives of depreciable/amortizable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortizable, assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.
Uncertainties 11)’1lib5 S vpl\nmues relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the utility of
assels. Carrym;_, amoyht’ uI pmpcny plant and equipment and intangible assets are disclosed in Noje
Note 4 respectivelyi W /\?’




Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory infoermation
For the year ended 31 March 2023 — — -

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management’s estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying
assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary
increases. Variation in these assumptions may impact the DBO amount and the annual defined benefit

expenses. Carrying amount of defined benefit obligations are disclosed in Note 27.

Provisions for warranties — A provision is estimated for expected warranty in respect of products sold during
the year on the basis of a technical evaluation and past experience regarding failure trends of products and costs
of rectification or replacement. Carrying amount of provision is disclosed in Note 11,

Significant judgments

Contingent liabilities — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the Group assesses the requirement of provisions against the ouistanding contingent liabilities. However,
the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed over
expected life, the management assesses the expected credit loss on outstanding financial assets.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment
of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of

recoverable amount of the assets,

(d} Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its interest in joint
venture and associate as at 31 March 2023, Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee. The nature of the Group’s information are set out in Note 37.

Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Groﬁp has:

e Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee)
s Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

¢ The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption
and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similas rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

*  The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee
¢ Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
» The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

*  The size of the group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the
other voting rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of g subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
financial statements, ﬁw& T
subsidiary.




Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information
For the vear ended 31 March 2023 . = —

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in
the consolidated financial statemenis for like transactions and events in similar circumsiances, appropriate
adjustments are made to that group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with the group’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to same reporting
date as that of the holding company, i.e., year ended on 31 March. When the end of the reporting period of the
parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional
financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to
consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so.

Consolidation procedure:

a. Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with
those of its subsidiaries. For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the
amounts of the assets and liabilities recognized in the consolidated financial statements at the

acquisition date

b. Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s
portion of equity of each subsidiary.

c. Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that
are recognized in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Intragroup losses
may indicate an impairment that requires recognition in the consolidated financial statements. Ind AS
12 Income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses
resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests

having a deficit balance,

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction. If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it:

Derecognises the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary

Derecognises the carrying amount of any non-controlling interests

Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in equity

Recognises the fair value of the consideration received

Recognises the fair value of any investment retained

Recognises any surptus or deficit in profit or loss

Reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in OCI to profit or loss or retained
earnings, as appropriate, as would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities

- & 9 @& & 9

{e) Investment in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not controi or joint control over

those policies,

A joint venture ig7adypeiof Joint arrangement whereby the |)d|llt.‘-. that have joint control of the arrangement
have rights to thehiet a3 LTH tﬂ th |0ml venture. Imm control is the mnimt.luaily agr c;.d \|'IdIIHL Ul LOI'IlIl.'ll/ frm
an 'lrmngemcnt' whl I, - it oA




Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

For the vear ended 31 March 2023

necessary 10 determine control over the subsidiaries.

The Group’s investments in its associate and joint venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under the
equity method, the investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognized at cost. The carrying
amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the group’s share of net assets of the associate or
joint venture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate or joint venture is included in the
carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for impairment individually.

The statement of profit and loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate or joint
venture. Any change in OC) of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there
has been a change recognized directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extem of

the interest in the associate or joint venture.

If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or a joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the associate or
joint venture (which includes any long term interest that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment
in the associate or joint venture), the entity discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses
are recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments
on behalf of the associate or joint venture. If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports profits, the entity
resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the shate of losses not

recognized.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the Parent
Company. When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the

company.

After application of the equity method, the Company determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
impairment loss on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, the Group determines
whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired. If there is
such evidence, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of an
associate and a joint venture’ in the statement of profit or loss.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying amount of the
associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint centrol and the fair value of the retained
investment and proceeds from disposal is recoghized in profit or loss.

2.1 Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Current Vs Non-current classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
assel is freated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

L ]

o Held primarily for the purpose of rading

» Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

e Cash or cash®equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to seitle a liability for at leasl

twelve montlis gfler the reporting period

Currenl assets include
current. A\ Fa.

hf ¢urrent portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classiﬁcgf‘ 4S.1101)



Lava International Limited
Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

A liability is current when:

¢ ltisexpected to be settled in normal operating cycle

e ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading

¢ [tisdue to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

o  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

Current liabilities include current portion of non-current financial liabilities. The Group classifies all other
liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

Operating cycle

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and
cash equivalents. The Group has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of classification
of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current,

(b} Functional and Presentation Currency

The Financial Statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All Financial information presented in INR has been rounded off to the nearest millions as per the
requirements of Schedule I11 of “the Act”, unless otherwise stated.

(c) Property, plant and equipment
i Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses
if any. Cost directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready
for use, as intended by the management.

i, Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Group and cost of the item
can be measured reliably. All repair and maintenance are charged to statement of prefit and loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the cost
of the respective asset il the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the
statement of profit and loss on the date of disposal or retirement.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date
is classified as capital advances under the non-current assets and the cost of assets not put to use before such date

are disclosed under ‘Capital work iri progress’.
iii. Depreciation
Depreciation on plpﬁﬂy. plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives

of the assets as befoyyt' /" o]
\ N\ .. : !.
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Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information

For the vear ended 31 March 2023 [ _

Assets Useful Lives As per Schedule 11 -
Office Equipment 3-5 Years 5 Years
Furniture and fixtures* 3-5 Years 10 Years
Demonstration Fixtures* 2 Years 2 Years
Vehicles* 5 Years 10 Years
Computer and Components* 3 Years 3 Years
Plant and Machinery*
Jigs 1 Year I Year
Other Plant and Machinery 5-15 Years 15,25 Years
Electrical Installations 10 Years 10 Yeats

*Based on technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as given above best represent the
period over which the management expects to use these assets. Hence the useful lives for these assets are different
from useful lives as prescribed under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013,

Leasehold Improvements are amortized over the lease term or 10 years whichever is less.

When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives.

The Group reassess and review the carrying value of the assets at each reporting date. Incase carrying value is
higher than the recoverable amount or the benefits arising from the assets then carrying value is
impaired/depreciated to the extent of recoverable amount of benefit to be received in future.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

(d) Intangible assets

.

i. Recognition and initial measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initjal recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and
expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is incurred.

ii. Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group.

ifi. Amortization

The useful lives of intangible assets is assessed as finite as stated below and the assets are amortised over their
useful lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that an intangible asset may be impaired.
In respect of Customer relationships and brand names are recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation and are
amoriised on a straight tine basis over their estimated useful lives as follows

Assets ' Useful Lives
Computer software (over license period) 1-5 Years
Brand 20 years
Long term customer-contact 20 years
Internally generated software 3- 5Years
Goodwill laiisif-bp business combination is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the

consideration transferred-and the amount recognized for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held,

2R L . e 4 - . . g = ale i o
over the fairvalue pfmelidentifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. After initial recognition, Goodwill
is tested for impairment annually and measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses if any.
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The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in
the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset
are considered to modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when
the asset is derecognized.

Research and development costs

Reseatch costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is
recognized as an intangible asset when the Group can demonstrate all the following:

The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale
Its intention to complete the asset

Its ability to use or sell the asset

How the asset will generate future economic benefits

The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset

The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

* & & & 9 B

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring
the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized
on a straight line basis over the period of expected future benefit from the related project, i.e., the estimated
useful life of one to ten years. Amortization is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. During the period
of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

(e) Leases

The Group adopted Ind AS 116 using the Modified retrospective method of adoption, with the date of initial
application on 1 April 2019. The Group has recognized a lease liability on initial application (i.e. April 1,2019)
at the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental botrowing rate al
the date of initial application and right-of-use asset at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount
of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognized in the batance sheet immediately before
the date of initial application.

The Group. as a lessee, recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset.

The contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, if it involves the use of an identified asset
and the Group has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset and has right to direct the use
of the identified asset. The cost of the right-of-use asset shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease. Liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date plus any initial
direct costs incurred. The right-of-use assets is subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation,
accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use
assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date over the shorter of lease term or
useful life of right-of-use asset (Refer note 36).

The Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments that are nol paid al the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease,

if that rate can be readily. determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Group uses incremental=——_
borrowing rate. ' A ol
YA 1~/ )

! - . =]
The Group also eletfed (6 use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that. at the commencem nl}!e
have a lease term.of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option (short-term leases). and lease coRliads
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for which the underlying asset is of low value (low-value assets).

Lessor accounting under Ind AS 116 is substantially unchanged from Ind AS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in Ind AS 17, Therefore, Ind AS 116 does

not have an impact for leases where the Group is the lessor.
(N Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impaitment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, When the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable

amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are cotroborated by
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. These budgets and
forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years, For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is
calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond
periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any
case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country
or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used. Impairment losses, including
impairment on inventories, are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

(g) Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Recognition and initial measurement

All Financial Assets are initially recognised at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable 1o the
acquisition or issue of financial assets, which are not at fair value through profit or loss, are adjusied to the fair
value on initial recognition.

Classification and subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

+  Financial assets at amortised cost

¢ Financial assets at fair value through other compréhensive income (FVTOCI)

» Financial assets and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

¢ Equity iué(ruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
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Financial asscts at amortised cost

A “financial assets® is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash

flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is most applicable to the Group. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (“EIR™) method. Amortised cost is calculated by
taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR,
The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other
receivables,

Financial assets at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for financial assets. Any financial assets, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOC], is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Group may elect to designate a financial asset, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI
criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is considered only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Financial assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in
the statement of profit and loss. This category is applicable to investments in mutual funds.

_Financial assets at FVTOCI
A ‘financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOC]I if both of the following criteria are met:

a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the

financial assets, and
b} The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Financial asset included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at
fair value, Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Group
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or 1oss in the statement of
profit and loss. On derecognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is
reclassified from the equity to statement of profit and loss (P&L}). Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI
financial instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Equity Investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Cquity instruments which are held for
trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other eguity instruments, the Group may make an irrevocable election
to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Group makes such election
on an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides 1o classify an equity instrument as at FYTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL. Thete is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statemem of
profit and loss, even on sale of investiment. However. the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within.

equity.
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Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value. All changes in fair value
including dividend are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial asset is de-recognized only when
» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

»  The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through® arrangement; and
either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control

of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When il has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognize the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be

required to repay.
Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment Joss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a. Financial assets that are debt instruments. and are measured at amortized cost e.g., [gans, debt securities,

deposits, trade recetvables and bank balance
b. Loan commitmenis which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Group follows *simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The
application of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Group determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month expected credit loss (ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss. However,
if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequeni period, credit quality of the
instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the entity reverts (o recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events

that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalis). discounted at the original EIR.

The Group uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on porttolio of its trade receivables.
The provision matrix. is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivablesangis adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date. the historical obser vcd de!‘ J
gle and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. '
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ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in
the statement of profit.and loss. For the financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue
receivables, ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Group
does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities inciude trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments,

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financiai liabilities at fair value through profit or toss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial iabilities are
classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category
also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such
ai the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/
loss are not subsequently transferred to statement of profit and Joss. However, the Group may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the EIR. Gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognized as
well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit and
loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment (o be made 1o
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financiai guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee.

impairment rcquiren'nemgj' Ind AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amortisation,
De-recognition /
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A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terins,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Group determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities.
For financial assets which are debt instruments, a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business
model for managing those assets. If the Group reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification
prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period
following the change in business model. The Group does not restate any previously recognized gains, losses
(including impairment gains or losses) or interest

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial asset and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there
is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(h) Derivative financial instrument

The Group uses derivative financial instruments i.e., forward and futures currency contracts to hedge its foreign
currency risks. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognized at fair vaiue on the date on which a
derivative coniract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any
gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement of profit and
loss.

(i) Fair value Measurement

The Group measure its financial instruments such as derivative at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

+ Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
s Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their ecohomic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability 1o generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and besl use.

The Group,uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available/to, measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of

e

unobservable i/l‘@tlis. A\
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All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant 1o the fair

value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement

is directly or indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measwrement

is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting petiod.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and habilities which are
required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Group’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
management or its expert verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in

the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.
(j) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

» Raw materials and spares: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
{o their present location and condition. Cost is determined on weighted average basis.

o Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis.

e Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is determined on first in first out basis.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

{k) Revenue recognition

Ind AS 115 — “Revenue from Contracts with Customers™ notified by MCA with effect from 151 April, 2018, vide
its notification dated 28 March, 2018 which supersedes [nd AS 18 — “Revenue” and related Appendices.

Group account for revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with custemers” nsing, the
maodified retrospective method.

The Group has recognize revenue in accordance with Ind AS 115 by applying the following 5 steps:

Identify the contracts with the customers,

ii.  Identify the separate performance obligations. AT

iii. Determine the transaction price of the contracl, ﬁ,‘?’."'-.;_'-' ' '-k;_f,:\

iv.  Allocate the transaction price to each of the separate performance obligations. and [ : '\lr— \

V. \ _L( / r-)
\ /,‘ %)

I{et;ogi?ze the revenue as each performance obligation is satisfied.

\72
(. i \‘f’ * Vi
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Sale of Goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risk and rewards of ownership of the goods have
been passed to the buyer which generally coincides with delivery of goods, as per the contractual terms with
customers. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of goods
in the ordinary course of Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of GST, returns, sales incentives and discounts.

The group has concluded that the Group is ptincipal in all of its revenue arrangements since the Group is the
primary obligor in all the revenue arrangements as the Group has pricing latitude and is also exposed to inventory
and credit risks.

The Group accounts for volume discount for pricing incentives to customers as a reduction of revenue based on
estimate of applicable discount/incentives.

Sale of Services

Revenue from sales of services is from installation of third party mobile applications in the handset and is
recognized by reference to the stage of completion, net of GST. Stage of completion is measured by reference to
services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.

Interest

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
interest income is recorded using the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments
or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the
financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Dividend Income ;
Dividend Income is recognized when the Group’s right to receive the amount has been established.

Incentive Income
Group has recognized incentive income in form of Merchant export incentive income (MEIS), Duty drawback

income based on export made.

Disaggregation of Revenue
See Note 28 (Segment Reporting) to Consolidated Financial Statements for our disaggregated revenues.

Trade Receivables
A receivable represents the Group’s right 10 an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

() Foreign currencies

() Functional and presentation currency

items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the respective currency of the primary
economic environment in which in which the entity in Group operates i.e. the “functional currency™. These
financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is also the functional currency of the parent. For each
entity the Group determines the functional currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity

are measured using that functionat currency.

(i) Transactions and balances

Transactions. in I‘o}ﬁgn currencies are initially recorded by the Group’s entities at their respective functiona ]
currency spot: ratestayfthe date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However, for practical reasons, il i
group uses an‘averagg rai¢ if the average approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction. (;

/- (\}

rates of exchange at the reporting date. N Ko 4

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are iranslated at the functional curreng

& !
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Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized in profit oy loss with
the exception of the following:

+ Exchange differences arising on monetary items that forms part of a reporting entity’s net investment in a
foreign operation ate recognized in profit or loss in the separate financial statements of the reporting entity or
the individual financial statements of the foreign operation, as appropriate. In the financial statements that
include the foreign operation and the reporting entity (e.g., consolidated financial statements when the foreign
operation is a subsidiary), such exchange differences are recognized initially in OCl. These exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

« Tax charges and credits atiributable to exchange differences on those monetary items are also recorded in
OCL

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the reporting date and their statlements of profit or loss are translated at yearly average exchange
rates. For practical reasons, the group uses an average rate to translate income and expense items, if the average
rate approximates the exchange rates al the dates of the transactions. The exchange differences arising on
translation for consolidation are recognized in OCI. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognized in profit or loss.

{m) Income taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date in India.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognized amounis, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

Current income lax relating to items recognized outside statement of profit and loss is recognized either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements as at reporting date.
Deferred tax is measured based on the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Frd

)7 .

1en-the’ deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goedwill or an asset or lial ifif g
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the acc ynﬁng—;

profit nor taxable profit or loss

o Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests
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in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assels are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised.

The catrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside statement of profit and loss is recognized either in other
comprehensive income or in equity. Deferred tax items are tecognized in correlation to the underlying transaction

either in OC) or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to set-off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity

and the same taxation authority.

(n} Employee benefits

The Group’s employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuses, defined contribution plans, defined
benefits plans, compensated absences, deferred compensation and share-based payments. The employee benefits
are recognized in the year in which the associated services are rendered by the Group employees. Short-term
employee benefits are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss at undiscounted amounts during the period in
which the related services are rendered.

Defined Contribution plans

The contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized in profit or loss as and when the services are
rendered by employees. The Group has no further obligations under these plans beyond its periodic contributions.

Defined benefits plans

In accordance with the local laws and regulations, all the employees in India are entitled for the Gratuity plan.
The said plan requires a lump-sum payment to eligible employees (meeting the required vesting service
condition) at retirement ot termination of employment, based on a pre-defined formula.

The Group provides for the liability towards the said plans on the basis of actuarial valuation cartied out as at the
reporting date, by an independent qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The obligation towards the said benefits is recognised in the consolidated financial statement, at the present value
of the defined benefits obligations. The present value of the said obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows, using interest rates of government bonds.

The interest expenses are calculated by applying the above mentioned discount rate lo defined benefits

obligations. The interest expenses on the defined benefits obligations are recognized in the Statement of Profit

and Loss. However, the related re-measurements of the defined benefits obligations are recognized directly in the

other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. The said re-measurements comprise of actuarial

gains and losses (arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions}. Re- measurements=—_

e not re-classified to the Statement of Profit and Loss in any of the subsequent periods. / Sl le
(

.‘_{;./.__.
.
“The Group provides for the liability towards the compensated absences benefits on the basis of actuarial vakation—
carried out as at the reporting date, by an independent qualified actuary using the projected-unit-credit methte=
The related re-measurements are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

ther short-term employee benefits
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Share based payments

Employees (including senior executives) of the Group may also receive remuneration in the form of share-based
payments, whereby employees render services as consideration for equity instruments  (equity-settled

transactions).
Equity-settled transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using
Black Scholes Option Pricing Model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in share-based payment reserves in equity, over
the period in which the service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which
the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits

expense,

Service conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but the
likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity

instruments that will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because service conditions have not been met.

Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the
award is expensed immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of diluted
earnings per share.

(o) Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions

General

Provisions are recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to seitle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a provision
is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-fax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision

due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cosl.

Warranty provisions

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognized when the product is sold or service provided to the customer.
Initial recognition is based on historical experience. The initial estimate of warranly-related costs is revised
annually.

Decommissioning liability

The Group records a provision for decommissioning costs of a leased facility. Decommissioning costs are provided

at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognized as part

of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that reflects the 115}9__}\
specificto thgglecommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incuired and reco, (i’ze} Hox
in the statem.%)nl'pmﬁl and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are rey) ‘e,’l/ct
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annually and adjusted as appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are
added 1o or deducted from the cost of the asset.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group or a
present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot
be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but
discloses its existence in the consolidated financial statements.

(p) Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Holding Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity holders of the Holding
Company (after adjusting the corresponding income/charge for dilutive potential equity shares) by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the year, plus the weighted average number of equity shares
that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

(q) Operating Segment

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker (CODM). Only those business activities are identified as operating segment for which the
operating results are regularly reviewed by the CODM to make decisions about resource allocation and

performance measurement.

The Group prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing -
and presenting the financial statements of the Group as a whole.

(r) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs to the extent directly attributable to the acquisition/construction of assets that necessarily take
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised along with the respective property,
plant and equipment up to the date such asset is ready for use. Other borrowing costs are charged to the statement

of profit and loss.
(s) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet and for the purpose of statement of cash flows comprise cash al
banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less. which are subject 1o
an insignificant risk of changes in value. These do not include bank balances earmarked/restricted for specific

pUrposes.
(t) Exceptional Items

Exceptional items are transactions which due to their size or incidence are separately disclosed to cnable a full
understanding of the Group’s financial performance. Items which may be considered exceptional are significant
restricturing charges, gains or losses on disposal of investments of subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures and
ifipairment. losses/write down in the value of investment in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures and==._
signiticant disposal of fixed assets. Zasipl

o),
’/‘?,_:/ N
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(u) Measurement of Earnings before Interest ,tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)

Ind AS compliant Schedule 11 allows line items, sub-line items and sub-totals to be presented as an addition or
substitution on the face of the financial statements when such presentation is relevant to an understanding of the

Group’s financial position /performance.

Accordingly, the Group has elected to present earnings before net finance cosl, tax, depreciation and amortization
(EBITDA) as a separate line item on the face of the statement of profit and Joss. The Group measures EBITDA on
the basis of profit/ (loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Group does not include depreciation
and amortization expense, interest income, finance costs, and tax expense.

(v} Business Combination

Business Combinations are accounted for using the acquisition methed of accounting. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the fair value of the assets transferred, equity instruments issued and liabilities assumed at their
acquisition date i.e. the date on which control is acquired. Contingent consideration to be transferred is recognized
at fair vatue and included as part of cost of acquisition. Transaction related costs are expensed in the period in
which the costs are incurred. For each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-
controlling interests in the acquiree at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net

assets.

(w) Treasury Shares

The group has created a Lava Welfare Trust (‘the trust’) for providing share-based payment to its employees. The
group uses the trust as a vehicle for distributing shares to employees under the employee remuneration schemes.
The trust buys Company's shares from the employees of the Company as per the employee remuneration schemes.
The group treats the trust as its extension and shares held by the trust are treated as treasury shares.

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (ireasury shares) are recognized at cost and deducted from 1otal equity.
No gain or loss is recognized in profit ot loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group’s own equity

instruments. Any difference between the carrying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognized in
general reserve. Share options exercised during the reporting period are settled with treasury shares.

(x) Recent Accounting Pronouncements

rules on the Financial Statements
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Lava International Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

(All amounts in Indian Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

Ageing of Capital work-in-progress; -

Amount in Capital work-in-progress for a period of

Particulars Lessthan 1| 1-2years | 2-3 years |Morethan3| Total
year years
As at 31 March 2023
Projects in progress 10.81 181.18 191,99
Projects temporarily suspended = - = = z
Capital work-in-progress 10.81 181.18 - - 191.99
Amount
Projects which have exceeded their original timeline 181.18
Projects which have exceeded their original budget =
Amount in Capital work-in-progress for a period of
Particulars Lessthan 1 | 1-2years | 2-3 years |Morethan3| Total
year years
As at 31 March 2022
Prajects in progress 568.69 - - 568.69
Projects temporarily suspended - = 2
Capital work-in-progress 568.69 - - - 568.69
Amount

Projects which have exceeded their original timeline
Projects which have exceeded their original budget

(This space has been intentionally lefi blank)




Lava International Limited

Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amownts in Indian Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

4 Intangible assets

Computer Internally Long Term Brand Licenses Total Goodwill
Particulars Softwares and  generated Customer & patents

Licenses software Contracts
Gross Block
As at Ist April 2021 433.76 129.68 - - - 563.44 -
Additions/Adjustment* 20.63 64.08 2.102.63 37.05  2,224.39 462.15
Deletion - - - - - - -
Exchange difference 20.68 0.14 1.21 39.55 0.70 62.28 (35.25)
As at 31 March 2022 475.07 129.82 65.29 2,142.18 37.75 2,850.11 426.90
Additions/Adjusiment 9,54 - 9.54
Deletion E B - - -
Exchange diflerence 59.58 - B E 3.12 62.69 24.62
As at 31 March 2023 544.17 129.8) 65.28 2,142.17 40.85  2,922.33 451.51
Accumulated Amortisation
As at st April 2021 417.28 116.56 - - - 533.84 E
Charge for the year/adjustment 1577 4.72 1.60 52.57 - 74.66
¥E
Disposal - - - B - .
Exchange difference 20.53 0.0l 0.03 0.99 - 21.56
As at 31 March 2022 453.58 121.29 1.63 53.56 - 630.06 -
Charge for the year/adjusiment 11.89 2.59 3.26 107.11 - 124.85
Disposal - - - - - - =
Exchange difference 58.94 (.01 - - - 58.95 E
As at 31 March 2023 524.41 123.90 4,90 160.67 - 813.80 -
Net Block
As at 31 March 2023 19.78 592 60.39  1,981.50 40.85  2,108.47 451.51
As at 31 March 2022 21.48 8.54 63.66 2,088.62 3775 2,220.05 426.90

* Additions / Adjustments in gross block include Rs. 13.46 Million on account of entity acquired during the financial year 2021-22.
** Amortisation include Rs. 8.32 Million on account of entity acquired during the financial year 2021-22.

5 Right of use asset

Particulars Office building Fa‘clc.nry Wan:eh'ouse Vehicle Total
building Building
Gross Block
As at 1st April 2021 62.81 159.15 2.69 - 224.65
Additions - -
Deletion B - B B -
As at 31 March 2022 62.81 159.15 2.69 - 224.65
Additions - - 19.08 19.08
Deletion - - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 62.81 159.15 2.69 19.08 24373
Accumulated Depreciation
As af 1st April 2021 18.58 43.64 0.79 - 63.01
Additions 9.29 21.82 0.39 31.50
Deletion - - - - -
As at 31 March 2022 27.87 65.46 1.18 - 94.51
Additions 9.30 21.82 0.40 (.81 32.33
Deletion B - - - -
As at 31 March 2023 3717 87.28 1.58 0.81 126.84
Net Block
As at 31 March 202‘.!_:'- _ 25.64 7187 1.11 18.27 116.89
As at 31 March 2022/ 34.94 93.69 1.51 : 130.14

|
| FRN: P2l




Lava International Limited
Notes to conselidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al aniounts in Iudian Rupees mllion, unfess othenvise stated)

6 Financial assels

6 (a) Investments (non-current) (Unquoted) As at 33 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No of Units Amouni __ No of Units Amounl

Lnvestmenis in equity instruments of other enlities
{at Mair value through other comprehensive incone}
63,830 Equity Share (31 March 2022: 63,830} of 0.001 SGD each fully
paid up of Abhriya Pte. Ltd.* 631580 ' SSIEED
$00 {31 March 2022: S00)Equity Share of 10,000 CNY each fully paid
up of Shenzen Inone Technology Co, Limited (Formerly known as Xolo 500.00 64.30 500.00 59.95
Technology (Shenzen) Limited).
6,222,268 Digital Reef Inc.(31 March 2022: 5,656,608} Equity Share of 6.222.268 69971  5.656.608 429.39
$ 1 each fully paid up " T
49% Ownership inferest (31 March 2022: 49%) in CBCA LLC. : 95.37 88.09
25,000 (31 March 2022: 25,000) Equity Share of $ 30 each fully paid up 25.000 68.06 25.000 62.86
of Diamond Foundry Inc.. ’ '
7,200 (31 March 2022: 7200) Equity Share of $ 100 each fully paid up 7.200 59.17 7,200 54.66
of Marbore enterprises S.A.
20,000 (31 March 2022: 20,000) Equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid
up of Sri Venketeswara Mobile & Electronics Manufacturing Hub 20,000 0.20 20,000 0.20
Private Limited

$87.31 695.15
Aggregate amount of unquoted investment 037,31 895.15

*As at 31st March 2023, the Holding Company has fair valued the investment al Nil (31 March 2022 - Nil) amount as there is no future
economic benefit expecied from the investment.

6 (b) Investments (current)

As at 33 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No of unifs Amount __ No of unifs Amount
Intvestment in Mutual finds (Quoted)(at fair value through profit or
loss)
LIC MF Overnight Fund-Regular Plan Growth 17,387 20.11 - -
Union Corpoeraite Bond Fund Regular Plan - Growth 390,960 5.04 - -
25.15 2
Canara Robeco MF - Regular Plan Growth 344,798 3.58 B
3.58 -
28.73 -
Apgregate amount of quoted invesiment 25.15
Markel value of quoted investmenis 25.15
Aggregate amount of unquoted investment 3.58
Markel value of vnquoted invesiments 3.58

(This space hax been intentionatly left blank)




Lava International Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amownts in Indian Rupees million, wnless otherwise stated)

6 (c¢) Trade receivables
As at 31 As at 31

March 2023 March 2022

Unsecured
- Considered good 16,059.76  13,954.16
- Considered doubtful 31.99 42.50
16,091.75 13,996.66
Less:
- Provision for doubtful debts {31.99} (42.50)
- Allowance for credit loss {(ECL) (8,677.88) (1,033.00)
7,381.88  12.921.16
Ageing of trade receivables: -
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not Due| Less than | 6 months to | 1-2 years | 2-3 years [More than 3 Total
6 months 1 year years
As at 31 March 2023 =
Undisputed trade receivables- 76.58 6,296.26 1,889.79 | 1,478.13 | 1,746.53 4,572.47 16,059.76
Undisputed trade receivables - - - - - - - -
Disputed irade receivables - - - - = - - -
Disputed trade receivables - credit - 0.11 017 1.19 4.44 26.08 31.99
impaired
Total trade receivables 76.58 | 6,296.37 1,889.96 | 1,479.32 | 1,750.97 4,598.55 | 16,091.75
Less: Provision for doubtful debis B - - - - - (31.99)
Less: Allowance for credit loss - - - (8,677.88)
Net trade receijvables - - - - - - 7.381.88
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Not Due| Less than | 6 months to | 1-2 years | 2-3 years |More than 3 Total
6 months 1 year years
As at 31 Mar 2022
Undisputed trade receivables- 557.49 6,808.16 61.51 2,035.91 | 3,573.11 9]17.98 13,954.16
considered good
Undisputed irade receivables - - - - - - - -
credit impaired
Disputed trade receivables - - - - B = -
considered good
Disputed trade receivables - credit - - 1.05 493 6.08 30.44 42.50
impaired
Total trade receivables 557.49 | 6,808.16 62.56 | 2,040.84 | 3,579.19 948.42 13,996.606
Less: Provision for doubtful debts (42.50)
Less: Allowance for credit loss - - (1,033.00)
Net irade receivables - - B - - 12,921.16

For terms and conditions relating to trade receivables (refer note 26)
To comply with the requirement of Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, the Company has created total ECL of Rs. 8,677.88

million (31 March 2022: Rs. 1,033.00 million). As it was impracticable to ascertain the CCL for each of respective eartier
financia) year, therefore, Rs. 7,644.88 million in compliance with the requirements of para 44 of Ind AS 8 - Accounling

Policies. Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, has been adjusted to the retained earnings in the current ﬁnal}eiq
VI 7o Bl

Fed




Lava International Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(A amounts in Indian Rupees million, unless othervise stated)

6 (d) Cash and cash equivalents

As at 3) As at 31
March 2023 March 2022

Cash on hand 8.54 8.12

Balances with banks:

On current accounts 203.51 343.76

Deposits with original maturity of less than three months # (Refer footnote to note 6(f)) 751.54 578.82
963.59 930.6%

# Short-term deposits are made for varying periods of between cne day and three months, depending on the immediate cash
requirements of the Holding Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

6 (e) Other bank balances

As at 31 As at 31
March 2023 March 2022

Deposits with remaining maturity for more than three months but less than twelve 914.95 1,084.36
months. #Refer footnote to note 6(1)

914.95 1,084.36

As at 31 As at 31

March 2023 March 2022
6 () Other financial assets (Non-Current) i b

Security deposits

- Considered good 39.83 35.80
- Considered doubtful 492 4.92
44.75 40.72
Less: Provision for doubtful deposits (4.92) {4.92)
39.83 35.80
Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated
19.33 19.33

Others receivables
Bank deposits with remaining maturity of more than twelve months # 65.36 31.38

Interest accrued on bank deposits 6.41 0.72
130.93 87.23

# Includes margin money deposits under lien (refer note 6 (d) .6 (¢) and 6 (H)):-

"~ against letter of credit facility, bank guarantees and other margin 1.317.28 1,226.30

- against amount paid under protest (excluding interest accrued) (refer note 30 (B) {c)(i)) 300,00 300.00

6 (g) Other financia! assets (current)

As at 3l As at 31
March 2023 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated

Securily deposits (A) 17.48 10.86

Interest accrued on bank deposits (B) 174.85 155.77

Derivative asset (C) - 0.67

Others receivables

- Considered good 17.35 09915

- Considered doubt(ul* 2,841.90 -
2.859.25 1,099.15

ZaNAT, (2.841.90)

Less: Allowance for (-:é{lif 165_5 (:EICL}

~  209.68 1,266.45

S

i AN 1735 1,099.05
Total (A + B + G ') - \




Lava International Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Aff amounts in Indian Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

*To comply with the requirement of Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, the company has created ECL of Rs. 2,841.90 million.
As it was impracticable to ascertain the ECL for each of respective earlier financial year, therefore, Rs. 2,841.90 million in
compliance with the requirements of para 44 of Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors,

has been adjusted to the retained earnings.

Inventories
{Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value)

Total (A + wic-r D).

As at 31 As at 31
March 2023 March 2022
Raw materials and components (refer note 1 & 2 below) 2,843.49 2,802.05
Finished goods (refer note 2 below) 1,242.80 1,067.39
Traded goods (refer note 2 below) 2,966.89 2,482.28
Spares (refer note 2 below) 308.02 477.05
7,361.20 6,828.77
Note 1 including stock in transit
- Raw materials and compenents 299.74 658.77
Note 2 The above inventory is net of :-
a) Write down of inventory from cost to net realisable value
Finished goods 25.68 25.82
Traded goods 0.02 1.12
Spares 4.13 9.90
b) Write down of inventory for Obsolescence
Finished goods 13.69 13.38
Traded goods 0.01 0.00
Spares 132.43 145.45
Raw materials, components and semi-finished goods 2.04 2.04
8 (a) Other non-current assets
. i Asat 31 As at 31
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated March 2023 March 2022
Capital advances 3211 94.54
Prepaid expenses 204.92 22.83
237.03 117.37
8 (b) Other current assets Mar‘:li ;L’:; Mar:: ;:):;
Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated
Prepaid expenses (A) 592.74 258.89
Balance with statutory/ government authorities (Refer note 30 (B) & 34) (B) 898.23 936.85
Advances to vendors
- Considered good 1,489.64 3,112.38
- Advances to related parties, considered good (refer note 29) 23.69 104,37
- Considered doubtful 9.76 14.89
1,523.09 3,231.64
Less: Provision for doubtful advances (9.76) (14.89)
) 1,513.33 3,216.75
Others 222.44 247.93
3,226.74 4,660.42




Lava Juternational Limited
Notes to consolidated Tinanciz) statements for the year ended 31 Maveh 2023
(Al emrounts in Indian Rupees million. unless otherwise stated) o

9  Equity Share capital and Instvuments entirely equity in nature

Asat 31 Asal 31
March 2023 March 2022

Authorised share capital

782,000,000 equity shares of Rs. 5 each 3.910.00 3.910.00
(31 March 2022 : 782,000,000 equily shares of Rs. 5 each)
100,000 (31 March 2022 : 100,000} Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares 1.00 1.0
(CCPS) of Rs 10 each
500,000 (31 March 2022; 500.000) Compulsoty Convenible Preference Shares 5000 50.00
(CCPS) of Rs 100 each
3,961.00 3,961.00
Issued, subscribed and fuly paid-up share capital
541,126,216 equity shares of Rs. 5 each 2.705.63 2,705.63
{31 March 2022 : 541,126,216 equily shares of Rs. 5 each}
100,000 {31 March 2022 :100.000) Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares 1.00 .00
{CCPS) of Rs 10 each
324,172 (31 March 2022 : 324172) Compulsery Convertible Preference Shares 3242 3242
(CCPS) of Rs. 100 ¢ach
Total issued, subseribed and fully paid-up share capital 2,739.05 2,73%.05
(a} Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and al the end of the reporting year
(i} Equity shares
Amount No of Shares
As al 31 As at 31 Asat 31 As at 31
pMarch 2023 March 2022 March 2023 March 2022
Al the beginning of the year 2,705.63 124867  541,126216 124,866,902
Right Shares Issued during the year [refer below . (914 ) 1.913.605
{a} and (b)}
CCPS Conversion [refer below (d )] - 15.29 - 1.528.834
Sha‘res Split (Rs. 10 per share to 5 per share) N 1 128.309.431
[refer below (e )]
:3[;11115 shares Issued during the year [refer below ) 1,283.09 1 256,618,862
Issued during the year [refer below (g}] - 139.44 27,888,492
Ontstanding at the end of the year 2,705.63 2,705.63  541,26216 541,126,216

a) Pursuant to approval of board of directors of the Holding Company in the meeting held on t8th May, 2021. 1.3 50,844 equity shares
of Rs. 10 each were allotied on right shares basis at a premium of Rs. 523 per share.

b) Pursuad to approval of board of direclors of the Holding Company in the meeting heid on 5th June, 2021, 562.851 equily shares of
Rs. 10 cach were allotted on right shares basis al a premium of Rs. 523 per share.

¢) Pursuant o the approval of shareholders granted in the extra-ordinary general meeling held on 28th lune, 2021, the Holding
Company increased the existing authorized share capital from Rs. 1,530,000,000 divided into (i} 147,900,000 cquity shares of Rs. 10
cach; (i} 100.000 CCPS of Rs. 10 each; and (jii} 500,000 CCPS of Rs. 100 each io Rs. 3,961,000,000 divided into (3 391,000,000
equily shares of Rs. 10 each; (ii) 100,000 CCPS of Rs. 10 each; and (iii} 500,600 CCPS of Rs. 100 each

d) Porsuant to approval of board of directors of the Holding Company in (he meeting held on 9th August. 2021. 175,828 CCPS were
converled into 15,28,834 equity shares ol Rs. 10 each at a premium of Rs. 1.5 per share

€) Pursvant (o the approval of shareholders granted in the extra-ordinary general meeting held on 10th Sepiember, 2021, ihe Holding
Company undertook a slock split of one existing equity share of Rs. 10 each into two fully paid up equity shares of Rs 5 each Asa
result of the above transaction, the authorised number of equily shares have been increased to 782.000.000 cquily shares of the
Holding Company having a face value of Rs. 5 ¢ach from 391,000,000 equity shares of the Company having a face value of Rs. 10
each.

N Pursuant 1o the approval of sharcholders granted in the extra-ordinary general meeting held on 10th September. 2021, the Holding
Company issued and allotted fully paid-up ““bonus shares™ at par in proportion of one new equity shares of Rs. 5 each for every one
existing fully paid up equity share of Rs. 5 each held 1o the sharehelders as on the record date of 08(h September. 2021

g) Pursuant to the approval of shaveholders granted in the extra-osdinary general meeting held on 10ih September. 2021, a 1wlal of
27.888.492 equily $hares of face value of Rs. § cach were created, offered. issued and allotied at o premium of Rs. 12825 ¢

Clipper Global ')A-/If/r consideration other than cash on the preferential cum private placement basis. /G_‘C* e
" 1 -‘.:’,‘
i Fo.
"
i
- 7\
i



Lava Intermational Limited
Notes t¢ consolidated linancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
LAl amomnts i fndicn Rupees million. wiless otherwise stoted)

(ii} Insiruments entirely cquity in nature -Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)

Amount Nuo of Shares
As at 31 Asal 3l Asat 3 As at 31
March 2023 Mareh 2022 March 2023 Maurch 2022
Al the beginning of the year 3342 51.00 424,172 600,000
Converted Lo equity and other equity - (17.58) (175.828)
Outstanding at the end of the year 33.42 33.42 424,172 424,172
(b) Terms/ rights attached (o equity shares

The Holding Company has only one ¢lass of equity shares having a par value of Rs. § per share (31 March 2022: Rs. 5 per share),
Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vole per sharc and dividends in proportion to their shareholding. In (he event of
liquidation of the Holding Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive residual assets of the Holding Company
afier distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion 1o the number of equity shares held by the
shareholders

Terms/ rights attached to Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)

i. During financial year 2017-18, the Holding Company has issued 500,000 Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of
Rs.100 each. The preference shares shall collectively be entitled 1o dividend of 0.0001% ol the aggregate face value of the preference
shares. As per the terms of Subscription and Shareholders Agreement, ihe preference shares may be converted, at any time at the
discretion of the CCPS holder, into fixed number of equity shares, further If any of the preference shares have not been converted into
equity shares within 19 years and 11 months, remaining preference shares shall be automatically and compulsorily converted into
equity shares upon the expiry of such period.

Purswant lo approval of board of directotrs of the Holding Company in the meeting held on 9th Aug, 2021, 175,828 CCPS were
converled into 1,528,834 Equity Shares of Rs. L} each at the premium of Rs. 1.5 per Share.

ji. During financial year 2017-18, the Holding Company had issued 160,000 CCPS of Rs. 19 each for a consideration of Rs. 520.00
million. The CCPS shall carry a coupon of 0.0001% and shall be non-cumulative in nature, which is to be declared at the discretion of
ihe shareholder of the Group. The preference shares may be converted inlo (he equily shares at any time at the discretion of the CCPS
holder, subject 1o the lerms of the agreement. If, any of the preference shares have not been converted 1o equily shares within 10 years
from the atlotment date. then such remaining preference shares shall be compulsorily converted into equity shares upon the expiry of
such period

I response of (he exercise the option available, the Holding Cempany has to issue 53.68,832 equity shares against 1,00,000 CCPS.

(c) Number of bonus shares isswed during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

No of Shares

Particular
e As at 31 As at 31 Asat 3l Asat 3l As at 31
March 2023 March 2022 March 2021 Mareh 2020 March 2019

Eq}uly shares allotted during the year as fully i 256.618.862 i i ]
paid bonus shares

{(d) Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the Holding Company:

Equity Shares of Rs. § each fully paid ((31 March 2022 : Rs 5 cach {ully paid)

No of Shares Perceniage sharcholding
As al March Asal 3! As at March Asat 31
2023 March 2022 2023 March 2022
Hari Om Rai 140,658,304 180,335,560 25.99% 33.133%
Sunil Bhalla 98.378.203 113,561,488 18.18% 2099%
Vishal Sehgal 73.244,123 88417408 13.54% 16.34%
Yash Invesiments 60,693,140 - 11.22% 0,00%
Shailendra Nath Raj 40,914,798 46,984,112 7.56% 8.08%
Shibani Sehgal 20042 880 20,042 880 537% 237%

Clipper Global SIAL - 12.578.492 27.888,492 2.32%

-
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Notes to consolidated financial statemenis for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amonnts i Indion Rupees million, unless otherrise stated)

[nstrnmenis entirely equity in pature -Compulsory Converiible Preference Shares (CCFPS)

No of Shares Perceniage sharcholding

Namic of Sharcholders As at 31 As at 31 As at 31 Asat 31

March 2023 March 2022 March 2023  March 2022
UNIC Menmory Tectmology {Hong Kong) Limited 324,172 324,172 100% 100%
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. |00/
each
Bennett Coleman and Company Limited 100,000 100,000 100% 100%
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10/~
each

(¢) Sharcholding of promoters
Equity Share held by promoters as of 31si March 2023
17
Promotors Name No of Shares el '4’ Change
shares during the year
Hari Om Rai 140,658.304 25.99% -7.33%
Sunil Bhalla 98,378,203 18.18% -2.81%
Vishal Sehgal 73.244.123 13.54% -2.80%
Shailendra Nath Rai 40,914.798 7.56% -1.12%
Total 353.195.428 65.27%
Equity Share held by promoters as of 31st March 2022
o, .
Promotors Namne No of Shares s A' Change
shares during the year
Hari Om Rai 180,335,560 33.33% -2,78%
Sunil Bhalla 113,561,488 20.99% -1.75%
Vishal Sehgal 88.417.408 16.34% -1.36%
Shailendra Nath Rai 46,984,112 8.68% -0.72%
Total 429,298,568 79.34%

(T} Shares reserved for issuc under options :
. For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the Company, pléase refer nole 31

10 Financial liabilitics

10 (3) Borrowings (non-current)

As al 31 Asal 3l
March 2023 March 2022

Sccured (refer note 1 below )

Non-Cenvertible Debentures - 250.00
Term loan from banks 2.86 1.54
Term loan from other parties 226,96 273.25

229,82 524.79
Curreni maturilics of non-currenl borrowings [refer note 10{b}) 401.23 92 76

Naote I Security disclosure for the outstanding current borrowings are as follows;

{i¥ Nen-Convertible Debentures (NCDs) had been issued during the previous year amounting 1o Rs. 250 million. The amount
oulstanding against the said loan is Rs. 250.00 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 250.00 million} which carries interest @ 12.41% p.a and
is repaid on 25ih September 2023, The loan is secured by first and exclusive charge by pledge of certain shares ol the Holding
Company held by the promoters. Further, the toan has been personally guaranteed by certain directors of the Holding Company

(i1} Car loan had been obtained from HDFC bank amounting to Rs, 2,32 million during the previous year and the amount outstanding
against the said loan is Rs. 1.53 million {31 March 2022: Rs. 1.96 million) which carries interest @ 7.50% p.a. and repavable in 60
equal monthly instalments starting from 07th May 2021. The loan is scheduled o be repaid by 07(h April 2026. The loan is secured
against he vehicle fimded out of aforesaid loan

(iii) Car loan has been oblained from HDFC bank amounting to Rs. 2.53 million and the amount outsianding against the said loan is
Rs. 2.24 millioi (31 March 2022: Nil) which carries inlerest @ 7.70% p.a. and repayable in 60 equal monthty instalments starting
lrom O5th/Aupust:2022. The loan is scheduled 1o be repaid by 05th July 2027. The loan is secured against the vehicle funded out o
aloresaidlonh,

y
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Notes to consolidated financial statements for (he year ended 31 March 2023
(AUl amomgs i Indian Rupees nullion, unless otherwise stated)

(iv) Term loan from Bajaj Finance Ltd had been oblained amounting 0 Rs. 350 million during the previous year and the amount
outstanding against the said Yoan is Rs. 267 40 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 350 million} which carries interest @ 11.00% p.a. (3]
March 2022: 8.75% p.a.} and repayable in $1 equal monthly instalments starting fiom 051h April 2022 to 05th June 2026. The loun is
secured by exclusive charge over plant and machinery funded under the term loan with minimum Fixed Assets Coverage Ratio
(FACR} of 1.33x and second pari-passu charge on overall cuirent assets (current and future) of the Holding Company. Further. the
loan has been personally guaranteed by certain directors of the Holding Company

(v} Term loan from Oxyzo Financial Services Private Lid. had been obtained during the previous year amounting to Rs. 20 million and
the amount oulstanding against the said loan is Rs. 5.46 million (31 March 2022: 15.59 million) which carries interest €@ 12.25% p.a.
and repayable in 24 equal monthly instalments. The loan is repaid by 05 September 2023. The loan was secured by personal guarantee
by director of the Holding Company.

(vi} Term loan from Tala Capital Financial Services Lid. has been obtained amounting 10 Rs. 125 million and the amount outstanding
against the said loan is Rs. 103.95 million {31 March 2022: Nil) which carries interest @ 11.§0% p.a. and repayable in 24 equal
maonhly instalments. The loan is scheduled to be repaid by 15 November 2024. The loan is secured by puarantee equivalent to the
50% of the facility amount and personal guarantee by cerlain directors of the Holding Company.

Note I1; Satisfaction ol charges
There are no charges or salisfaction which are yet 10 be registered wilh the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period

10 (b) Borrowings (eurrent)

As at 31 As at 31
March 2023 March 2022
Secured
Cash eredit / overdrafl facility from banks (repayable on demand)* 743.82 890.09
Buyer's credit* 139.03 248 48
Working capital demand loan™* 531.00 370.00
Current maturities of non current borrowings [refer note 19(a)] 401.23 92.70
1,815.08 1,601.33
LInsecured
Short term loan*** 1,013.50 1,098 04
2,828.58 2,099.37

*Secured by way of hypothecation on first pari- passu charge basis, on overall current assets of the Holding Company (current and
future) and collateral securities/persenal guarantees of promoter directors and relative of promoter directors. The said loan is further
secured:

(1} by way of a firsi charge on pari-passu basis, of existing and fulure movable fixed assets of the Holding Company excluding
sollware and machineries/ assets crealed by way of term loans [fom other banks and financial institutions.

{2) by way of a second charge on pari-passu basis, of such existing and future movable fixed assets of the borrower such machineries/
other assets which are crealed by way of term loans from other banks and financial institutions. The cash credit is repayable on
demand and carries interest @ 10.30% p.a. to 11.55% pa. (3) March 2022 10.55% p.a. to 12.10% p.a.). Buyer's credil carries
interest (@ SOFR +0.50% p.a. to SOFR +1% p.a.

*+Secured by way of personal guarantee of promoters of the Holding company. This facilily is repayable on demand and Carvies
interest Tanging from 8.85% p.a. 10 9,20% p.a. (3151 March 2022 7.50% p.a.). Working capital demand Joan of Rs. 125 milliun is
secured by way of guarantee equivalem 10 the $0% of the facility amount and personal guarantee by certain directors of the Holding
Company and repayable on demand and carries interest @ 11.10% p.a

+**China Bird Centro America, S.A and its subsidiaries has a comercial Joan of Rs. 328.73 million with annual interest rate of 7.75%
with maturity in 180 days.commercial loan of Rs. 369.81 with maturity on 2nd Avgust' 2023 wilh annual interest rale ol 6.25%.
commercial loan, three promisory notes for Rs. 106.84 million with annual interest rale of 8% and 9% and maturity daie on 31s1
March' 2023. commercial loan of Rs. 205 44 million witl annual intevest rate of 7.25%. commercial Joan of Rs. 2.67 niillion for dabor
capital, monthly payment (principal & interest) interest ratc of 1.12%

Noie I: In respect of working capital loans, quarierly returns or statements of current assets filed by the Holding Company with banks
are in agreement with the books ol accounts

10 (¢) Trade payables

Asal 3l Asat 3l
March 2023 March 2022

Micro and Small Enterprises (refer note 32) 132.17 241.90
Other than Micro and Smal) Enterprises 5.730.74 191559
Payable 10 relieg parties (refer note 29) - 012

5 5.862.91 515761

(&=
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Lava International Limited

Notes to consolidated Minancial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts int Indian Rupees million, wniless otherwise stated)

Ageing of trade payables : -

Pariicnlars Bess phaw 1 1-2 years 2-3 years MoTCRERS Total
year Years
As at 31 March 2023
Ouistanding dues 10 micro and small enterprises 132.17 132.17
Ohhers 4,562.04 356.76 173.46 334.51 £426.77
Disputed - dugs to micro and small enterprises . - - = -
Disputed - Others - - - - -
Total trade payables 4,694.21 356.76 173.46 334.51 5,558.94
Provision for expenses 303.97
Net trade pavables 5862.91
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2.3 yoars More than 3 Total
vear YeArs
As al 31 March 2022
Quistanding dues to micre and small enterprises 241.49 0.4l - - 241.90
Others 3,794.92 265.89 341.64 3537 4,437.82
Disputed - dues to micro and small enterprises 7.63 - 2.11 0.04 9,78
Disputed - Others - A = = =
Total trade payables 4,044.04 266.30 343.75 3541 4,689.50
Provision for expenses 468.11
Net trade pavables 5,157.61
10 (d) Lease liabilities (non-current)
Asat 3} As at 33
March 2023  March 2022
lease Liabilities (refer note 36} 109.47 132.44
109.47 132,44
10 (¢) Leasc linbilitics (current)
AsatJl Asat 31
March 2023 March 2022
Lease Liabilities (refer note 36} 38.40 30.16
38.40 30.16
10 (D) Other financial liabilities {(current)
As at 31 Asat 3]
March 2023 March 2022
Payable for capilal purchases 127 .12
Securily deposits 1,460.32 1,271.36
Inter company deposits - 30.00
Interest accrued on borrowings 6.08 4321
Derivative liability 129 -
Employee payables 43.88 47.11
1,512.84 1,392.80
11 (a} Provisions {(non-current}
Asat 3l Asal 31
Mareh 2023 March 2022
Provision for employce benefits
Provision for gratuity (refernote 27) P 5728 54.45
Other provisions: e
Provision for deconpfiissioning linbilities # len 2,06 2.06
o | 59.34 56.51

.I?«'lf‘
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Notes 1o consolidated linancizl statements for the year ended 31 Mareh 2023
(Al amounts m Indien Rupees million, unless otherwise stated)

# Under lease agreements entered by the Company, it has to incur restoration cost for restoring lease premises to the original condition
at the time of expiry of lease period, The timing of the oulflows is expecied to be in nexi 3 years. The impact of discounting is not
considered being inimaterial and hence ignored.

Provislon for decommissioning liabilitics As at 31 As al 31
Mareh 2023 March 2022

Al the beginning of the year 2.06 3.02

Less: reversed during the year {0.96)
At the end of the year 2.06 2.06
11 (b} Provisions (currcnt)
Asat 31 Asat 31

March 2023 March 2022

Provision for employee benelits

Provision for gratuity (refer note 27) 25.67 21.49
Provision for compensated absences 20.58 24.30
46.25 45,79

Othier provisions
Provision for warranties* 87.53 101.56
87.53 101.56
133.78 147.35

*The Holding Company provides warranty on it's products by giving an undertaking to repair/replace items to the customers, which
fails to perform satisfactorily during the warranty period. Provision made represents the amount of the expecied cost of meeting such
obligations of repairfreplacement. The timing of the outflows is expected to be in next 12 months (31 March 2022 ; 12 months}.

Provision for warranties As 2l 31 As ai 31
March 2023 March 2022
Al the beginning of the year 101.56 20330
Arising during the year 649.78 £83.81
Less : Utilized/reversed during the year (663.81) (990.55)
At the end of the year 87.53 101.56
12 Other current liabilities
As at 31 As at 31
March 2023 March 2022
Advance from cuslomers 282.62 541.28
Tax deductable at source 31.34 24.59
Other statutory liabilities 18.06 76.84
332,02 642.7)
13 Current tax liabilities {net)
Asal 31 Asat 3]
Mareh 2023 March 2022
Provision for income tax* 110.87 265.37
110.87 265.37

*Nevaf advanee1axand TDS receivable

L)

{This space has been imtentionally left blank)

amounting 10 Rs. 3,734.19 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 3,464.47 million)
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14

15

16

17

Revenue from operations

Sale of products

Sale of services

Other operating tevenue
- Scrap sale

- Exporl incentives

Other income

Interest income on financial asset at amortised cost

Interest income on fixed deposits with banks

Interest income on others

Net gain on sale of mutual fund investments

Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments at fair value through profit or lass
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment

0

Miscellaneous income

Cost of raw material and components consumed

Inventory malerials at the beginning of the year
Purchase during the year
Less: Inventory materials at the end of the year

Changes in inventories of finished goods, spares and stock in trade

Inventories at the end of the year
Traded goods

Spares {or handsets

Finished goods

Inventories at the beginning of the year
Traded goods

Spares for handsets

Finished goods

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

53,967.22 58,639.71
459.87 125,38
497 2.81

3.93 4.55
54,435.99 58,776.45

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

113 1.37
73.49 70.05
0.16 5.14
0.51 0.35
= 5.82
1.95 -
176.72 90.36
19.91 30.59
273.87 203.68

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 Mareh 2023

31 March 2022

2,802.05 1,449.80
16,955.15 12,826.04
(2,843.49) (2.802.05)
16,913.71 11,473.79

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

2,966.89 2,482.28
308.02 477.05
1.242.80 1,067.39
4,517.71 4,026.72
2.482.28 1,277.32
477.05 789.05
1,067.39 922.46
4,026.72 2,988.83
(490.99) (1,037.89)




Lava International Limited
Nefes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2623
(All amounts in Indian Rupees miflion, unless otherwise sialed)

18

19

Employee benefits expenses

Salary, wages and bonus (refer nole 29)

Contribution to provident and other fund (refer note 27)
Gratuity expense (refer note 27)

Share based payment expense (refer note 31)

Staff welfare, recruitment and training

Other expenses

Power and fuel

Rent

Rates and taxes

Insurance

Repair and maintenance - others

Advertisement and marketing expenses

Sales promotion, scheme expenses and expected credit Loss provision [refer note
6(c) for ECL]

Freight and cariage

Outsourced salary cost

Travelling and conveyance

Communication costs

Warranty expenses

Legal and professional fees

Payment to auditor (refer details below)*

Donation

Corporate social responsibilty expense (tefer note 33)
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment

Fair value loss on derivative financial instrument at fair value through profit or loss
Loss on investment at fair value through profit or loss
Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to auditor *

As auditor:

Audit fee

Tax audit fee
Reimbursemeni of expenses
Olher}serviccs

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

1,739.68 1,696.23
57.27 50.96
18.90 16.48
16.83 126.69
273.66 232.37
2,106.34 2,122.74
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

46.09 39.47
52.30 56.19
12,53 8.94
14.34 14.40
92.27 70.46
2,018.54 1,783.75
805.32 711.37
364.99 406.32
30.65 22.08
102.68 68.98
8.11 7.94
649.78 888.81
184.87 149.83
2.50 7.26
LI 0.05
10.03 $.10
- 0.08
1.96 -
- 0.01
48.37 36.36
4,446.51 4,280.40

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

2.50 3.60
- 0.35
- 0.18
- 3.13

2.50 7.26
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20 Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation expense

- on Property, plant and equipment

- on ROU asset

Amortisation expense on intangible assets

21 Finance costs

Interest on

-Term loan

-Cash credit

-Lease liabilities (refer note 36)
-Security deposits

-Income tax

Bank charges

A L/({ 0203t (This space has been intentionally lefi blank}

For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

1,243.36 869.30
3233 31.50
124.85 66.34
1,400.54 967.14

For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

137.20 75.28
250.90 183.86
18.68 20.78
8.41 4.33
20,17 42.91
102.96 114.01
538,32 441.17
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22 Income (AX expense

(a) The major components of income tax expense for the years ended as follows are:

{b

=3

Current income tax;

Current income lax charge

Adjustments in respect of income tax of previous year
Deferred tax :

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Total tax expense on profit of the year (a)

Other comprehensive income

Deferred tax refated 10 items recognised in other comprehensive income during in the year:
- Re-measurement losses of defined benefit plan

- Change in fair value of FVOCI equity instruments

Total tax expense on other comprehensive income of the year (b}

Teotal tax expense on total comprehensive income of the year (a) + (b}

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Reconcilintion of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate

Profit before tax

Applicable tax rate

Expected tax cxpense (A)

Tax adjustment;

Expenses nol considered in delermining taxable profit
Income not considered in determining taxable profit
Income exempt from tax

Impact of change in tax rates

Tax pertaining lo earlier years

Tax losses for which no deferved tax assel was recognized
Others

Total adjustments (B)

Actual tax expense { C= A+B}

Tax expense recognised in statement of profit and Joss

Effective Tax RuteTA o

\ % (This space has been intentionally left blank)

119.60 265.13
{16.98) (16.21)
5.69 (86.47)
108.31 162.45
(1.71) (0.02)
{1.71} {0.02)
106.60 162.44
For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
988.06 2,031.11
25.17% 25.17%
248.09 §11.23
25.00 (2.99)
{3.77) {16.21)
(161.74) (375.68)
(16.98) 10.41
0.07 (0.16)
16.81 33.42
(140.60) (351.22)
108.09 160.01
108.31 162.45
10.96% 8.00%
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(¢} Deferred tax assets (nei)

Delerred tax relates to the following: For the year ended  For the year ended

31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Deferred tax assets on account
oft
Property, plant and equipment (93.99 (82.67)
Employee benefits and other (26.06) (25.23)
payable
Allowance for credit loss (ECL) & provision for doubtful Advances (271.76) (274.45)
Provision for obsolescence inventories (10.80) (14.00)
Others 1.88 -
Deferred tax related to other comprehensive income of the year:
Re-measurement losses of defined benefit plan 3.36 379
Change in fair value of FVTOCI equity instruments (2.31) 231}
Deferred tax liability/ (asset) on account of:
Tax 1o be paid on custom duly receivable in future years (refer note 34) 89.45 79.38
Fair valuation of invesiment = =
Net deferrved tax liability/ (asset) including other comprehensive income (310.23) (315.49)
of the year
Movement in deferred tax for the year ended 31 March 2023
As at Recognised in - Recognised Recognised in As at
31 March 2622 other in profit  Retained Earnings 31 March 2023
comprehensive  and loss
income

Deferred fax assets on account
of:
Property, plant and equipment (82.67) - (11.32) - (93.99)
Employee benefits and other - . (26.06)
payable (25.23) {0.83)
Allowance for credit loss (ECL) & . - (271.70)
provision for doubtful Advances
{refer note 6(c)) (274.45) 2.69
Provision for obsolescence - . (10.80)
inventories {14.00) 3.20
Other - - 1.88 - 1.88
Deferred tax velated (o other < =
comprehensive
Re-measurement losses of defined {0.43) - 3.36
benefil plan 379 -
Change in fair value of FVTOCI - - (2.3
equity instruments (2.31) -
Delerved tax liability on account of;
Tax 1o be paid on custom duty 79.38 - 10.07 - 89.45

receivable in future years (refer note 34)
Fair valugtion of investment = =

Total (315.49) (0.43) 5.69 - (310.23)
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Meovement in deferrved tax for the year ended 31 March 2022

Asat Recognised in  Recognised Recognised in Asat
31 March 2021 other in profit  Reiained Earnings 31 March 2022
comprehensive  and loss
income
Deferred tax assets on account
of:
Property, plant and equipment (82.03) - (0.64) - (82.67)
Employes benefits and other (23.506) (1.67) (25.23)
payable -
Allowance for credit loss (ECL) &
provision for doubtful Advances (209.92) - (64.53) (274.45)
Provision for obsolescence (14.00) 0.00 {14.00)
invenlories - -
Others 5 -
Deferved tax related to other
comprehensive income of the year:
Re-measurement losses of defined an 0.02 - - 3.79
benefit plan
Change in fair value of FVTOCI (2.31) - - = 2.3
equity instruments
Deferred tax liability on account of: ; i
Tax to be paid on custom dity 98.58 - (19.20) 79.38
receivable in future years (refer
note 34}
Fair valuation of investment (.36 - (0.36) 2 =

Total p— (229.11) 0.02 (86.40) = (315.49)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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23 Earnings per share (EPS)
The following reflects the profil and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS compulation:

For the year ended  IFor the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Nominal valve of equity shares g 5
Profit attributable to ovmers of Holding Company for computing basic and dilutive EPS 880.44 1,869.19
(A)
Weighted average number of equity shares for caleulating basic EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for computing 541,126,216 527,934,041
Basic EPS (B)*
Dilutive effect of share based payments on weighted average number of equity shares 30,955,614 30,888,097
outstanding during the year
Dilutive effoct of compulsory convertible preference shares on weighted average number 16,643,640 16,643,640
of equity shares outstanding during the year
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year for computing 588,725,470 575,465,778
Diluted EPS (C)*
Basic earning per share (A/B)} 1.63 3.54
Diluted earning per share (A/C) 1.50 3.28

During the cuirent financial year, 1,201,872 number of options issued for share based payment were excluded from the caleulation of
dituted weighted average number of equity shares as their effect would have been anti-dilutive.

& o\
\_{ i \ (This space has been intentionally left blank)
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24 Fair value measurement

a} The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by categories are as under:

31 March 2022

Notes 31 March 2023
FVTPL ‘ FVTOCI | Amortised FVTPL FVTOCI Amortised
: Cost Cost
Assets |
Non-corrent assets
|
Financial assels ' |
Investmenis 6 (a) = 987.31 - 695.15 -
Cther financial assets 6 (D - - 130.93 - 87.23
- 987.31 130.93 - 695.15 87.23
Current assets
Financial assets '
Investments 6 (b) 28.73 - - - -
Trade receivables 6(c) - 7.381.88 E - 12,921.16
Cash and cash equivalents 6 (d) 963.59 - - 930.69
Other bank balances 6 (&) 914.95 " - 1,084.30
Detivative asset 6(g) - - 0.67 > -
Others financial assets 6(g) - = | 209.68 - 1,265.78
28.73 - 9.470.10 0.67 B 16,201.9%
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities |
|
Financial liabilities |
Borrowings 10 (a) = = 229.82 > - 524,79
Lease liabilities 10 (d) - - 109.47 - - 132.44
- | - 339.29 - - 657.23
Current Jiabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 10 (b) - 2.828.58 | 2,699.37
Lease liabilities 10 (e} 38.40 30,16
Trade payables 10(c), 32 = | 5,862.91 - - 5.157.61
Derivative liability 10 (1) 1.29 | B - - -
Other financial liabilities 10 (1) - | - 1,511.55 - - 1,392.80
1.29 | = 10,241.44 - | 9,279,94

The fair values of trade receivables, cash and cash equivalents. other current financial asset. trade payables and other current financial
liabilities are considered 1o be same as their carrying values due 1o their shorl term nature.
The carrying amounts of other items carried at amortised cosl are reasonable approximation of their fair values on respective reporling

daie.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured al [air value. the carrying amounts are equal to the fair values,

L.
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24 (b) Fair value hierarchy and valuation techniques used to determine fair values:

To provide an indication about the reliability of inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has classified ils linancial
instrument into three levels prescribed under the accounting standard. The following table provides the fair value measurement

hierarchy of the Group's assets and liabilities.

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liabilities are as follows :

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices in Significant Significant Total

At 31 March 2023 active markets observable inputs unobservable inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Level 3)
Assets measured at FYTPL
Investment in mutual funds 28.73 - # 28.73
Assets measured at FVTPL
Derijvative liability - 1.29 2 1.2%
Assets measured at FYTOC]
i 987.31 9§7.31

Investment in equity instruments -

Fair value measurement using

Quoted prices in Sigmificant Significant Total

At 31 Mareh 2022 active markets  observable inputs unobservable inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2} (Level 3)
Assets measured a1t FVTPL
Investment in mutual {unds . - = =
Assets measured at FVTPL
Derivative assel - 0.67 - 0.67
Assets measured al FVTOQCI
- 695.15 695.15

Investment in equity instruments* -

* Investment in Abhriya Pte. Ltd. has been valued at zero value i.e. at fair value and it has been shown in olher reserve amounting
to Rs 7.69 million in Reserve and surplus.

- There were no transfers between the Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the years presented.
- There is ne change in the valuation technique during the period.

Valuation techniques used to derive Level | fair values

The fair values of investments in mutual fund units is based on the net asset value (' NAV") as staled by the issuers of these mutual
fund units in the published statements as at Balance Sheet date. NAV represents the price al which the issuer will issue [urther
units of mutual fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors,

Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 fair values
Derivative assel/ liahility represeniing forward foreign exchange contracts have been fair valued using dealerfcounter party quoles
al balance shect date.

\"jliﬂ'flfiull ¢hniques used to derive Level 3 fair values

Inplits for \¢ assels or liabilities that are not based on observable market data. A one percent change in the unobservable inputs
ugcd_"fﬁ' faik :.;:[.LEIL;EE:G?‘I_. of Lievel 3 assets doesn’t have a significant impact in its value, o
\§ ( This space has been intentionally fefi blank)
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25 Capital management

The Group's objectives while managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and 1o provide
adequate returns for its sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders, The Group's policy is generally to optimise
borrowings at an operating Group level within an acceptable level of debi. The Group's policy is to borrow using a mixture of
long-term and short-term debts together with cash generated to meet anticipated funding requirements.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is calculated as underlying net debt divided by total capital plus
underlying net debt. The Group’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio below 40%. The Group measures its underlying net debt as
total debt reduced by cash and cash equivalents. The Group monitors compliance with its debl covenants. The Group has
complied with all debt covenants at all reporting dates.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2023 and
31 March 2022,

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Borrowings 3,058.40 3.224.16
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (963.5% {930.69)
Net debt (a) 2,094.81 2,293.47
Equity 14,065.71 22.906.64
Total capital (b) 14,065.71 22,906.64
Capital and net debt (a) + (b) = (c) 16,160.52 25,200.10
Gearing ratio (%) (a}/ (c) 12.96% 9.10%

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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26 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives. comprise loans and overdrafis. and trade payables, The main
purpose of these financial liabilities is to raise finance for the Group’s operalions. The Group has various financial assets such as
teade receivables, cash, and shori-term deposits, which arise directly from its operations. The Group also holds mutual fund
invesiments and enlers into derivative transactions,

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are price risk, interest rate risk. liquidity risk, foreign currency risk,
and credit risk. \

The Board of Directors review and agree policies for managing each of these risks which are summarised below:

Price risk

The Group is mainly exposed 1o the price risk due to its investment in equity instruments and mutual funds, The price risk arises due
to uncertainties about the future market values of these investments. In order to manage its price risk arising from investmenis in
mutual funds, the Group diversifies its portfolio in accordance with the limits set by the risk management policies. The Group does
not have significant invesiment in equity instruments.

Set out below is the impact of a 1% movement in the NAV of mutual funds on the Group's profit before tax:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars

Elfect on profit before Lax:

NAYV increase by 100 bps 0.29 -
NAYV decrease by 100 bps (0.2%) -

Interest rate visk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s borrowings with floating
interest rates. The Group’s policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed, floaling rale borrowings.
The following table provides a breakdown of the Group’s fixed and floating rate borrowings:

31 Mavch 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars

Fixed rate borrawings 259.23 621.67
Floaling rate borrowings 2,799.17 2,602.49
Total 3,058.40 3,224.16

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, being a 0.5% increase or decrease
in interest rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group’s profit before tax due 1o the impact on loating rate borrowings.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars

Eflect on profit before tax:

Interest rates- decrease by 50 bps t4.00 13.01
Interest rates- increase by 50 bps (14.00) (13.01)

Credit risk

The Group is also exposed to credit risk from trade receivables. term deposits. tiquid investments and other financial instruments.

(i) Customer credit risk is managed by the Group established policy. procedures and control relating 10 cusiomer eredit risk
management. All customers are subject (o credit verification procedures. In addition. receivable balances are monitored on an on-
going basis. The Group is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-payment by customers. An impairment analysis is performed at
cach reporling date by grouping the receivables in homogeneous group. Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally
on original credit terms of 30 to 180 days depending upon calegory and nature of cusiomers. Considering the request of certain
distributors for becoming more competitive under the current market scenario and 1o enhance the overall market share, the
management has decided to extend the credil terms on case-to-case basis 1o s distributors which shall be helplul 1o penetrate Lhe
potential opportunities-of enhancing the overall market share. I'or this purpose. the management has done credil evaluation on he
disiributors based on their business relationships with the Group and the market credibility as well as established a mechanism of
moniloring the a\{z‘a-iJl bility and matketability of inventory levels lying with the retailer network. )
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The management regularly follows up to recover the outstanding amount and evaluates recoveries al the end of every reporting
period. To comply with the requirement of Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, the company has created 1olal expected credit loss
(ECL) as on 31 March 2023 of Rs, 8.677.88 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 1,033.00 million). As it was impracticable to ascerlain the
ECL for each of respective earlier financial year, therefore, Rs, 7,644.83 million in compliance with the requirements of para 44 of
Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors, has been adjusted to the retained earnings.

(ii) The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, term deposits, elc. is considered negligible, since the
counterparties are reputable banks with high quality external credil ratings.

Ageing based on original credit terms but after allowance for credit loss as follows:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars

0-180 days 6,372.93 7,365.65
180-365 days 1.008.93 62.56
| year plus 0.00 5,492,905
Total 7,381.88 12,921.16

The Group has provisions of Rs. 31.99 miltion (31 March 2022 : Rs, 42.50 million ) for doubtful debts. None of those trade debtors
past due of impaired have had their lerms renegotiated. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of
The Group evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables as low, as its customers are located in several
jurisdictions and operate in largely independent markets,

Liquidity risk
The Group monitor their risk of shortage of funds sing cash flow forecasting models. These models consider the malurity of their

financial invesiments, committed funding and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objeclive is to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives in a timely, cost effective and reliable manner.
A balance between continuity of funding and flexibility is maintained through the use of bank borrowings. The Group also monitors
compliance with its debt covenants, The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted

payments is given in the table below:

<lyr 1-5 yrs =5 yrs Total
As at 31 March 2023
Borrowings {including interest accrued) 2,834.66 229.82 - 3,064.48
Lease liabilities 38.40 109.47 - 147.87
Trade payables 5,862.91 - - 5.862.91
Other financial liability 1.506.76 = - 1,506.76
Total 10,242.73 339,29 - 10,582.02
As at 31 March 2022
Borrowings {including interest accrued) 2,742.58 524.79 - 3,267.37
Lease liabilities 30.16 132.43 - 162.59
Trade payables 5.157.61 - - 5.157.61
Other financial liability 1,349.59 - - 1,349.59
Total 9,279.94 657.22 - 9,937.17

(This space has been inteniionaily left blank)
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27 Post-employment benefits plan

Delined Contribution Plan

The Holding Company has recognised Rs. 57,27 mitlions (31 March 2022 : Rs. 50.96 millions) related to employer's contribution lo
provident fund and employees' state insurance fund as an expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Defined Benefit Plan

The Holding Company has unfunded defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gels
a gratuily on departure at 15 days salary {last drawn salary) for each compleied year of service.

The following table summarizes the components of nel benefil expense recognized in the stalement of profit and loss for gratuity plan
and amounts recognized in the balance sheet in respect of same.

Statement of profit and loss :

Net employee benefit expense recognized in the employee cost

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Current service cost 13.68 12.35
Interesi cost on benefit obligation 522 4,14
Net benefil expense 18.90 1649

Balance sheet :

Benefin asset/liability

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Present value of defined benefit obligation {32.95) (75.93)
Net asset/{liability) recognised in balance sheet (82.95) {75.95)

Changes in the present value of the defined benefil ebligation ave as follows:

31 March 2023

31 Mareh 2022

Opening defined benelit obligation 75,95 66.07
Current service cost 13.68 12.35
Interest cosl 5.22 4.14

Total amount recognised in profil & loss 18.90 16.49

Re-measurement (gains)/losses of defined benefit plan :

« Due 1o changes in financial assumptions {2.96) (0.85)

- Due to experience adjustment 125 093

Total amount recognised in other comprehensive inconme (1.71) 0.07

Benefils paid (10.19) (61.68)

82,95 75.95

Closing defined benefit obligation

The principal assumptions used in determining gratwity benefits arc as below:

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Discount rate 7.10% 5.90%

L:mployee tumaover 30.00% 30.00%

Salary Escalation Rale 7.00% 7.00%

Morlalily Rates 1AL20]12-14U1 1AL2012-14UIt

The cstimates of iture salary increases, considered in actuaria) valuation. take account of inflation, seniority. promotion and other Sy
relevanl factors, such as supply-and demand in the employment markel ’_'"‘\”‘_?\\\

The average duralion 61 ghe defined benefit plan obligation al the end of the reporting period s 4.78 years (31 March 2022: 4.24 years)
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Amounts for the current and previous four vears are as follows:

Pariculars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Gratuity

Defined benefit obligation 8295 75.95 56.29 54.45
Ex}:enenoe adjustments on liabilities (1.25) 0.93) 138 18.66
Rain / (loss)

Sensitivity Analysis:

A quantitative sensitivily analysis for sighificant assumption is as shown below:

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Projected benefit obligation on current assumptions 82.95 75.95
Delta effect of +1 % change in discount rate (2.16) (2.10}
Delta effect of -1 % change in discount rate 2.30 224
Delta effect of +1 % change in salary escalation rate 2.51 240
Delta effest of -1 % Change in salary escalation rate (2.40) (2.30)
Delta effect of +10 % change in rate of employee tumnover (0.30) (1.08)
0.85 I.18

Delia effect of -10 % change in rale of employee tumover

' L( ) N (This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to loreign currency in the normal course of business. The Group has transactional currency exposures arising
from sales or purchases by an operating unit in currencies other than the unit’s functional currency. Accordingly, the CGroup’s financial
state of affaits can be affecled significantly by movements in the US dollar & other currencies exchange rates.The Group enters into
derivative transactions, primatily in the nature of forward loreign exchange contracts on import payables. The purpose is to manage

currency risks arising from the Group's operations.

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and liabilities denominated in different currencies are as follows:

31 March 2022

Particulars 31 March 2023

Financial assets| Financial liabilities Financial assets| Financial liabilities
United States Dollar (USD) 111.80 72.10 99.81 69.78
Hong Kong dollar (HKD}) 36.69 1.00 34.14 113
AED 44.40 0.50 85.13 17.46
Others 0.28 0.06 0.37 0.05

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency arises in part where a Group holds financial assets and liabilities denominated in a currency
different from the functional currency of that entity with USD being the major non-functional currency of the Group’s main operating
subsidiaries. Set oul below is the impact of a 10% movement in the foreign cutrency on profit before tax arising as a result of the
revaluation of the Group’s foreign currency financial assets and unhedged liabilities :

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars

Effect of 10% strengthening of INR against following on profit before tax:

usD (3.97) (3.00)
HKD (3.57) (3.30)
AED (4.3 (6.77)
Others (0.02) (0.03)
Effect of 10% weakening of INR against {ollowing on profil before tax:

UsD ' 3.97 3.00

HKD 3.57 330

AED 4.39 6.77

Oihers 0.02 0.03

The Group enters into forward/fulure contracts lo mitigate the risk arising from fluctuations in foreign exchange rates 1o cover loreign
currency payments. The Group has taken forwards contract of the following amount to hedge against currency risk against movement in
INR/US dollar. The contract as on year end are as follows :

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Amount in INR

843.51

902.45

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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28 Segment information

Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments” establishes standards for the way the companies report information aboul operating segments and
related disctosures about products and services, geographic areas, and major customers. The Group’s operations relate to sales of
mobile handsets & accessories through the distributors and retailers network. The Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM)
evaluates the Group's performance and allocate resources based on analysis of various performance indicators pertaining to business
as a single segment. Accordingly, for the purpose of entify wide disclosures, only geographical information has been presented.
Business segment of the Group is primarily sale of mobile handsets.

Geographical information on revenues are collated based on individual customers invoiced or in relation to which revenue is
otherwise recognized.

Geographical information:
The following table presents geographical information regarding the Group’s revenue as defined in Ind AS 108 :

Particulars : For the year ended  For the year ended

31 Mar 2023 31 March 2022
India 21,641.90 17,060.87
UAE 23,634.12 28,821.76
Hong Kong 3,545.37 9,476.86
Others 5.614.60 3.416.96
Total 54,435.99 58,776.45

The following table presents geographical information regarding the Group’s non current assets as defined in Ind AS 108 :

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended

31 Mar 2023 31 March 2022
India 1,159.92 1,063.29
Hong Kong 0.00 346.28
Others ' - 2,585.75 3,734.31
Total 3,745.67 5,143.88

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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29 Related parties disclosures

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24 on ~ Related party disclosures” the names of related party on which control exist
andfor with whom (ransactions have taken place during the year and description of the relationship. as identified and certified by the

management are as below:

Names of related parties and related party relationship #

Nature of Relationship

Sr.No. Related Party Iriz::::gt'i):n For the year ended 31 | For the year ended 31
Mar 2023 March 2022
| |MagicTel Solutions Private Limiied India Associate Associate
Yamuna Electronics Manutacturing Cluster Private . ) ,

2 Limited (YEMCPL) India Joinl venture Joini venture
Cinterprises owned or|Enterprises  owned  or
significantly  influenced|significantly  influenced

3 Am express worldwide Logistics (Parinership Firm) India by key management|by key  management
personnel  or  their[personnel or their
relatives relatives
Enterprises owned or|Enterprises  owned or
significantly influenced|significantly  influenced

4  |Otiomate International Private Limited India by key managementlby key  management
personnel  or  their[personnel or their
relatives relatives
Enierprises owned or|Enterprises  owned  or
significantly  influenced|significantly  influenced

5 |Sojo Infotel Private Limited India by key managementlby key  management
personnel or  their|personnel or their
relatives relalives

# With whom transactions have taken place during the current ot previous year.

Key Management Personnel :

Mr. Hari Om Rai - Chairman & Managing director (upio 28th February 2024)

Mr. Shailendra Nath Rai - Whole time director
Me. Vishal Sehgal - Non Executive director
Mvr. Sunil Bhalla - Non Execulive direclor

Mr. Vinod Rai -Independent director {upto 22nd August 2023)

Mrs. Chitra Gouri Lal - Independent director (upto 22nd August 2023)
Mr. Rahul Kansal - Independent director (upto 22nd August 2023)

Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
M,
Mr.
M.
M.
Me.
Ms,
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.
Mr.

Mr. Ajay Kumat Si

Asitava Bose - Chief Financial Officer (upto 18ih July 2022)
Vinod Sharma -Independent director (w.e.{ 23rd August 2021 to 19ih march 2024)
Bharat Mishra - Company Secretary (upto 31st December 2021)
Jitendra Kumar - Independent director (w.e.f 01s1 September 2023 10 30th December 2023}
Naveen Kumar - Company Secretary (w.e.l 121h January 2022 10 31s1 August 2023)

Sunil Raina - President & Business Head {w.c.I' 181h May 2021)
Sanjeev Agarwal - Chief Manufacturing Officer (w.e.i | 8th May 2021)
Mugdh Rajit - Senior Vice President - 1lead Marketing. (w.e.i” E8th May 2021 10 291h September 2023)
Sourabh Raghuvanshi -Vice President - Sales & Supply Chain (w.e.f" 18th May 2021}

Nirav Girishbhai Raval - Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 18th July 2022 (o 3rd December 2022)
Asitava Bose - Chief Financial Officer (w.c.[. 3rd December 2022)
Preeti - Company Secretary {w.e.[. 015t Seplember 2023)

Sunil Raina - Whole Time Director (w.c.l. 061h November 2023 1o 30th December 2023)
Sanjeey Agarwal - Whole Time Direcior {w.e.l'01st February 2024)
Sunil Raina --Whole Time Director (w.e.[. 281h February 2024}

Anupam Shiivastava-Independent director (w.e.I' lrom 26th March 2024)
+ Independent dircetor (w.e.f from 16th April 2024)
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Nature of transaction

Joint Venture

2022-23 2021-22

A. Transactions during the year
Expenses incurred on behalf of related
parties

Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster
Private Limited (YEMCPL)

Advance to related party

Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster
Private Limited (YEMCPL)

B. Amount due to / from related parties
Advance to vendor

Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster
Private Limited (YEMCPL)

Other Payable

Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster
Private Limited (YEMCPL)

Other Receivables

Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster
Private Limited (YEMCPL)

0.07

0.10

0.21 0.11

0.53 0.53

19.33 19.33

Nature of transaction

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by
key management personnel or their relatives

2022-23 2021-22

A, Transactions during the year
Equity Shares issued to related parties
Saojo Infotel Pvt Limited

Sales to related parties

Oitomate International Private Limited
Services Taken

Am Express Worldwide Logistics
Expenses incurred on behalf of related parties
Sojo Infotel Pvt Limited

Payment made to related parties

Am Express Worldwide Logistics
Amount received from related parties
Otlomate International Private Limited
Advance Given

Sojo Infote] Pvt Limited

Amount recelved from related parties
Sajo Intotel Pvt Limited

1,020
3.08 *
0.98 0.07
o 0.03
110
2.09

95.51

95.60 5.07

{(This space has been intemtionally left blank}
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Nature of trapsaction

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key
management personnel or their relatives

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

B, Amount due to / from related parties
Other receivables

Sojo Infotel Pvt Limited

Trade Payables

Am Express worldwide Logistics

Trade receivable

Ottomate International Private Limited
Advance to Vendor

Sojo Infotel Pvt Limited

0.04 0.04
0.12
1.69 0.69

95.60

Nature of transaction

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Short-term employee benefits 62.34 45.25
Post-employment benefits 4.63 4.47

All transactions with related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions. Qutstanding balances
at the year-end are unsecured and their settlement occurs in cash. For the year ended 31 March 2023 and year ended 31 March 2022, the

Holding Company has not recorded any impairment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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30

Commitments and contingencies

(A) Capital and ether commitments

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
0.00 84.22

Particulars

Estimated amount of contracts to be executed on capital account

[nel of capital advances amounting 10 Rs. Nil {31 March 2022: Rs. 15.15
miilion} and not provided lor] {reler note %(a))

(B) Contingeni liabilities

(2)
(i)

(i1

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars

Bank guaraniees 672.25 737.57

Sales (ax and custom matters [refer note {a)] (amount paid under protest Rs.

158.43 million) {31 March 2022; Rs. 126.65 million} 448,17 451.69

Goods and service tax matiers [refer note (b)] (amount paid under protest Rs.

45 millien) (31 March 2022: Rs. Nil million) 944,54 9.70

Tncome tax matiers (amoun? paid under protest Rs. 6.05 million) {31 March

2022: Rs. 5.05 million) 96.41 92.95
2,161.37 1,291.91

Sales tax and custom

The Hon'ble Supreme Court of India vide its order dated 17 December 2014 in the case of Slate of Punjab Vs. Nokia India Pvi.
Limited, has held that the mobile chatger contained in the mobile phenc retail pack is an independent part and shall be separately
charged (o VAT af the rate as applicable 1o the chargers. The appellant has already approached the Hon'ble Supreme Court in u
review petilion challenging the judgment. In view of this judgment, the VAT Authorities of various states have raised demands along
with interest and penaliies aggregating to Rs. 110,06 million (31 March 2022; Rs. 115.46 million) The Holding company bas filed
appeal against these demands. Amount paid under protest against demands amounting to Rs. 39.75 million (31 March 2022: Rs.
46.50 million) have been disclosed under balance with statulory/governiment authorities in other assets.

Based on the legal assessment, management believes that the possibility of materializing sales tax demands is low. Accordingly, no

provision is made in the financial statements for such demands.

Sales fax demands received of Rs 30.70 million {31 March 2022; Rs, 28.82 million) (amount paid under protest of Rs. 6.19 inillion

(31 March 2022: Rs. 7.66 million3} (owl of which Rs. 1.86 miition (31 March 2022: Rs. 3.45 millien) is pending for refund from

department as the cases had been disposed off in favour of the company) from various sales lax authorities for which the
management believes that 1he possibility of materializing the demand is remote.

(iii} Sales tax demands received of Rs 283.70 million {31 March 2022: Rs. 283.70 million) {(amount paid under profest of Rs 70.93

millicn (31 March 2022: 70.93 million) classifying mobile phone under residuary entry under schedule- V. whereas as per lawyet's
apinion product is well covered in specific entry 39 under schedule -1V lor which managemeni also belicves 1hat the possibility of

materializing the sales tax demand 3s low. Accordingly, no provision is made in the financial statements for such demands.

(iv} As per Custom Dept. "Cameta Module Tor mebile phone™ is neither similar nor identical with “Digital S1ill image video cameras™

and thus the items “Camera Module for mobile phone” is totally ditferent from “Digitat siill image video cameras. hence availed

exemption is not ¢ligible to company.

According 1o the Company, the company have rightly claimed exemption rom the payment of Social Wellare Surcharge vide
notification No 1172018 €T under SR No 30 dated 02,062,218 which exempts ~“Digital Still Image video cameras™ falling under the
Heading 8525 8020. vonsidering camera modute & digital still image video cameras serving the same purpose which is capturing the
image and stored in data bank. Therefore, the Company have done no mistake by claiming exemption under above said notilication
The period in which the Company had claimed this exemption is 2nd Feb 2018 to 31st Jul 2019. Total amount involved is Rs. 23.71

million (31-Marcl 2023: 23.71 million). Against the order passed by Commissioner. the Company have filed an appeal belore the-—=—

CESTAT Delhi & deposited Rs. 1.56 million (31 March 2023: 1.56 million) of above amount for liling the appeal as pr}," b

underavy. Aspirithe consultant. the Contpany have a good case Lo argue and justily the claim.
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(v}

(b)

(i)

(i)

()
(i}

(i)

Search was conducted by Directorate of Revenue Intetligence (DRI} at Holding company’s premises on February 09, 2022. During
investigation, questions were raised on interpretation issue for classification on imported display assembly. To avoid unnecessary
business intesruption, the Holding company had decided 1o make a deposit of Rs.40 million under protest. The Holding company has
not received any show cause notice or demand from the Department. The management is of the opinion that the Holding company is
in compliance of law and (he Holding company has strong chasces of success against any dispute/demand and no liability will arise.
Goods and Service tax

GST Tax demands received of Nil (31 March 2022: Rs 9.70 million) (amount paid under protest of Rs. Nil (31 March 2022: Nib) on
account of less 1TC Reversal ufs 4243 of CGST Act, the Holding company had replied against the notice. We have submitied letter
on April 05, 2022 with GST dept., Noida for clearance of this matier and same has been settled in our favour.

During the review of transactions of certain third parties, the Direclorate General of Goods and Service Tax (DGGI), has identified
certain sale and purchase transactions which was executed by the Holding company with those parties. Based on thal, the Department
has issued a show cause notice dated July 30. 2022 to the Holding company for the reversal of Input Tax Credil of Rs. 920 million
(amount paid under protest of Rs. 20 million (31st March 2022: Nil)} related to earlier years. The Holding company has filed interim
reply on June 21, 2023 before the aforement joned adjucating avthorily. Management has obtained a Jegal opinion from the lawyers
and based on such assessment, the Holding company does not expect any financial exposure and believe that it has a strong case and
accordingly, no such reversal of Input Tax Credit will be required, Accordingly, no penalty, if any, will also be leviable as per the
assessment of 1he management.

Further, oul of transactions of certain third parties under review of DGG, show cause notice has been issued by GST department,
Delhi of Rs. 602.69 million on dated December 11, 2023 and Rs. 341.85 million (out of Rs. 371,14 million) on dated September 23,
2023 along with penalty in relation to cértain fransactions with few parties. The Company has filed the veply against the show cause
notices and conclusion pending for completion. As matier pending before DGG] and GST department, Delhi are for the same
transactions, hence, il should be assessed by the single authority.Management has obtained a legal opinion from the lawyers and
based on such assessment, the Company does not expect any financial exposure and believe that it has a strong case and accordingly,
no such reversal of Input Tax Credit will be required. Accordingly, no penalty, if any, will also be leviable as per the assessment of

the management.

Others .
The Holding company has filed a civil suit against Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson (*Eriesson’) before the Hon'ble District Court,
Gautam Budh Nagar in the month of January 2015 in relation to alleged standard cssential Patents of Ericsson. M/s
Telefonaktiebolaget LM Ericsson (‘Ericsson’) filed a counter suit alleging infringement of it’s alleged patents against the Holding
company in the month of March 2015, Since then, both the suits have been transferred/clubbed before the Hon’ble Delhi High Court
and are pending final adjudication.

Hon’ble High Court, Delhi vide its order dated June 22, 2016 has passed an interim order wherein the Holding company was
jnjuncted from manufacturing, importing, selling its devices. subject 1o the condition of deposit of Rs. 300 millien (as modified in
appeal) with the Registrar General of Delhi High Court. I'he Holding company has complied with the said arder and deposited # sum
of Rs. 300 million, as a result of which, the operation of Interim Order was stayed till the final disposal of the main suit, The single
bench of the Delhi high cour has passed the order dated 28.03.2024 allowing the suit of Ericsson by awarding Rs. 2,440 million as
damages towards infringement of patents as claimed by Ericsson. Subsequenly, the Holding company has challenged the order dtd
28.03.2024 in appeal before the division bench of Delhi High court on 07.05.2024. the grounds of appeal includes damages on
account of expired patents, miscalculation of damagesfinterest, patents are in nature of algorithm hence not patentable and claimable
and other legal grounds. Further, in response 1o the appeal {iled by the Holding company, the Courl had direeied both the parties to
settle the issue/dispute in accordance wilh the seltlement agreement exccuted between the Ericsson and some other party for which
{he court has fixed the date of hearing on 181h July 2024. Based on lepal advise and management’s assessment thereof, the Helding
company does not expect any [inancial expasure upon final settlement and accordingly no provision has been made in the financial
statemett of the Holding company.

On July 1, 2017, Research and Collaboration Agreement (*RCA") was execuled between the Holding company. Mintellectuals LLP
and Nokia Technulogies as a confirming parly. Under the RCA, the parties were 10 explore and work towards the possibility of
technical and research collaborations between Mintellectuals/Nokia and the Holding company.

The Holding company made payments to Mintellectuals LLP under the RCA, with a view 10 reecive the Research and Collaboration
deliverables-envisaged under the Agreement. The parties also agreed not 1o challengefassert any legal rights in relation fo Technically
Neeessary. Pafentsiuil any. used/practiced during the term of this agreement. The payments in question were being made by y

pany i {ieu of the executory consideration/promise/obligation of Mintellectuals/Mokia to enable and assisl rescarcl
gh in te rl’ns of the RCA and no technically necessary patents were used/practiced. i
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Consequently, the Holding company declared the RCA 10 be frusirated as there was no consideralion in its favour and consequently
stopped making payments o Mintellectuals. As a result of this dispute, Mintellectuals initiated arbitration proceedings for recovery
of amounts for the 4th and 5th quarter under the RCA, which was denied by the Holding company along with seeking refund of the
amounts paid fot the first three quarters under the RCA (“First Arbitration™). 1o relation 1o the Firsl Arbitration, an award dated July
15, 2020 had been passed in which the Holding company liable to pay approximately Rs. 240 million. The Holding company has
challenged the award of the First Arbitration before the Hon’ble High Court of Delhi, which is admitted and pending final
adjudication. Without prejudice to it’s challenge to the award, the Holding company has already paid Rs. 271.03 milliens (including
TDS net of GST) and submitted bank guatantee of Rs 119.50 millions with the Registrar General, Dethi High Court. Basis the
Holding company’s management assessment and supported by independent legal opinion from the legal counsel of the Holding
company, subject to the pending challenge, the entire amount paid by the Holding company under this agreement to Miniellectuals is
fully recoverable on legal grounds in favour of the Holding company.

Mintellectuals had initiated another arbitration proceeding 1o claim amount allegedly due 10 it for the 6th quarter onwards (“Second
Arbitration™), which is pending at the arbitral tribunal and no amount have been adjudicated as yet on the claims raised by
Mintellectuals. Wilhout prejudice to the same, the Holding company has deposited the post-dated cheques amounting to Rs. 226.22
millions as a security with the concerned arbitral tribunal. Management has taken legal opinion from the lawyers and as per
management’s assessiment, Holding company has strong case before arbitral tribunat on the ground presented by the Holding

company.

(iii) On November 29, 2017, Share Subscription & Shareholder Agreement (‘SSSHA’) was executed between the Holding company,
Sponsors of the Company and UNIC Memory Technology (HK) Lid. (' UNIC"). There were certain dispute between the parties for

which atbitration proceeding was initiated.

During the arbitration, setilement was arrived between Lhe parties on the basis of which Consent Award dated September 9, 2021
{‘the Consent™}, was passed by the arbitral tribunal.

In terms of the Consent Award UNIC has approached Delhi High Court which is pending adjudication. The Holding company has
evaluated the case and does not foresee any additional liability towards UNIC,

(iv} The Dolby had claimed ownership of a portfolio of 7 paients, these patents cover standardized technology for Advanced Audio
Coding (AAC) and Unified Speech and Audio Coding (USAC). The Dolby assert that the Holding company has been in discussions
for the lawful use of (hese patents since 2018 but has delayed concluding an agreement, characterizing them as an unwilling licensee.
Accordingly, Dolby had filed a suil on 30 April 2024 against the Holding company before the Delhi High Court, the Holding
company is in the process filling reply before the court in this case. Based on legal advise and management's assessment thereof. the
Holding company does not expect any financial exposure and accordingly no provision has been made in the financial statement of’
the Holding company.

TA o
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31 Employce stock option plans:

The plans existing during (he year are as [ollows :

Number of options approved 15% of Bquity Paid up Share capital

Method of settlement {Cash / Equity) Cash/Equity
The employee should be on roll of the Holding
Company or its subsidiary

Vesting conditions

The details of activily under ESOP Schemes have been summarized below®:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Particulars Number of A¥eighicd Number of Weleh{rd
. average . average
options " . options q ]
exercise price exercise price
Outstanding at the beginning of year 49,161,554 8.35 48,701,702 8.27
Options granted during the year 1,201,872 24.86 459.852 17.03
Exercised / Settied during the year 152,969 19.21 = =
Forfieted during the year 482,907 16.09 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 49,727,550 8.64 49,161,554 8.35
Exercisable as at end of the year 44,449,927 7.58 42,619,502 7.17
The details ol the ESOP outstanding are as follows™:
Options Qutstanding as al 31 March 2023 Options Quisianding as at 31 March 2022
. . No. of shares Weighied Weighted No. of shares Weighted Weighted
Range of exercise price per . 5 - .
T arising out of Average Average arising out of Average Av?rage
options remaining Exercise price options remaining Exercise price
3 contraciual life A contraclual life
Rsl-Rs3.125 20,444,744 2.76 2.50 20,444,744 3.76 2.50
Rs. 6.250 - Rs. 9.375 1.639,200 3.18 7.72 1,639,200 4.18 7.72
Rs. 9.375 - Rs. 12.500 18,508,158 - 10.95 18,508,158 0.10 10.95
Rs. 15.625 - Rs. 18.750 7,933,575 2.99 16.82 8,569,449 373 16.81

Rs. 21.875 - Rs. 25.000 1,201,872 4.00 24.8¢6 - - -

*Number of ESOPs and its exercise price has been calculated taking into account the following events happened post 31 Mareh. 2021

a) Pursuant to the approval ol shareholders granted in the extra-ordinary general meeting held on 10 September 2021, the Holding
Company undertook a stock split of one existing equity share of Rs. 10 each into two fully paid up equity shares oI’ Rs. 5 cach.

b) Pursuant (o the approval ol sharcholders granted in the extra-ordinary general mecting held on 10 September 2021, the Helding
Company issued and allotted fully paid-up “bonus shares™ al par in proportion of on¢ new equity shares of Rs. 5 each for every one
existing fully paid up equity share of Rs. 5 each held as on the recard date of 08 September 2021,

The share based payment expense incurred during the year is shown in the lellowing table:

31 March 2023 31 Mavch 2022

16.83 126.69

[:xpense arising from equity-seltled share-based payment ransactions
(Income) / Expense arising. [rom settlement of options

16.83 126.69
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32 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2000

On the basis of contirmation obtained from suppliers who have registered themselves under the Micro. Small and Medium
Enterprise Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006) and based on the information available with the Holding Company. dues
disclosed as per the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise Development Act. 2006 at the year end are below:

s,
No.

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

1

The principal amount remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting year.

13217

241.90

The interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of each
accounting yeatr.

1.19

L19

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 along with the
amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each
accouniing year.

Nil

Nil

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without
adding the interest specified under this Act.

Nil

Nil

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting
year; and

.19

.19

The amount of further interesl remaining due and payable even in the succeeding
years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprise,

Nil

Nil

33 Details of Expenditure towards Corporate Social Responsibility as per section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules

thercon:-
8. |Particulars 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022
No.
1 |Gross amount required 1o be spent by the Holding Company during the year 10.03 8.05
2 |Amount spent in cash during the year on: 10.03 8.10
a) |Construction/ acquisition of any asset - -
b} |Safeguarding environmenial susiainability E 8.10
¢) [Promotion of educalion 10.03 -
d) |Uplifiment of Rural Poor Youth - -
¢) |Uplifiment of Sports and Cultural Activilies - -
3 [Shertfall at the end of the year - -
4 |Reason for Shortfall NA NA
5 |Contribution 10 trust controlled by the Holding Company Nil Nil
6 [Movement in Provision made Nil

(This space has been infetionally left blank)
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34 Import of mobile phones only aitracts Special Duty of Customs in liev of Excise (CVD) which is equivalent to excise duty
applicable on like goods as if manufactured or produced in India. Accordingly, mobile phones manufactured in India are subject to
excise duly at the rate of 13.5% (including NCCD of 1%} if Cenvat Credit on inputs and capital goods is availed (rate of duty was
7.21% (including NCCD of 1%) till 28 February 2015) and 2% (including NCCD of 1%) if such Cenvat Credit on inpuls and capital

goods is not availed,

This has been further clarified by the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India in the similar cases by ruling that the benefit of exemption /
concessional rate of excise duty, which is subject to a condition that no Cenvat credit on inputs or capital goods used in the
manufacture of such goods shall be taken, is also available to the importers of like goods for payment of CVD under Customs.

During the financial years 2014 -2015 and 2015 - 2016, the Holding Company was clearing the imported mobile phones by paying
CVD of customs at highet rate of 7.21% before March 01, 2015 and 13.50% from March 01, 2015 instead of 2% during respective
periods. The Company got re-assessed bills of entries amounting to Rs 638.47 million during the financial year 2017-18 Post
clarification issued by the Hon’ble Supreme Court in M/s SRF case discussed above, and after re-assessment of bills of entries, the
above said CVD amount became fully recoverable. Accordingly, the Holding Company has claimed refund as per the Customs Act

1962.

As at 31st March 2023, total amount recoverable amounting to Rs. 315.37 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 315.37 million) (inciuding
recoverable charges for delayed payment amounting to Rs. 251.54 million (31 March 2022: Rs. 251.54 million)} was recorded, has
been disclosed under “Balance with statutory/government authorities” based on legal opinion obtained. T i

é
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35 Investments accounted for using the equity method

Set out below are the associate and joint venture of the group as at 31st Match 2023 which, in the opinion ol the directors. are
material to the group. The entities listed below have share capital consisting solely of equity shares. which are held directly by
the group. The proportion of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of voting rights held.

Principal Carrying amount
Name of the entity Nature place of 3ist March 2023 31st March 2022
business
MagicTel Solutions Private Limited Associale India 12.90 13.07
Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Joint venture India 47.97 48.02
Total 60.87 61.09

*Through the sharehelders agreement of Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Limited. the Group has joint
control over the entity, even though it only holds 45.33% effectively, of the voting rights.

(i) Commitments and contingent liabilities in respect of associates and joint ventures

The group has no contingent liabilities or capital commitments relating to its interest in MagicTel Solution Private Limited and
Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing Cluster Private Limited as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

The tables below provide summarised financial information for joint ventures and associates of the group. The information
disclosed reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the relevant associates and joint ventures and not the Lava
International Limited’s share of those amounts.

Summarised Balance Sheet
MagicTel Solutions Private Limited Yamuna Electronics Manufacturing
Cluster Private Limited

31st March 2023 31 March 2022 31st March 2023 31 March 2022
Current assets 2.29 9.31 0.6] 0.58
Non-current assets 49.65 43,74 141.45 141.45
Current liabilities (0.36) {0.76) {19.62) (19.48)
Non-Current liabilities - - = -
Net assets 51.5% 52.29 122.44 i22.55
Proportion of Group's ownership 25.00% 25.00% 45.33% 45.33%

Carrying amount of the Investment 12,90 13.07

(This space has been intentionally left blank}
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Summarised statement of profit and loss
MagicTel Solutions Private Limited Yamuuna Electronics Manufacturing
Cluster Private Limited

31 March 2023 31 March 2022 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue ) 3.0 5.75
Other income 0.01 0.02
Interest income 2.02 2,19 -
Cost of Sales (1.27) 3.10)
Depreciation and amortisation 0.17) (0.52) - =
Interest expense 0.01) (0.02) (0.00) -
Income tax expense/(income} (0.05) 0.02) = =
Employee benefit expense (3.62) (7.17 . 2
Other expenses (0.61) (0.81) (0.11) (0.10)
Profit for the year {0.70) (3.68) (0.11) (0.10)
Other comprehensive income - - - 5
Total comprehensive income (0.70) (3.68) 0.11) (0.10)
Tax adjustment of earlier years - -
Proportion of Group's ownership 25.00% 25.00% 45.33% 45.33%
Gain/ (Logs) from profit of
associate/ joint venture (0.18) (0.92) (0.04)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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36 Lease Liabilities

Contractual maturities of lease liabilities:-

The details of contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 on an undiscounted basis are as follows:-

31 March 31 March
Particulars 2023 2022
Payable not [ater than | year 38.40 30.16
Payable later than 1 year and not later than 3 year 109.47 132.43
Later than 5 year - =
147.87 162.59
Lease liability
Particulars Office Factory Warchouse Vehlcle Total
building building Building
As at 31 March 2021 £1.00 133.13 2.21 - 186.34
Addition in lease liability - - - = -
Interest expense on lease liability 5.68 14.85 0.25 - 20.78
Payment made during CY 13.28 30.68 0.57 - 44.53
As at 31 March 2022 43.40 117.30 1.89 = 162.59
Addition in lease liability - - = 19.08 19.08
Interest expense on lease liability 4.84 13.09 0.20 0.55 18.68
Payment made during CY 13.79 33.93 0.59 4.17 52.48
As at 31 March 2023 34.45 96.46 1.5() 15.46 147.87
Non Current portion 23.02 71.94 1.02 13.49 109.47
! ég‘j{xﬂleasr liability 11.43 24.52 .48 197 — ____.'_?_?.40

v 2\l
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Lava International Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(A comormts in Indian Rupees million, wnfess otherwise staied)

38

39

40

(a)

Research and development expenditure:

The Group has duly carried out iis research and development activities during the year and the details of related expenditure are
given below:

Barticglars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Amount charged to Statement of Profit and l.oss 155.88 128.92

Amount capitalised
- Property. plant and equipment 11.89 10.36
167.77 139.28

Previous year figures have been reclassed/regrouped. wherever considered necessary 1o make them comparable with those for the
cutrent year.

31 March 2022

Particulars Notes 31 March 2022 Regl‘oul"“l-_'. Rl![,{l'{ll.l[‘lt‘ﬂ
Cash and cash equivalents 6 (d} 427.02 503.67 930.69
Other bank batances 6(e) 601.92 482.44 1,084.36
Other financial assels 6(h 1,073.35 (986.12) 87.23

The above regrouping dos not have material impact on the linancial stalements.

Business Combination

Pursuant 1o the Share Swap Agreement dated August 4, 2021 entered into amongst the Company, China Bird Centroamerica S.A..
Ciipper Global S.A.. shareholders of Clipper Globa! S.A. and shareholders of the Company, the Company purchased 15,000 equity
shares aggregating (o 100% of the issued and paid-up share capital of China Bird Centroamerica S.A.. on a fully diluted basis. from
the Clipper Global S.A. for a consideration of USD} 50.54 million.

On 16th September 2021, the Holding Company had issued a total of 27,888.492 equity shares at a face value of Rs. 5 each (share
premium of Rs. 128.25 each) to Clipper Global S.A.. for acquisiion of China Bird Centroamerica S.A. with 100% equity stake for a
lotal purchase consideration of Rs. 3,716.14 millions. China Bird Centroamerica S.A. is engaged in the supply of mobile phones and

telecommunicalion equipments.

Particulars Amonnt
Purchase consideration paid for equity share 3,716.14
Less: Value of fair value net assets on acquisition date 1,379.92
Surplus arising out of acquisition 2,336.22
Less :-Brand 2,142.19
[.ess ;- Long term customer contaclts 65.28
Goodwill arising out of acquisition 128.75

Revenue and profit or loss of the acquiree since the acquisition date included in the consolidated statement of profit and loss

of the Group:

Particulars Amount
Revenue from Operations 3.191.43

Profit before 1ax 223.20

<



Lava International Limited
Notes to consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al eanonnts in Indian Rupees million, wiless otherwise stated)

(b} Details of assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of acquisition

Particulars Amount
Non currenf assets

Property. plant & equipment 15.37
Investment in companies 705.01
Prepaid expenses 25.96
Other financial assets 6.61
Current assets

Inventories 1.569.06
Balance wilh banks 63.98
Trade receivable 471.51
Other current assels 719.37
Current liabilities

Borrowings (LOIL.7T)
Trade payable (1.148.2%)
Other financial liabilities (2.10)
Other current liabilities (34.79
Fair value of net assets acquired 1,379.92

The determination of the fair value is based on discounted cash flow method. Key assumptions on which the Management has based
fair valuation include estimated long-term growth rates, weighted average cost of capital and estimated operating margin.

() The Goodwill arising on business combination is measured at cost at the acquisition date, being the excess of the aggregate of the
consideration transferred over the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Adter initial recognition,
Goodwill is tested for impairment at the reporting date. hence, there is no impairment in the value of the Goodwill.

41 The Holding Company has appointed independent consuliants fer conducting a transfer pricing siudy to determine whether the
transaclions with associated enterprises were undertaken at "arm’s length price”. The management confirms that all international
transaciions with associale enterprises are undertaken at negotialed contracted prices on usual commercial terms and is confident of
there being no adjustments on completion of the study. Adiusiments, if any. arising from the transfer pricing study shall be

accounted for as and when the study is completed.

42 There are ceriain receivables and payables where the Holding Company intends 1o set off with each other. For the purpose of
presentation in financial statements, such receivables and payables have been presented on net basis. The Group is in process of

obtaining the requisite approvals from the appropriate authorities in this regard.
43 There were no amounts which were required 1o be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Group.

44 There were no significant adjusting events 1hat occurred subsequent 1o the reporting period other than the events disclosed in (he
relevant notes.

45 The Group has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standard. for material oresecable losses. if” any
and to the exlent ascertainable, on long term contracis including derivative contracts.

46 The Group does not have any Benami properly. where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for
holding any Benami property.

47 The Group has not been declared willul defavlier as at the date of the balance sheet or on the date of approval of the linancial
stalements.

Nom Adjusting Events subsequent to 31 March, 2023
48 In respect ol certain transactions of some other companies in prior periods. the Direclorate of Enforcement (ED) has investigated
and filed the case against the Holding Company and its former Managing Director and the matter is sub-judice. On the basis the
available information and as per the legal opinion the Company has a very good case. Accordingly. as on the date ol approval of
these I'm'a_ncial results, the Company has nol made any adjustments, disclosures or given any effect to the financial slatgggy,l.&.

49" “Lhe f'f'oup have not raded or invested in Crypto curency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.



Lava International Limited
Notes (o consolidated financial statemients for the year ended 31 March 2023
(Al amounts in Indian Rupees miilion, unless otherwise stated)

50 There is no income susrendered or disclosed as income during the current or previous year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act. 1961. that has not been recorded in the books of account.

51 The Group is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Acl. 2013 read
with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rutes, 2017 (as amended).

52 The Group has no transactions during the year with the companies struck off under Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act. 1956.

53 The Group has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Group
{Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

54 The Group has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:
() directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons of entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the

Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

55 The Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code") relating 1o employee benefits, during employment and post-employment benetits, has
received the Presidential assent in September 2020. This Code has been published in the Gazette of India. However, the effective
date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the rules for quantifying the financial impact are also yel to be
issued. The Group will evaluate the impact of the Code and will give appropriaie impact in the financial statemenis in the period in
which the Code becomes effective and the related rules are published.

As per our report of even date as attached

For Raj Gupta and Company For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Lava International Limited
Jiuw's Registration No.: 000203N CIN - U32201DL2009PL.C188%920
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